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Colonial
Commercial
Corp.

SUPPLY
INC.

Since 1920, The RAL Supply
Group has been the premier
Plumbing, Heating, Air Condition-
ing & Water Treatment wholesaler
in the Hudson Valley — bringing
innovative, state-of-the-art prod-
ucts fo the marketplace. Known
for quality, customer service and
customer training support, their
tradition continues to this day
at their seven locations and four
luxury Hudson Valley showrooms.

UNIVERSAL

SUFPPLY GROUP INC.

Since 1940, Universal Supply
Group, Inc. has been dedicated to
meeting customers’ requirements
and surpassing their expectations.
By offering the best products,
followed by continuous support
and after-sale service, Universal
remains the only name you need (o
know for your HVAC needs.

AMERICAN/
UNIVERSAL

SUPPLY DIV.

American Universal is the American
Standard HVAC distributor for both
Residential and Commercial equip-
ment (up to 25 tons) for Southern
New York State, Long Island and
the Five Boroughs. They are a full
service distributor offering all the
products required for installations
and service.

S & A Supply, Inc., is one
Massachusetts” premiere Plumbi
Heating, and Electrical Wholes
Distributors. A family busin
started in 1972, S & A Supply, I
with high end, upscale showroo
in Great Barrington and Pittsfie
MA, provides quality produ
and service in plumbing, heati
electrical, and underground supp:
to both the Residential a
Commercial industries.

New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and Massachusetts

BRANCH LOCATIONS




In summary:

We are streamlining our organization to become as efficient as possible without affecting our ability to increase sales.
Our residential air conditioning business continues to grow in spite of the currently declining market. We believe that
the expansion of our footprint in the Northeastern region of the United States, our expanded product breadth, and the
proper execution of our planned changes will enable us to continue cur growth in 2008 and thereafter.

We are confident that we are a better, stronger company than we have ever been and we are optimistic about our future
growth in spite of these difficult economic times.

y/%&éna»\ s

Michael Goldman William Pagano
Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer
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letten Co Ous Stoctholdess

The year 2007 was a very challenging year for our Company. The general economy significantly slowed in
the last quarter of 2007 and the residential construction industry continued its downward trend.

The Company achieved the following:

We opened a new location in the Albany, New York area on April 10, 2007. The opening of
this location was the most successful start-up location in the Company’s history. This has
helped us establish an excellent business base for 2008.

On September 10, 2007, we acquired the assets of S&A Supply, Inc. which was a three branch
operation in western Massachusetts, The addition of S&A Supply provides our Company with
our first Premier Kohler showroom. S&A Supply has two bath showrooms, and sells
plumbing and heating fixtures, as well as electrical equipment, supplies, and accessories.

We completed our initial requirements under the Sarbanes Oxley Act and have implemented
an appropriate controls and procedures system and performed management testing for
compliance.

Since the beginning of this year, in order to increase our operating efficiencies to be consistent
with current economic conditions, we:

Reduced our manpower by approximately 10% without reducing our product offerings or
customer service.

Closed the North Adams, Massachusetts operation of S&A Supply in April 2008 and
consolidated that business into our Pittsfield, Massachusetts operation.

Added a senior executive to lead our sales team.

Are modernizing our existing bath showrooms -in Pittsfield, Massachusetts and Fishkill,
New York in order to enhance our business with our plumbing contractors.

Entered into the electrical supply business, through the acquisition of S&A Supply and plan to
capitalize on this business segment by adding it to other points of distribution.

Added the sale of air conditioning equipment and accessories to S&A Supply which
previously did not sell these types of products.

Expanded our commercial HVAC and controls systems departments to take advantage of what
appears to be a growing commercial market.

Continue to search for strategic acquisitions and improved product offerings which should
assist our growth in the future.

Stockholders letter continued...

Our Vision

Yo be the leading provider v ihe Northeasien

United Siates of - guality residentied and commmercial
learing and afr conditioning equipment and indoor air
qraliny producs, energy saving dircer digiial climaie
costtrod svstenrs and promivne kitelten and bath

Jixtures and wecessorics.
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. PARTL

Item 1. Business

General

~ Colonial Commercial- Corp. (“Colonial™) is a New York corporation which was
. incorporated on October 28, 1964. Unless otherwise indicated, the term “Company refers to
" “Colonial Commercial Corp. and ‘its consolidated subsidiaries. The Company’s operations are
conducted through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Universal. Supply. Group, Inc. ({Universal?),
The RAL Supply Group, Inc. (“RAL”), American/Universal Supply, Inc. (“American”), and
" S&A Supply, Inc (“S&A”). We distribute heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment,
(HVAC), parts and accessories, climate control systems, appliances, and plumbing and electrical
fixtures and supplies, primarily in New Jersey, New York, Massachusetts-and portions of eastern
Pennsylvania, Connecticut and Vermont, e

We' supply the Amana air’ coriditioning’ and heafﬂing‘reqﬁii;me'rit"]'i'he in' New Jérsey’
(exclusive of Cape May and Cumberland counties) and lower portions of New York State. We
are also the non-exclusive supplier of the Goodman line of heating and air conditioning
equipment in substantially the same trading area. We distribute these products through eight
locations in New Jersey, seven locations in New York State, three locations in Massachusetts and
one location in Willow Grove, Pennsylvania. Of these locations,, two are used for warehousing
purposes only. In addition, we distribute American Standard heating and air conditioning
equipment, as well as other heating and air conditioning accessories; in. Elmsford and Hicksville;;
New York. We utilize showrooms for the display and sale of kitchen, bathroom and electrical
fixtures -and accessories at our locations in Fishkill,” Middletown,: New Windsor and Suffern,’
New York and Great Barrmgton and Plttsﬁeld Massachusetts.

“4n

We have developed a spec1alty in the design and sale of energy consérvation control
systems and the fabrication of customized UL listed control panels. We also supply indoor air
quality components and systems.

o et . B P ". M L LR
Our in-house staff providés technical assistance and “training 'to clistomers. In some
cases, we also use vendors’ representatives and outside services. We do not install any
M ) . - ’ 1 t !‘_‘
equipment or systems. ‘

In September 2006, we began to distribute appliances, such-as washers and dryers,. to
appliance dealers prlmanly in New York, New Jersey, and portions of Connectlcut Delaware
and Pennsylvania. - . . : i o

On September 10, 2007, the Company, through a Wholly owned subsidiary, purchased
from S&A Supply, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation, (*S&A Supply”) and affiliates of S&A
Supply, all of their tangible and intangible assets,,including.accounts receivable, inventory, fixed
assets, but excluding certain accounts receivable and other specifically excluded assets, and
assumed certain liabilities, including .trade accounts payablerand motor vehicle loans. . S&A-
Supply is a distributor of heatmg, electrlcal and plumbmg supplles in the Western Massachusetts
area. S e Coal, LI PR S S

On.December 31, 2007, pursuant to a Plan of Merger dated December ‘L1, 2007, the
'Company’s subsidiaries American and RAL were merged RAL was the surviving company in
the merger. This merger has no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial-statements or the
daily operations of American and RAL. -




Our business 1s affected by significant outdoor temperature swings. Our sales typically
increase dunng peak heating and cooling demand penqu Demand related to the “residential
central air condltlonmg replacement market is h1ghest in’ thé second and thlrd quarters whlle
demand for heatlng equlpment is usually hlghest in the fourth quarter '

i

o . In 2007 2006 and 2005 approxnmately 85% of our sales were for replacement and/or
renovation and the remaining 15% -of sales were far new construction projects. In the same
years, respecnvely, sales consisted . of .approximately,-42%; 40% and 42% HVAC equipment;
39%, 39% and 38%.parts and.accessories; and 15%, 16%.and 16% climate control.systems. ,, .i-

We own no patents:and have no _rn__tellectu_al property rights or proprictary technology. .

We carry general liability, comprehensive property- damage, workers compensation and
product liability insurance-in amounts that we consider adequate for our business. We maintain *
$2,000,000 in the aggregate: and $1,000,000 per.occurrence.. general llab1hty coverage plus a
$15,000,000 umbrella-policy: A . e N L e

No materlal regulatory requrrements apply sp"é'crﬁcally toour buginess. < 4 v

As of December. 31 2007 we had 215 non unlon full tlme employees tWe belleve, that

our employee relations are satlsfactory o ‘e .. g

We have no forelgn operatlons and have only one operatmg segment EERCC 44
' L Voo e

Dlstnbutlon Customers and Suppllers .

o S - il o ) e t"' .

We stock 1nventory in all of our 21 locations. .\We deliver products to customers w1th our
fleet of 22 leased and 23 owned trucks and vans. We also make products ava1lable for p1ck up at
*our facilities. , : U

We sell primarily to cohiractors who purchase and install equilpm'ent and systems’ for
residential, commercial and' industrial-users. We had approximately 6,500 customers. in 2007.
No customer accounted for more than 2%, of consolidated net sales in 2007.. We belieye that the
loss of any one customer would not have a material adverse effect on our busmess We have no
long term agreement with any customer.

) . C oy

. We deal with our customers on a purchase order bv purchase order ba51s

‘

We purchase inventory from our vendors and maintain this 1nventory in our warehouses
to meet purchasing requirements and eri$ure continuous‘availability of mefchandise to Satisfy our
customers’ needs. We-occasionally accept the return of merchandise ;from the customer when
returned in unopened cartons, subject to a restocking fee. We do not nermally provide extended
payment terms to customers. We have no material long term agreements with any suppher The
Company enters into agreements with vendors which involve’ voluirie’ rebatés pricing and
advertising, all within the standard practices of, the industry. Additionally, certain-supplier
agreements limif the sale of competltwe products in de51gnated markets that the Company
serves. ' All purchases are made with domestlc vendors some of Whlch however ‘may
manufacture products in forelgn locatlons . - ‘

A LN " . v 144
. Certam ¢f .our supplier agreements lrmlt the sale of competmve products in: designated
.marketsthatweserve Voo St L I

1

In 2007, ‘two stippliers accounted' for 30% of’our purchases The\loss® of one or both of
these suppliers could have a ‘material adverse effect on ot businéss for at least a shbrt-term .
period. We belicve that the loss of any one of our other suppliers would not have a material
adverse effect on our business. :




Comgetltlo

L c o,

We compete with a number of d1str1butors natlonal chams and natlonal home centers,
and’ also with several air cond1t1omng ‘and heatmg equlpment manufacturers that distribute a
significant portion of their produicts through their own distribution’ organizations. There is no
single manufacturer, distributor or national chain or home center that dominates our market.
Competition is based.on product availability, customer service, price and quality. We work to
maintain a competitive edge by providing in-housé. training, technical sales support to our
customers and by employing experienced personnel at our point-of-sale locations.

Government Regulations, Environmental and Health and Safety Matters -

Our Company is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the

' generation, storage;' handling, - emission, transponatlon -and discharge of materials into the

environment. These include laws and regulations imiplementing tli¢ Clean Air Act, relating to

'minimum energy efficiency standards of HVAC systems and the production, servicing and

disposal of certain ozone- depletmg refrigerants used in such systems, as well as the,phase out of
certain refrigerants for use in equlpment manufactured after January 1, 2010. We are also
subject to regulations concerning the transport of hazardous materials, including regulations
adopted pursuant to the Motor Carrier Safety Act of 1990. OQur operations are also subject to
health and safety requirements including the Occupational, Safety and Health Act.(OSHA).
Management believes that the business is operated in substant1a1 compllance with all applicable
federal, state and local provisions relating to the protection 'Of the envnronment transport of
hazardous materlals and health and safety requnrements S -

Item 1A. Risk Factors - .
The followmg 1mponant factors could adversely impact our busmess
Our busmess is significantly :mpacted by changes in general and Iocal economic conditions.

Our busmess is substantlally affected by changes in general econom1c factors-outside of

our control, such as: * '
v I

employment levels and ]ob growth

a
b. populatlon growth

N 1

housmg demand or modemlzatlon of ex1st1ng homes R

o h

consumer confidence (Wh]Ch can be substantially affected by external conditions,
including mtemanonal hostilifies mvolvmg the United States); and

&

€ the avallablllty of fmancmg for homeowners and homebuyers

We may lose busmess to competitors and may otherwise be unable to favorably compete.

o~

See “Busmess -Competition” section above Several of the companies that compete with
the Company have’ substantially greater financial and other résources. No assurance can be
given that the Company will continue to be able to respond effectively to competitive pressures.
Increased competition by existing and future competitors could result in reductions in sales,
prices, volumes and gross margins that could materially adversely affect the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, the Company’s. success
depends, in part, on 1ts ability to gain market share from compet1tors




+

We are dependent on third party supphers to deliver eqmpmem parts and accessories to us for
resale to contractors. . R ‘ S N g

We have no long term contracts with our suppliers. We are at risk that our suppliers may
cease making their products available to us on acceptable terms or at all.. The loss of one or. both
of our two major suppliers could have a material adverse effect.on-our business. v

We are dependent upon uninterrupted delivery of products. R A o

Our Company depends upon transportation of products from our ‘suppliers and"fo our
customers. Any interruption or cessation of the transportatlon of these products by national or
regional stoppages, fuel shortages, or other, will s1gmﬁcantly 1mpa1r the Company s ablllty to.do
business. . - o N . . I

s .
st N

Our busmess may be negatively impacted by mventory losses or absolescence.

Our businesses depend on providing - current products in good condltlon from our
inventory,to the customer. Although we believe that we carry, adequate insurance to protect
ourselves from significant product losses, any unmsured loss of inventory,. damages to inventory,
- or theft of inventory could have a significant 1mpaet on our profitability. Altematwely, in the
event that we are unable to sell our mventory in a timely manner, the unsold product may
become obsolete and unsaléable and cause us to incur sngmﬁcant financial'losses.” * -

We could incur substantla[ losses in the event there are sudden changes m demand for our
products. . ' P v R A

Con o
A srgmﬁcant sudden increase in the demand for the Company $ products could result ina
short-term increase in the cost of lnventory purchases, wh1le a significant decrease in, demand
-could result in an increase in the amouint of.excess mventory quantities on-hand. Additionally,
the Company s estimates of future product demand may prove to be inaccurate. In any of these
cases, the Company may have understated or overstated the write- down requlred for excess and
obsolete inventory or otherwise incur additional financial losses Lo

Our busmess is largely dependenr upon seasonal weather varlabrhgv o ' L

. :

A major portion of our busmess is, the dlstnbutlon of heatmg, venulatmg and air
conditioning products. The sale of these products 1$ heav1ly mﬂuenced by temperature extremes
and any major shlft in the vanatlon of the cl1mate may have a sngmﬁeant adverse impact on our
business.- " ¢ t ‘. )

Rl

The Company s f mmcml Ieverage may result in a negatwe tmpact upon our abthty to do A
.busmess. T :

.Our Company i 1s ﬁnancrally leveraged Our leverage may place burdens on otir ability: to
comply with the terms of our indebtedness, may restrict our ability to pay certain term loans, and
further restrict our ability to operate and fulfill our financial obligations. The'amount of our debt
could have significant consequences. As an example, it could limit our abllrty to obtain futire
financing for working capital, capital expenditures, debt service requirements, acqu181t10ns ‘or'
other needs. It requires us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow, from operations to
the payment of our debt and reduces our ability to use cash for other purposes. It.has a negative
impact on our, flexibility in planning or reacting to business - changes "It increases our
vulnerability to.any downturn in our business or to:a significant rise in interest-rates,and may
place us at a competitive disadvantage with our competitors who are not in such a leveraged

position.

Our ability to meet ‘our debt service and other obligations depends upon our future
performance. Our earnings vary based upon all the condmons described herein and, hence, our
ability to pay our obligations is affected accordingly.

5
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‘. * We may be unable to renew our credit line at.the expiration of.its term or obtain alternate
financing which would have a srgmﬁcant impact on the continuation of the operation 6f our
busmess :

. ‘o
- St i

‘Since our debt-accrues-interest at'a f]oatmg rate extended perrods of h1gh interest rates
could affect the viability of our busmess e :

Our lender may call our loan due whlch would have a:significant impact on our ability to do
business o

' i P

. Our Company was in violation ‘'of our lender’s loan covenants for the third and fourth
quarters of 2007, for which’our’'lender has given us waivers: -Our lender has imposed a $35,000
fee for the waiver of the fourth quarter of 2007 covenants violation. If at any time our Company
is in violation of our lender’ s loan covenants in the future, the lender may waive this violation,
increase our interest rate by up to 3.0% and 1 1mpose addmonal fees upon us for the violation. The
increase in the interest rate or'a significant financial penalty would have a negative impact on the
operatlon of our'business. "If our lender does not wiive this violation and calls our loan due, it
may be difficult to obtaln' alternate finanéing whlch would have a 51gn|f' icait 1mpact on the
contmuatlon of the operatlon of our busmess' ' ' ‘ :

KN ¥ s

Our Company s busmess is depéndent upon the credltworthmess of our contractor customers. :

Our Company would be, significantly negatlvely impacted in the event our contractor
customérs are unable to pay their obligations to us. This may occur if the economy or housmg
market slows, unemployment rises, interest rates increase dramatlcally, a natural disaster occurs
within our -region, or an ‘act of terror substantrally stops our economy from operating for a
significant perlod of time. ' If these contractors are ‘unable to pay their accounts with-us, the-result
would be that we would be’ unable to pay our lendmg ‘indtitutions and vendorsk substantlally
rmpactmg our abrllty to operate, * - - I C

- ) mgT +

We could inciir substantial losses for asbestos-based clatms. o .‘r,'

See Item 3, Legal Proceedings for a potential material and adverse effect to us if we are
held liable for substantial asbestos. claims against a predecessor of one of our subsrdrarles
indemnitors fail to honor their mdemmﬁcatron agreements and 1nsurancé pollcles are’ held not to

‘cover these’ lrabrlmes L B s co c

1 P} . Ta

Our abthty to aperate our Company ejfecttvely cou[d be lmpatred tf we fatl to attract and
retain key personnel

Although Wllham Pagano a Director and Chief Executive Officer, has entered into an
employment agreement with us that expires in 2010, our ability to operate our businesses and
implement ‘our’ ‘strategiés - will depend upon our ability to attract -and retam other quallﬁed
personnel e AN G e ' :
Our ab:h’ty to operate our business effectively could be impairéd if we are unable to exrend the
leases for gur locations. L T ' ) ‘

. -

" . We lease 20 locations with approx1mately 420 000 square feet for showrooms, counter
sales. and warehousing.. We own no real estate. Our leases expire at various times between May'
31,2009 and April 30, 2018. Qur business.will be negatively impacted if we are unable to
extend our existing. leases at reasonable rates and- we are unable to lease alternative space on

acceptable terms. ~ * . A o

.



Our Company’s election. of Board of Directors and corporate actions reqmrmg shareholder
approval.could be controlled by a group of existing shareholders. . RIS

" As of December 31,2007, Mlchael Goldman our Chairman, William Pagano, ‘our Chiéf
Executive Officer and a Director, and Rita- Folger a'more than 5% shareholder, had ‘beneficial -
ownership of approximately 55% of the Company’s common stock and 0% of the. Company s
convertible preferred stock. If voted as.a group, Messrs. Goldman and Pagano and Mrs. Folger -
would have the power to elect all six members,of the Board of Directors and control all corporate

[ . t

actions requiring shareholder approval. - » e o . ;

Ttem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments e
- None. - - ’
Item.2. Properties . e L | '

Our prini:ipal executive offices dre located at 275 Wagarayv Road, Hawthome New
Jérsey 07506 and ar¢ consolidated with the admmlstratnle ofﬁces of our subsndlary, Universal
Supply Group, Inc. DI A P . , ' e

The Company mamtams 18 combmatlon sales and warehouse locatlons in Hawthome
Bogota, Augusta, North Brunswnck ‘Cedar Knolls, Wharton and Westv;lle New Jersey,
Elmsford, Hicksville, Middletown, Fishkill, New Windsor, Peekskill, Poughkeepsie, Suffern,
and Half Moon, New York; and Great Barrington and Pittsfield, Massachusetts. Additionally,
the Company maintains two separate warehouse locations in Cedar Knolls, New Jersey and New
Hampton, New York. These locations consist of approximately 420,000 square feet under leases
expiring between 2009 .and 2018 with - current aggregate annual rents of approxrmately
$3,110,097.

In addmon the Company has a'month-to-month lease for a portion’ of the New Wmdsor
New York location, consisting of-11 000 square feet, for $2,500 per month; a month- to-mohth
lease for a location in Willow Grove, 'Pennsylvama conS|stmg of 2,500 square feet, for $2/204
per month, and a monthi-to-month leasé-for a location in ‘North Adamis, Massachusetts cons1st1ng
of 6,000 square feet, for $1,425 per month. : ~ o

' ot r L. 1 : ‘ . i i FLEEEN ;E.

The premises located at Middletown, Fishkill, New Windsor and Suffern, New York and
Gréat Barrington and Pittsfield, Massachusetts also mclude showrooms of kltchen bathroom and
elecmcal ﬁxtures and accessones : K ‘

A ‘. Our premlses are sultable and adequate for their intended use and are adequately covered
by i msurance As of December 31, 200‘lr we leased all our facdmes

1
[

Item'3. Legal Proceedings

Universal Supply Group, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is a New
York corporation (“Universal”). . On June 25, 1999, Universal acquired substantially all of the
assets of Universal Supply Group, Inc:, a New Jersey corporation, including its narme, pursuant
to the'terms of a purchase agreement. The Cempany filed a copy of the purchase agreement with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 1999 as Exhibit 10(g) on:Form 10KSB;
and the Company filed a copy of an amendment to the purchase agreement on July 9, 1999 as
Exhibit 10(a)(ii) on Form 8-K. Subsequent to the sale, Universal Supply Group, Inc. (the sellmg
corporatlon) formerly known as Univeisal Engincering Co., Inc., changed its name to Hilco, Inc.
Hileo, Inc. acqulred the-assets of Amber Supply Co., Inc., formerly knowriras Ambeér: il Bumer
Supply‘Co., Inc., in 1998, prior to Hilco’s salerof’ assets to Universal: Hilco, Inc. is héreinafter
re'fe"rred-to as 'the “Predecessor.”” The majorlty shareholders of HllCO Inc were John A
Hildebrandt' and Paul Hildebrandt. -~ - et : ' o
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The Company understands that Predecessor and many other companies have been sued in
the Superior Court of New Jersey' (Middlesex County) by plaintiffs filing lawsuits alleging injury
due to asbestos. Currently, there exist 86 plaintiffs in these lawsuits relating to alleged sales of
asbestos products, or products contammg asbestos, by the Predecessor The Company never sold

any asbestos related products.

_ Of the existing plaintiffs as- of December 31,-2007, 15 filed actions in 2007, 7 filed
actions in 2006, 14 filed actions in 2005, 33 filed actions in 2004, 15 filed actions in 2003, and 2
filed actions in 2002. There are 126 other plaintiffs that have had their actions dismissed and 12
other plaintiffs that have settled as of December 31, 2007 for a total of $3,357,500. There has
been no judgment against the Predecessor. Subsequent to December 31, 2007, one of the
existing cases was dismissed by summary judgment.

Our Universal subsidiary was named by 36 plaintiffs; of these, 11 filed actions in 2007, 6
filed actions in 2006, 11 filed actions in 2005, 5 filed actions in 2001, 1 filed an action in 2000,
and 2 filed actions in 1999, Six plaintiffs naming Universal have had their actions dismissed
and, of the total $3,357,500 of settled actions, 2 plaintiffs naming Universal have settled for
$26,500. No money was paid by Universal in connection with any settlement. Following these
dismissed and settled actions, there currently exist 28 plaintiffs that name Universal

. As set forth i in more detail below the Company . has been mdemmﬁed against asbestos-
based clalms and insurance companies are defending the interests of the Predecessor and the
Company in these cases. .

‘Based on advice of counsél, the Company believes that none of the litigation that was
brought against the Company’s’ Universal subsidiary through December 31, 2007 is material, and
that the only matenal litigation that was brought against Predecessor.through that date was
Rhodes v. A.O. Smith Corporation, filed on April 26, 2004 in the Superior Court of New Jersey,
Law Division, Middlesex County, Docket Number MID-L-2979-04AS. The Company was
. advised that the Rhodes -case ,was settled for $3 250,000 (“Settlement”) under an agreement
reached in connection with a $10,000,000 j jury verdict that was rendered on August 5, 20035, The
Company was not a defendant in the Rhodes case.

-On April 29 2005, prior to the Rhodes. case trial, the Predecessor filed a third party
complaint against Sid: Harvey Industries (“zjlrd Party Complaint”) in an action demanding
contributor payment in connection with the Settlement. Sid Harvey Industries moved
successfully for summary judgment. The Predecessor filed an appeal as to the dismissal of
Predecessor’s ‘'Third Party Complaint. In a decision dated December 29, 2006, the Superior
Court of New Jersey, Appellate Division, reversed the dismissal of Predecessor’s Third Party
Complaint and remanded the matter for further proceedings as to Predecessor’s claim for
contrlbutlon

The Company -believes that Rhodes differed from the other lawsmts in that plaintiff
éstablished.that he contracted mesothelioma as a result of his occupational exposure to asbestos
dust and fibers and that a predecessor of the Company was a major suppller of the asbestos
' contalmng products that allegedly caused his disease. | :

Indemmf"catton I

John A Hlldebrandt Paul Hlldebrandt and the Predecessor have Jomtly and severally
agreed to indemnify our Universal subsidiary from and against any and all damages, liabilities
and claims due to exposure to. asbestos at any time prior to the June 25, 1999 closing of the
purchase agreement referred to earlier. | These agreements are set forth in the purchase
agreement. Paul Hildebrandt, one of the mdemmtors was a Dlrector of the Company from
September 29, 2004 to-January 28, 2005.




The indemnitors may use their own counsel to defend these claims. The indemnitors are
not liable for any settlement effected without their consent; The indemnitors may settle and pay
money claims without the consent of the Company. There is no indemnification unless claims
aggregate $50,000; once this trigger point is reached, indemnification is required for all claims,
including the first $50,000, but excluding claims of less than $10,000. The indemnification
requlrement survives at least until 30 days afterthe running of any relevant statutes of hmltatlon

The obligation of the indemnitors is joint "and’ several so that the Company can have
recourse against any one or more of these indemnitors, whether or not any other indemnitor has
previously defaulted on its ‘obligation to us. There are no other limitations to our rights to
indémnification. The Company cannot be certain that. the' mdemmtors have the ﬁnancral
wherewithal to meet their obllgatlons to mdemmfy the Company.

-t

Insurance . ) .. . . )

The assets that the Predecessor sold to us mcluded 1ts insurance pohcres and other
agreements and contracts. The policies provide coverage for liability accruing during the periods
for which premiums were paid. The Predecessor was formed in 1940. Copies of policies are
available for. each year beginning in 1970 and ending with the closing under the purchase

agreement in 1999. Copres of policies for the period from1 940 to 1969 are'not available.

Insurance companies acknowledge coverage for potentlal asbestos claims under certam of
these policies. Insurance companies under additional policies have reserved their right to deny
coverage but have continued to defend and mdemmfy the' Predecessor and the Company under
the contested policies: e A Cot :

There are periods durmg the years from 1940 to 1999 in which our Predecessor did not
have coyerage for potential asbestos claims. Subject to litigation, insurance companies may
maintain that the existence of these perlods results in coverage for only a portion ofa partlcular
injury that varies with the period during which there was asbestos coverage relating to; the i injury,
and that the balance of any settlement or judgment is to be paid by the insured. As of December
31, 2007, no insurance company has claimed any contribution for a gap in coverage except fora
claim for $160 made by one insurance company to the Predecessor in 1995. The Predecessor
asserted that it had no obligation to pay this amount and did not make any payment.

Insurance companies have, as of December 31, 2007, defended us and the Predecessor,,
and have paid all settlement amounts and defense costs. Except for $160 referred to above, the
insurance companies have not requested any payments from us or from the Predecessor.

Our Universal subsidiary has not engaged in the sale of asbestos products since its.
formation in 1997. Its product liability policies for all years since 1998 exclude asbestds claims.

+

General

Regardless of indemnification and insurance coverage, we do not in any event consider
our Compary to be liable for the asbestos-based.lawsuits that name us or for any other claim that
arises as a result.of actions or omissions by Predecessor companies. We expressly disclaimed the
assumption of any liabilities when we purchased the assets of the Predecessor. It is our opinion
that the existing asbestos litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the Company.
Nevertheless, we could be materially and adversely affected if we are held liable for substantial
asbestos claims or if the Company incurs substantial légal or settlement costs. This material and’
adverse effect would occur if indemnitors fail to honor their indemnification agreements and.
insurance is not available either because policy limits are exceeded, or because insurance
companies successfully claim limitations on their liabilities by reason of gaps in coverage or
otherwise. .




* Since-we regard as remoté the potential payment of any asbestos-based claim, we have
not accrued any balance for any period relating to asbestos claims, and we have not recorded any-
amount for asbestos clalms for any period in any-of our financial'statements.

N b L e R K W
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.- Thé Company is pemodically involved in. other l1t1gatlon in 'the ordmary course of
busmess The Company vigorously defends all matters in which the Company or its subsidiaries
are named defendants and, for insurable losses mamtams lsrgmﬁcant levels of insurance to
protect agamst adverse Judgments claims or assessments Although the adequacy of existing
- inSurance coverage or the outcome of any legal proceedmgs cannot. be predicted with certainty,
the Company does not believe the ult1mate 11ab111ty assoctated with any claims or lltrganon will
have a material impact to its financial condition or results of operatlons

M‘S_MQEMXME of Security Holders - B
. None' ! .’ SR B "‘. J.' - .
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[tem 5. Market for the Reglstrant’s Common Stock Convertlble Preferred Stock and
Related Stockholder Matters

(a) Pr1ce R_ge of Common Stock and Convert1ble Preferred Stock

T From July 11 2002 through March 30 2004 the Company $ common stock was traded.
on the Over the Counter (OTC) — Pink Sheets market. Commencing March 31, 2004, the
Company’s common stock and convertible preferred stock were traded on the Over the Counter
(OTC) Bulletin Board market The followmg table sets forth the quarterly high and low bid
prices during 2007 and 3006. The quotatiofs’ set forth below” fepresent 'inter-dealer quotations,
which exdlude retall markups markdowns and co,mmtssnons ‘and do not necessanly reflect actual
transacnons ' '

Ve T LY e I .

c e U © Commén Stock * ' ©  * - Convertible Preferred Stock

Y. R PR N i . o . .t DU i . L
Fifst Quarter * "' ' stes ! Poosiit c ' $195 8175
SecondQuarter '. * -'7 ‘ 'li.78 SRR EA '-'..1.50 PN ’. ' rmjl.85 | ‘-‘ '1.51
THird Ql._lar'ter‘ PR ‘:'l - },-;“-.,1-25'.',‘ U T es 135
Fourth Quarter 1.45 0.95 ‘ 1.S6 1.16
".t | ‘ . o o Yowadon N | S | .
o ' i .7..-- .’ """“.Comn'i_onl:S‘ltock"".“:l---t'i« '? 5 Conyertible'l?referred Stock
CFistQuater . $238 . .°, $195 . 240 L7
secenaojina'rié‘rf S L200° St T2ss 200
Third Quarter ~ - L gspe e e qgs ot WL a3 200
Fourth Quarter . 2.35 1.7(l 2.40 | 1.80'
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. TN e Tl LT gt e . T :
e ol R P oo Number of . T oo
’ e set_)ceugtslszcilq_ " "Weighted- T Number of
R . T e e e upon exercise _average: . securities
. - : of exercise price . remammg
outstandin of available for
options & outstanding future issuance
S warl?ants ;n g options, under equity
“ ' rights warrants and compensation
o L g rights plans
1996 Stock Incentive Plan;
Equ‘ity'cbmpensation plans approved by security holders 22,000 § 025 0
" - ’ B VI ’ . .
_Equity-compensation plans not approved by security holders ; . 0 A 0.00 0
ColoniallCommercial Corp .2006 Stock Pllatn‘: ."' , o
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders =+ ' 75,000 $ 1.85 925,000
I' I. ,“-_clt.j " ;,.' R ot '. + -. J. 4 - | =
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 0 78 ,0.00 e 0
e : ) S S TR )
.Total . 97,000 .8 149 o 925,000

. . - . . .
i - - VR SRR BN ] ¢ . . . . +

(b) Approx1mate number of common and convert1ble preferred stockholders N

1

t

T

.

‘o

1Rl . v
ot i 1 . . . a

. . ¢ '
M LY . R o T .- '

e
.

I

V.

b T

Approx1mate Numberof Record Holders

Title of Class (As oftMarch' l-; 2008y . i

Coninion st'ock"par:value $.05 per shale .\ \ 7’ '."l"'. § R - R '2.?0 . ',; l
Convertlble preferr.ed stock par value :5‘05 per share / : , 838 , ', B

(C) Dividends " .‘"" N R A L '~| . -)*". ' -li

' The Company does not con,template common stock d1v1dend payments in the near future
and is restr1cted from _paying any d1v1dends under its credlt facrlny

‘ .

(d) Securities Authornzed for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans;..

.A',"".IJ,

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the securities authonzed for
1ssuance under the 1996 Stock Incentl\l/e Plan, and the Colonial Commercral Corp 2006 Stock

Plan, as of December 31 2007

f1e '

Egurty Comgensatlon Plan Informatlon

PETFERIN

v

MR S

1

. r

:'jr '

."
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In June 1996 the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”) to |

grant options to key employees and other persons who render service (non-employee) to the

Company. The plan expired on December 31, 2005.

+

At December 31, 2007, a total of 22,000 gptions were outstanding under the Company’s

1996 Stock Option Plan, which expire in June 2009.




On September 29, 2006, the Company adopted the Colonial Commercial Corp. 2006
Stock Plan, (the “2006 Plan”). The 2006 Plan enables the Company to grant equity and equity-
linked awards to our Directors, officers, émployees and other persons who provide services to
the Company. The 2006 Plan is intended to allow us to provide incentives that will (1)
strengthen the desire of hlghly competent persons to provide services to us and (2) further
stimulate their efforts.on our behalf.

On December 6, 2006, (the “Grant Date”), 100,000 optlons havmg an expiration date in
2016, were granted under the Company’s 2006 Plan, of which 40,000 options vested and became
exercisable immediately and 20,000 options vest and become exercisable on each of the first
three anniversaries of the Grant Date. On January 22, 2007, Phillip Siegel reSJgned as a Director
and his 15,000 options that would have vested on each of the first three anniversaries of the
Grant Date were forfeited and he had sixty days from the date of his resignation to exercise his
10,000 vested options. Mr: Siegel did not exercise his 10, 000 vested options and said optlons
were forfeited. As of December 31 2007, 75 ,000 “options were outstanding under the
Company’s 2006 Stock Option Plan.- " . C T

- .(e) Purchases of Equity Securities ‘ oo

On November 21,2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up
to $250,000 of its common and/or preferred stock in open market or privately negotiated
purchases. There is no expiration date associated with this program. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company purchased 8,150 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $9,832
and approximately $240, 168 remains available for repurchase under the program. The Company
accounted for these transactions utlhzmg the constructive retirement method.

" The table below sets forth purchases of the Company’s stock for the quarter ended

December 31, 2007.

Maximum
Number (or
Total Approximate
Number of Dollar
Shares (or Value) of
. Units) Shares (or
Purchased Units) that
Total as-Part of ‘May Yet Be
Number Average Publicly Purchased
of Shares Price Paid -~ Announced Under the
{or Units} . per Share Plans or. Plans or
' Purchased (or Unit) Programs Programs
October 1, 2007-October 31, 2007 0o § 0 .0 - $250,000
November 1, 2007-November 30, 2007 - 0 ' 0 -0 250,000
December 1,.2007- December 31,2007 8,150 1.21 8,150 . 240,168
Total - 8,150 $ 1.21 8,150 $ 240,168
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data .

Years Ended December 31,

2007 h 2006 2005, 2004 2003

Sales 7 $B425865  §71494652° $66.690.045 $61454128  $44,671.136
Operating income - L rasses) 2,017,082 347,685 .'_1.58(5.076‘ 1167591

Net (loss) ineame ‘ e | | S:fL@ v. M‘ m LZMﬁ_Z %ﬂ 'QM
Incomepercommon._ share: a 3 ' "!_ | o T k C .
Basic: : = - . A i

Y s Lo & -
. . -

Net (loss) income per common share  §__._ (001), $ - ...0I8 3 048 $-_'_ 045 §. 0.60

! : .o .o . T T CL B C

Diluted:
Net (loss) income per common share 3 001 3 016 § 040 3. 034 § - 034
P ' ' . " December 31, o
L .“ f . . i N . B} t ] “ .
2007 ., 2006 . . 2005 . 2004 2003 .
Total assets ’ e : $36,107,221‘ $28,517,94;4 _$42.7,2l'7,854 .35'24,248,5.16 $20,4§§9',"9531-
' R o,

Current liabitities = .

Borrowings under credit facility . . 18,027,055 13,615,696 11,745,985 12,325,209 12,232,030 (1)

Other ] 10044287 6832504 8216989 6,617,377  7,089,276(2)
Long-term liabilities, less current o
. . . - . S . ". L . R . o v - - - " ‘ 1
obligations . 267314 1317394 C1d00834 . 13087747 326700

(,1)' The amounts shown in the table as’ “Borrowmgs under Credit Facnhty, as of December
' 7+ 31, 2003, include $2,500,000 which Coloriial Commercial Corp. and Universal agreed to
" pay to their lending bank in consideration of the barik releasing Colonial Commercial

* Corp. and Universal from their guarantees to the bank of an additional $3, ,300, 695 of
Atlantic’ Hardware & Supply Corporatlon S (“Atlantlc”) line of credlt Atlantlc is an
mactwe wholly owned sub31d1ary of the Company with no assets o

(2) - Amount includes $219 007 of contmgent habllmes of Atlantlc This llabllxty was settled '
in June 2004.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion_and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results-of
Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

¥

The following maferial contains forward- lookmg statements relatmg to such matters as
antlclpated financial performance and busrness prospects. When used in this Report, the words
“anticipates,” “expects,” “believes,” “may,” “intends™ and similar expressions are intended to be
among the_ statements that identify forward-looking statements. From time to time, the Company

may also publlsh forward- looking statements. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

LN 1d

1995 provides'a safe harbor for forward-looking' statements. Forward-looking statements

involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the consummation of certain events

referred to in this report, the availability of financing, technological changes, competitive factors,
maintaining customer and vendor relationships, inventory obsolescence and availability, and .
other risks detailed in the Company’s periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange

- ‘Commission, which could cause the Company’s actual results and-experience to differ materially

from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the Company’s forward- lookmg
statements.

‘Crnitical Accounting Policies. T o L

The accounting policies below are critical to the Company’s business operations and the
understanding of results of operations. The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial
condition and results of operations are based upon the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance' with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.' The preparation .of these financial statements requires the
Company to make_estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contmgent assets and liabilities as the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that are
believed to be redsonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
Judgments about the carrying values of asset and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
bther sources. Actual results may differ from"these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. . .

. Revenue for the Company primarily consists of, sales of heating, ventilation and air
conditioning equipment, climate control systems and’ plumbmg and electrical fixtures .and
supplies..Revenue is recogmzed when the eammgs process. is complete, which is generally upon
shlpment or delivery. of products in, accordance with agreed upon shlppmg terms and when title
arld nsk of loss transfers 10 the customer The Company has no_ further obllgations subsequent to
shlpment or. dehvery Customers have the rlght to return defectlve products Wthh are
Substantlally covered under the manufacturer s warranty Tlge customer recelves a credlt from
the COmpany for defectrve products returned and the Company recerves a. correspondmg credit
prov1ded by the manufacturer The only warranty provrded on products sold i is provrded by the

“panufacturers 17 0 T U sl 0 s Ty, Ll
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The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful dccounts for ‘estimated losses
resulting from .the inability of its customers to make required payments. The Company
establishes and monitors-the allowance for doubtful .accounts based on the credit risk of specific
customers, customer concentrations, historical trends and other information. The Company- had
accounts receivable of $11,364,038 and an allowance for doubtful. accounts of $478,857 as.of
December 31, 2007. Although the Company believes its. allowance ‘is sufficient, if the financial
condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resultmg in an- 1mpa1rment of their
ability to make payments additional allowances would be required: 't : S e

) The Company wntes down its inventories for est1mated slow moving and obsolete goods
in accordance with the lower of cost or market value based upon assumptlons ‘about fiituré
demand and market conditions. A significant sudden i mcrease in'thé demand for the Company’s
products could result.ina short-tefm increase in the cost of inventoryspurchases, while a
significant decrease in demand could result in an increase-in. the amount of ‘excéss -inventory
quantities on-hand. Additionally, rthe Company’s estimates of future. product demand.may prove
to be inaccurate, in which case the Company may have understatéd or overstated the wrrte-down
requrred for excess and obsolete inventory. = - . T

Under Statement of Frnancral Accounting Standards No. 142 goodwrll is revrewed at
least annually for impairment. In assessing the recoverabrhty of the Company 5 goodwrll the
Company must make ,assumptions regardmg esumated future cash ﬂows and other factors to :
determine the fair value of the respective assets and hablhtres of thé reporting unit. Upon,
adoptlon ‘and again as a result of the Company’s annual 1mpa1rment tést, there was no 1nd1cat10n
of impairment for goodwill acquired in prior business combmauons If the Company s estrmates
or its related assumptions change in the future the Company may bé requlred to record
impairment charges related to its goodwill. Goodwill and other intangible assets amountmg t0
"$1 628,133 and $366,376 at December 31, 2007, respectlvely, consist of 2 assets arlsmg from
‘acquisitions.

The Company has accounted for, and currently accounts for, income taxes in accordance
with Statement 109 “Accountmg for. lncome Taxes.” * This statement, estabhshes ﬁnanmal
accounting and reporting standards for the effects of i mcome taxes that result from an enterpr1se s
actiyities during the current, and preceding years. It requires an asset and l1ab111ty approach for
ﬁnancral accountlng and reportmg of income’ ‘taxes. The reahzatlon of future tax- beneﬁts of
deductrble temporary dlfferences and operating loss or tax credit carryforwards will depend on
whether the Company will have sufficient taxable income of an appropnate charactet withiri the
carryback and carryforward -period permitted by .the tax law to allow for utilization 'of the
'deductlble amourits and carryforwards Without sufﬁc1ent taxable income to offset the deductible -
amounts and carryforwards the related tax benefits. wrll exp1re unused. The Company evaluates‘
both’ positive and negative evidence ifi making a determmatlon as to whether it is more likely
fHan not that all or some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be reahzed As of December
31, 2007, the Company had a deferred tax valiation allowance of approxrmately $6,800, 000

Compar1son of Year Ended December 31, 2007' w1th Year Ended December 31, 2006

Sales increased by 15: 3%, or $10, 931 213, to $82 425 865 for the year, ended December
31, '2007 from $71,494,652 for the same period in 2006. The inclusion of sales from our
acquisition of S&A Supply, Inc., which occurred on September 10,-2007,. accounted .fon
$4,640,000 of this increase: The remamcler of the increase is related to the opening of our branch
in the Albany, New York area in April 2007, the inclusion of sales of,appliances for the full year
of. 2007, as opposed to the Jast four months of 2006, and increased sales of air conditioning
products in our existing New York locations due to increased market penetrat1on telated to
improving sales focus and service levels to our customers,
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' Gross profit increased by 9.9%, or’ $2,117,686, to $23,554,892 for .the year ended
December 31, 2007.from-$21,437,206 for the same period in 2006.- Gross profit expressed as a
percentage of sales decreased by 1.4% to 28.6% in 2007 compared to'30.0% for the.comparable
period in 2006. The lower gross profit -expressed as -a percentage of sales was caused by
increased sales of lower margin air conditioning equipment and appliances, as well as a
reflection of the more competitive market place. Cost of sales excludes the distribution costs of
| _ incoming freight, purchasing, receiving, inspection, warehousing and handling costs, as these
- costs are included in our selling, general and administrative expenses. Qur-gross margins may
not be comparable to those of other entities since some entities include these dlstrrbutron costs in
the cost of sales. These distribution costs were $545,985 and $43l 780 for the years ended
December 31,,2007 and 2000, respectrvely C .

‘i Operatmg income decreased by 37.6%, or $758 131 to $1, 258 951 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 from $2,017,082 for the same period in 2006. This percentage decrease in
operating income reflects the effect of the difference between the ificrease in gross profit of 9.9%
compared to the increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of 14.8%. The increase
in selling, general and administrative expenses was $2,875,817 to $22,295,941 for the year ended
December 31, 2007 from $19, 420,124 for the same period in 2006. This was caused by an
incfease in expenses for accountifig and professronal fees related to the implementation of

.controls and procedures required under the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 and additional requrred

' ﬁlmgs ‘with the Securities and Exchange Compmission in the amount of $239,000, an increase in

' bad debt expense related to the declining economic condmons within the construction mdustry in

the ‘amount of $486,000 and 2 non-cash £xpense related to.the death benefit due to the estate of

* the Company s founder in December 2007 in the amount of $45,000. Addrtronally we incurred

approxrmately $1 955 ,000 in added expenses ‘related to the operation of our new Albany, New

York location in Apnl 2007, our appliance division’s expenses being recorded for the full yéar of

‘ 2007 rathet than four months in 2006 and the added selling, general and administrative for the.
' operatlon of S&A Supply, Inc. which commenced on September 10, 2007.

' Other income’ increased by 7.0%, or $19, 352 to $297,218 for the year ended December
31, 2007 from $277 866 for the same per1od n 2006 Thls increase 15 pnmanly the resujt of an
increase in service charges collected from’ customers’. past_due_invoices in the year ended
Decembeér 31, 2007." Interest expense, net increased by 10. 9%, or $I47 534, to $l 502,319 for
o the year ended December 31, 2007 from $1,354, 785 for the same perlod in 2006 The mterest
expense 1ncrease is the result of i 1ncreasmg mterest rates, and’ mcreased borrowmgs under the
' crédit line to support the' acqursltton of S&A Supply, Inc,,  the operat1on of our new locat1on m
Albany, New York, and, in general, higher inventory levels .and accounts recelvable related t6
'mcreased sales The revolving credit line bears interest at .25% below ‘the prime rate and the
-pr1me rate was 7.25% at December 31, 2007 compared to 8.25% at December 31, 2006. As a
result, pre tax income decreased by 94, 3%, or $886,313, to $53, 850 for the year ended December
31, 2007 from $940 163 for the same period in 2006. S

The Company s income tax expense for the year ended December 31 2007 was $105 487
compared to $124, 391 for the same period in 2006. The Company records state income tax
expense. based on year-to-date profit of the Company and its subsidiaries and records federal
alternative minimum tax expense as the Company utilizes its net-operating loss carryforwards to
offset any- federal taxes due. Comparison of the Company’s effective tax rate from period to
period may not be consistent as the Company’s subsidiaries-file separate state tax returns and the
Company files a consolidated federal return. State taxes vary with the profit of the Company and
its separate subsidiaries, while federal taxes are based upon the consohdat1on of the: Company
and its subsrdlanes . cwt -0 T v
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The Company’s net income decreased by 106.3%, or $867,409, to a'net loss of $51,637
for the year ended December 31; 2007, compared to net income of $815,772 for the'same period
" in'2006. This decrease in net income was caused by the decrease in pre tax income of $886 313,
as stated above. ' . - : o - '

Comparrson of Year Ended’ December 31, 2006 wrth Year Ended December 31, 2005

. Sales increased by 7.2%, or $4,803, 707 to $?l 494, 652.for the year‘ended December 31,
2006 from $66,690,945 for the same period in 2005.. The increase in sales is primarily a result of
increased market penetration at two of the Company’s subsidiaries, an increase in general
lndustry pricing, and increased sales of addltlonal hydronic heatmg product lines. The increases
in these arcas were offset by weaknesses in sales of heating equipment, parts and accessories
related to an unusually warm November. and, December as. well as weaknesses in sales of
commercial control systems , - :

: - Gross- profit increased by 65%, or $1 306, 809 to $21, 430 206 for the 'year ended

December 31, 2006 from $20,130,397 for the same perlod in 2005. Gross profit expressed-as-a
percentage of sales decreased'by'0.2%'to 30.0% in 2006 compared to 30.2% for the.comparable
period in*2005.  The lower gross' profit expressed as a' percentage of sales was' caused by a
decrease in sales of parts for heating systems’due to a warmer November and December:- The
sale of parts usually commands higher margins than equipment sales. Cost of sales excludes the
distribution costs of mcommg freight, purchasing, receiving, inspection, warchousing and
handlmg costs, as these costs. are included in our sellmg, general and administrative expenses.
- Our gross margins may not be comparable to those of other, entltles since some entities include
these distribution costs in the cost of sales. These drstrlbutlon costs were $431,780 and $421, 248
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectlvely . s .

1

: Operating- .income decreased byrI4 1%, ‘ot $330,563, to $2,017,082 for the year ended
December 3.1, 2006 from $2,347,645 for the same period in 2005. This percentage decrease in
operating income reflects the effect of the difference between the increase in gross profit of 6.5%
compared to the increase in selling, general and administrative expénses'of 9.2%. Thé increase
in selling, general and administrative expenses was $1,637,372 to $19,420,124 for the year.ended
" December 31, 2006 from $17,782;752 for the, same period in 2005... This was caused by
increased, expenses for addmonal _personnel to improve, customer service, and added cost for
1ncreased health insurance, gasolme utility expenses and decreasmg sales,in our heating
replacement parts and commercral -control . systems busmess Staffing costs mcreased by
$802,077, while costs for trucking, fuel, and facrhtres increased by $1 97 670. .. . :

Other income increased by 1.9%, or $5;269, to $277,866.for the-year ended December
31, 2006 from$272,597 for the same period in 2005. "This-increase is primarily the result of an
increase in servicé charges collectéd from cuStomers’ past due invoices in-the' year ended
December 31, 2006. ‘Interest expense; net increased by 29.7%, or '$310,331; to: 1,354,785 for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from $1,044,454 for the same period in 2005 The:interest
expense increase is the r_esult of increasing interest rates and increased borrowrngs under the
credit line to support Higher'inventory levels ‘and accounts receivable related to increased;sales
and higher inventory levels. The revolvmg credit line bears interest at .25% below prime rate,
which was-8.0% at December 31, 2006 compared to 7.25% at December 31,2005 As a result,
pre tax income decreased by 40.3%, or $635,625, to $940,163 for the year ended December 31
2006 from $1,575,788 for the same perrod in 2005+ ... g -

i . P
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The Company’s net income decreased by 60.5%, or $1,247;080, to $81:5,772 for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared to net income of $2;062,852 for the same period in: 2005,
This decrease in net income was caused by the decrease in pre-tax income of $635,625, as stated
above, in addition to. the effect of the inclusion of a deferred tax benefit in the year ended
December 31, 2005 in the amount of $641,500 with no beneﬁt recognized in the year ended
December 31, 2006. In 20035, the tax benefit resulted: from- extendmg the tax benefit calculation
from a two year eammgs pl’O_]eCtlorl to a three year eammgs prOJectlon due,to 1mproved eammgs
predictability.’ 4 e T VA o .

A . . = - - EE .
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Liquidity and Cam_tal‘ Resources

. . L Poang S O P R TS N L
. Cred1t Facility . C e e, oo 0¥
In* cénnection with the acquisition of S&A”Supply, Inc.; the Company ‘amendéd -it$
secured credit facility (“Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, Natlonal Association (“Wells”) to
increase the Company’s facility from $15 million to $25 million and extended the maturity of the
facility from August 1, 2010 to August 1,.2012. The $25 million facility includes a $1 million
structural sublimit payable in 24 equal monthly installments; and up-to $500,000. of seasonal
over-advances. The initial interest rate on the term loan is-prime minus 0.25%, but the interest
rate on up to 75% of the loan’s outstanding balance can be conyerted by the Company to 2%2%
over LIBOR.. ‘ S S E UL ,;1‘_,_ T i

The révolving credit line bears interest at” 25% below pnme ‘At December 31, 2007, the
Company had a standby letter of credit, which exp1res ‘on’ July 31, 2008." The standby letter of
credit reduces the availability of the credit ‘facmty by $300; 000 ‘and additional ” réserves
détermined by the bank further reduce the avallablhty of the credlt‘famht by $100, 000
Borrowings under the credit facility are secured by the availabls ‘asséts of the’ Company, ‘as
defined in the Agreement Availability under the. revolvingicredit line was $718,583 as of
December 31, 2007 and is determined by .a percentage of available assets as. defined-in_the
Agreement, less letters of credit and reserves: - The balance: outstandmg under- the revolying line
of credit was $18, 027 055 as of December.31, 2007. The interest rate on the tevolving credit
facility as of December 31, 2007 was 7.0%. SR L RN I UYL B .

* ‘The Company believes that the credit facility is sufﬁment to finance its current operatmg
iiceds. However, the business of the Company would be materrally and adversély affected if the
bank demands payment of the loan and the Company is unable to reﬁnance thé-loan. In thé ,
évent that Mr. Pagano no longer performs the’duties 'of the President of Umversal or'the Vice -
President-of RAL for any reason other than death or dlsablllty, the ‘Company will be considered
in default of its credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association unless a waiver is
obtained.. The facility contains covenants that are determined annually, and relate to the-
Company,'s monthly.and quarterly net income, quarterly.cash flows, quarterly tangible net worth,
and annual capital expenditures. . The facrhty also - restrigts . the. payment of dividends,
subordinated debt and purchase of securities. .~ The, continuation of..the credit facility- s
conditioned upon-the Company and Wells reaching. agreement on the covenants. While the
Company and Wells have reached mutually agreeable covenants for 2008, there is no assurance
that they will be able to-do so in the future.. As of December 31, 2007, the Company was.in
default of its monthly and quarterly net income and quarterly. cash (flow: covenants; however,
. Wells has waived this event of default and reset the financial covenants for. 2008 for a fee-of
' $35,000. This waiver applies to the quarter ended December.31, 2007\and does not extend

beyond this period. :

18




In addition to this fee, Wells stated that they may require the Company to delay the
repayment of a $750,000 note to Goldman Associates of New York, Inc. (“Goldman
Ass$ociates”) which was due on June 30, 2008 Goldman” Assoc1ates has extended the term of
~ payment of this note to Jatwary 1, 2009. " Michael Goldman, Chairmati of the Board of. the
Company, is the beneficial owner of Goldman Associates. For additional information regarding
Mr. Goldman and Goldman Associates, see Part I11, Item 13., Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence below.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $622,723 in cash compared'with $482,251
at December 31, 2006.

Net cash provided by operatmg activities was $1,048,905 for the year ended December
31, 2007. The net cash provided by operating activities for the 2007 period is primarily a result
of non-cash charges of $1,322,365 offset by a net loss of $51,637 and changes in.operating assets
and liabilities of $221,823. The increase in accounts receivable of $1,426,013 was pr1mar1ly a
result of slower payments made by our customers under credit terms that have not changed.. The
increase in accounts payable of $2,108,151 was primarily due to increased 1nventory levels and,
in some cases, the extension of vendor terms: o - :

r

Cash flows used in mvestmg activities were $5,154, 470 during the year ended December
31, 2007 due to $451,095 of purchases of equ1pment and $4 703,375 cash payment for the
acquisition of S&A net of cash acquired.

Cash ﬂows provrded by financing activities of $4, 246 037 con81sted of $4,411,359 in net
borrowings under-the credit facility-revolving-credit, $13,000 received from the exercise of stock
options and $46,752 received from the issuance.of notes payable. .Cash flows used in financing
activities c0n51sted of $215,242+for repayments of notes payable and $9,832 for the repurchase of

(]

common stock. © -+ 7 e RO A R T "

We antlcrpate S&A Supply to be a proﬁtable subsndtary, therefore ‘cash flows provrded
by operating activities should more than offset future cash flows used in investing and financing
‘activities; such-as purchasés of equipment and increased.borrowing under the ‘credit facility. In
addition, the seasonality of the. S&A Supply’s-business is similar to the Company 5 seasonallty,
resulting in cash flow trends ofa similar nature SRR 5o SR

EgultyTransactlon R I

_ During the year ‘ended December 31 2007, the Company 1ssued 52,000 shares of
common stock pursuant to -the exercise .of stock options., On January.2, 2007, Bernard Korn
obtained 52,000 shares of common stock by exercising 52,000 outstanding stock optlons Mr,
Komn was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company until his resignation-on Apnl

17,2006 and served as.a-noh-executive employee. of the:Company until his death on December
12, 2007. T TR R S R

During the year ended December 31 2007, no shares of redeemab]e preferred stock were
converted into common stock. A% of December 31; 2007 the number of convertlble preferred
shares outstanding was 467,500. - :

AT L T CoeTy P P

On November 21 2007 the Board-of Directots authorized the- Company to repurchase up
to $250,000 of its common and/or preferred stock in. open market or privately negotiated
purchases. There is no expiration. date ‘associated with this program.” As of December 3.1, 2007;
the Company purchased 8,150 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase pricé of $9,832
and approximately $240,168 remains available for repurchase under the program:r The Company
accounted for these transactions utilizing the constructive retirement method.
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Contractual Obligations: . o e T

The followmg table represents certarn contractual commrtments assoelated w1th operatmg
agreements ‘obligations to ﬁnancral mstltutlons and other long term debt ‘obligations. as of
December31 2007: :

. "

“ Payment Due by Périod (in thousands)

.Less than Coo o L L A‘ Over

Total 1 Year 23 Years  4-5Years 5 Years
Operatingleases | $.20221 .S 3840 5 6686 S5025 . S 4670
Co'mpensation a‘gree.r'nents " 1340 ) . ) 495 . '. 845 ‘ " ':. .
No'tespayabl‘e ' . "1,564. | - = L 296 "1-,238 -' - 30 -
Notes payahle interest o IOd SR 36 A .70" ; \ | | .— -
Line of ¢credit -+ * 'r IS 027 18, 027' ot .-‘J'- ¢ e - -
Line of credit interest e T e ,‘ o L )
’t"otals .o .s" 42,520, - _‘:_- $ 23956 .  $ 8839 '$ 5,055 '$ 4,670

Notes payable carry a fixéd interest percentage rate per annum, with the exception of a
$750,000 note that accrues interest at.the prime rate. - “Notés payable interest” in the table
assumes an average annual prime rate of 7.25%. The prime rate as of December 31, 2007 was
7. 25% See Note 6, Notes Payable of the Frnanmal Statements for the terms of these notes.

“Line of credit” in.the table is shown as a less than :one year-obligation® because the :

lending bank may demand payment at any time. The line of credit consists of a revolving credit
line that bears, interest at .25% below prime. - “Line of credit interest” in the table assumes that
the principal amount outstanding on the line is paid in*full on December .31, 2007, that the
principal amount to be repaid on that date will be $18,027,055 (which is the principal amount
that was outstanding on December 31, 2007), and assumes that the average prime rate will be
7.25% in 2008. The prime rate was 7 25% as of December 31,:2007. -See Note- 5 Frnancmg
Arrangements, of'the Financial Statements for the terms of the line-of credtt

Impact of Inﬂatlon and Seasonahty_ S N -'. .

+  To date,*rnﬂatlon has had a minor 1mpact on the Company s operations causing lrmrted
price increases in certain product lines. The, Company’s business is affected by significant
outdoor temperature swings. Demand related, to -the resrdentra] central air conditioning
replacement market is highest in ‘the’ second and third quarters with demand for heating
equipment usually highest in the fourth quarter.

Item TA, Ouantltatlve and Qualltatlve Dlsclosures About Market Risk

‘ Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a ﬁnanmal instrument, derivative
or non-derivative, cansed by fluctuations in. interest -rates, forelgn exchange rates and equity
prices. The Company has no financial instruments that give it exposure-to foreign exchange
rates or equity prices. - o SO T : -
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The Company’s pre-tax. earnings and ¢ash flows are exposed to changes in interest
rates. All borrowings under its credit facility bear interest based. on the prime-rate less .25%, and -
a $750,000 note to Goldman Associates of Néw, York, Inc. bears interest at the prime rate. A
hypothetical 10% adverse change in such rates would reduce the pre-tax earnings'and cash flows
by approximately. $131,627 over a one-year period; assuming. the borrowing levél remains
consistent with the outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2007. .The 'fair value of the
borrowings under the credlt facility is not affected by changes in marketqnterest rates. '

The Company’ s remaining mterest-bearmg obligations are at fixed rates of interest and
as such, do not expose the pre-tax earnings and cash flows to changes in market interest. rates.
The change in fair value of the Company’s.fixed rate obligations resultmg from a_hypothetical
10% adverse change in interest rates would not be material. Lt o

Item 8. Fmanclal Statements and Supp]ementarv Data

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, together ‘with the Reports of _
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon of Eisner LLP and Welser LLP appear
herein. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, appearing on page F-1..." .+ &

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements Wlth Accountants on Accountlng and Fmanclal
Disclosure ' :

LB ' : X H - H ¢

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures, P ' C

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures® S

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer. and "Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls,and procedurespursuant
to. Rule 13a-15 under the Securities. Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls-and procedures, management recognizes that.
any controls and procedures, no maiter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of
disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constramts and
that management is requlred to apply its _}udgment in evaluatmg the beneﬁts of pOSSIbIe controls
and procedures relative to their costs.

Based on management’s evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, our disclosure'controls and procedures are
designed at a reasonable assurance level and ; are effectlve to provnde reasonable assurance that
information we are required to disclose in reports that we file 'or submit under-the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities
and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that such information is-accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisiorns regarding required disclosure. '

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

¥
-
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Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control

- over financial reporting; as defined in'Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management conducted: an

évaluation: of the 'effecti\{en‘ess'aof our internal control .over financial ‘reporting based on the
framework in-Internal Control—Integrated“Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded
that our internal .control- over financial reporting was effective as -of December 31, 2007.
Management reviewed the results of their assessment with our Audit Committee.

..+ This Annual Report on Form 10-K.does not-include an attestation report of the
Compiny's independent registered public .accounting firm™ regarding internal control  over
financial reporting. Mdhagement's. report was not subject to attestation by the Coimpany's
registered public accounting firm pursuant to-temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange

- Commussion that permit the Company,to provide, only managements report. in thls Annual

Report on Form 10 K.

' T iy ¢ [N o

Changes in Internal Control Over F1nanc1al Renomng N Fo

N

We regularly review" our system of internal control over ‘financial reportmg and make
changes to our processes and systems to improve controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring
that we maintain' an effective internal control environment.” Changes may ificlude such activities
as 1mplemer1t|r_1g new, more efficient systems, consolidating activities, and migrating processes.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting,

Item 9B. Other Information Coa Ly e,

o'

On March 27, 2008, the Company amended Convemble Notes dated as of July 29 2004
payable sto each Rita Folger and William Pagano (“Amended Convertible Notes”).” The

‘Amended Convértible Notes provide for the first: maturlty date of each note to be extended froin

Junel 2008 to Januaryl 2009: : P

.., On March 27,. 2008, the. Company amended the' Secured Note dated July 24 2004
payable to Gofdman Associates of New York, Inc. (“Amended Secured Note™). The Amended
Secured Note provides for the matunty date of the note to be extended from June 30, 2008 to
Januaryl 2009 :

For addltlonal mformatlon regardmg tha Folger Wllllam Pagano and Goldman
Associates of New, York,, Inc., see Part III, Item 13., Certain Relationships and - Related
Transactlons .and Director [ndependence below
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PARTIN L

Item 10. Directors.. Executiye Officers and Corporate Governance :

" The names, ages and posrtrons of' the Reglstrant s Dlrectors and executlve ofﬁcers are
listed below, along with a brref account of their busmess experlence “during the last five years
Officers are appointed annually by the Board of D1rect0rs at' its first meetmg followmg 'the”
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and from time' to t1me it the pleasure of the Board. Theré are”
no famlly relationships among these ‘Directors and ofﬁcers except for Melissa; Goldman—
Williams, who is thé daughter of- M1chael Goldman nor any arrangements or dnderstandmgs
between any Diréctors or officers and any other person pursuant to wh1ch any of such ofﬁcers
were selected as executive officers. : . . RS

" Name T o o Age xPo_si{tionl;wi_th the'C'on1hany
Directors-and Executive Ofﬁ‘cers:'_' S ..*' - ‘ BT ",' o IR
Dr. E. Bruce ‘Fredrikson- pol St 69 D1rector Chairman of Audrt Cormmttee :
Melissa Goldnian-Williarns " . ~,b 40 Drrector‘ . ' . |
l\/[ichael Goldman; ! _:- a ', a '; 69 Director,-:éhalnnan of the'lgoard. | S
Stuart H. Lubow | 50 Drrector Chalrman of Nommatmg Commrttee

RN
Ronald H. Miller .4 L 64 Difector ... '

68 Dlrector and Chlef Executrve Ofﬁcer of the '

William Pagaric

William Salek : 46 Chref F1nanc1al Offier and Secretary of the -
P ... . .. . . .. Company and V1celPre51dent‘ o‘fll_l‘nlversal

Dr E Bruce Fredrrkson o a | . : T

" Dr. E Bruce Fredrlkson has'been a Dlrector of- the Company -since! January 28 ~2005 Dr
Fredrlkson is currently an:independent, consultant in corporate finance and governance. He is
Professor of Finance, -Emeritus, at Syracuse . University’ s Martin ] Whitman . School of
Management where: he taught from 1966 until his retirement’in May 2003. He is a, director of
Consumer Portfolio Services, Inc., a consumer finance company, and is nonJexecuti\"}e1Chairrnan' K
of the Board of Track.Data Corporation, a:financial services .company. He'is' Chairman of the
Audit Committee. of both of these companies. Dr. Fredrikson holds an A:B. in economics from:
Princeton University and a MB A. in accounting' and a Ph.D. in ﬁnance from Columbla
University. o Co. i CLU e I

.
’ ’
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Melissa Goldman-Williams'

Melissa Goldman-Williams has-been a Director of the Corhpany since Octdber 22, 2,0(34
Mrs. Goldman-Williams presently serves as the Chief Operating Officer of Westeye East, an
appliance distributor: Previously, Mrs. Goldman-Williams was the Chief Operating Officer and
a member of the Board of Directors of Goldman Associates- of New York; Inc., now an
investment company located in Florida, until its acquisition by Westeye East on January 1, 2007.
Mrs. Goldman-Williams holds a B.A. from Lehigh University and a ‘Masters Degree in
Envirorimental Management from Duke Un1vers1ty
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Mlchael Goldman

Michael Goldman has been a Dlrector of the Company since September 29, 2004 and
was appointed Chairman,of the Board on April 17, 2006.. Since 1987 Mr. Goldman was the
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and Chan‘man of the Board. of, Dlrectors of .Goldman Associates of New
-York, Inc., an appllance distributor for the. Northeast. The assets of this company were acquired

" -by. Westeye East, on January 1, 2007 and it is now an investment company located in Florida.
Mr Goldman continues to serve as the Chief Execunve Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Dlrectors “of Goldman Associates, of New York, Inc. Mr. Goldman is a Certified Publlc
Accountant and holds a B.S. .in Accountmg from Brooklyn College and an M.BA. .
Management from Syracuse Un1vers1ty C.

Stuart H Lubow

+

Stuart H. Lubow became a Director of the Company on May 11, 2006. Mr. Lubow is a
founder, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Commumty National Bank. Mr.

" Lubow was founder, President and Chief Executive Officer of Community State Bank from 1997

: to 2003 and was the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Garden State Bank
until 1996. Mr. Lubow has been a banking executive for over 25 years. He is a past Chairman

1

of the Community Bankers Association of New Jersey, as well as the former Chairman of the
Teaneck Development Corporation. Mr. Lubow holds a B.A: in Accounting from Moravian
College and has served as an instructor at the New York University School of Continuing
Education. :

Ronald H. Mlller

Ronald H. Mrller has been a Diréctor of the Company since 1983. Mr. Miller holds a
'B.S.in Education from Ohio State Umvers1ty and a J.D. from Ohio State University. Mr. Miller
was engaged in the practlce of law since 1969 until his retirement in 2007. Mr. Miller is'an
acting Judge of Augla1ze County Municipal Court in the State of Ohio.

W1lllam Pagano

W1ll1am Pagano has beeri the President of Universal since November 1998, and was
appointed as a Director of the Company in February 2002, as President of the Company on
October 27, 2005, and as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on April 17, 2006. Prior to
November 1998; Mr: Pagano was engaged in the practice of law for 20 years.- Mr. Pagano holds

" aB.S. in Industrial Management and an M.B.A., both from Fa1rle1gh chkmson University. Mr.

Pagano also holds a J. D from Seton Hall University.
W1111am Salek '

Jl

+ Wiiliam .- Salek has been the Vlce Pre51dent of Unlversal since June 1999 and was
appomted as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in October 2004 and Secretary of the
Company. in February 2005. Mr. Salek has been employed by Universal since 1983. Mr. Salek

[ U

" holds a B.S. in Accounting from Clarion University. Mr. Salek is a director of Educational

Partnership for Instructing Children, Inc., a non-profit learning institute.

1

Comphance w1th Section ]6(a) of the Exchange Act

v . +The Company believes.that during the period from January 1, 2007 through December
31, 2007, all executive officers, Directors and greater than 10% beneﬁcral owners, complied with
SBCthD 16(a) ﬁlmg reqmrements : ‘ -

' s
v - . . e ' } RN S

' . N




Code of Ethics . . .- - L

»

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all employees, including all
employees of the Company’s subsrdlarles as well as each member of the Company s Board of
Directors. . e T : S oo - »

L4

Audlt Committee.

The Company . has .a separately desrgnated standmg audlt commlttee "established in
accordaiice with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. Serving on the Committee are Dr. E.
Bruce Fredrikson and Ronald H. Miller. " Phillip Siegel served on the Committee prior to his
resignation as a Director on January,22, 2007., The Board of Pirectors had determined that it has
two audit committee financial experts serving on the Audit Committee, Dr. Fredrikson and
Ronald H. Miller. Both Dr. Fredrikson and Mr. Miller are 1ndependent Directors as deﬁned in
Item 7(d)(3)(1v) of Schedule 14A.

Item 11. Executive Compensatlon

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
L ] . s i [} N
QOverview _ I . o . .

This compensation discussion and analysis describes and analyzes the material elements of
compensation awarded to, eamed by, or paid to each of our executive officers who served as
named executive officers during the last completed fiscal year. This compensation disclssion
and analysis+focuses on the information contained in the following tables and related footnotes
and narrative for primarily the last-completed fiscal year, but we also describe compensation
actions taken before or after the last.completed fiscal year to the extent it enhances the
understandmg of our executive-compensation disclosure.»-: . : L

" Prior to June 13, 2006, our Board of Directors oversaw’ and admmlstered our ‘executive
compensation program. The compensation committee currently Joversees the desrgn and
admunistration of our executive compensatlon program. "

The principal elements of our executive compensatlon program ‘are base salary, annual
incentive compensation award, stock options and other benefits and perquisites. Our other
benefits and perquisites consist of automobile payments, related automobile costs, prescrrptlon
benefits and reimbursement for Medicare payments. Our phllosophy is to position the aggregate
of these elements at a level that is commensurate with our size and sustained ‘performance.

Compensation Program Objectives and Philosophy ' ‘ R

¥

The objectives of our compensatton program are to: - = g
i
a Attract motivate and retain quahﬁed and dedrcated executlve ofﬁcers

b. Retain talented executives and motivate them to achreve business’ objectives that will
.. enhance stockholder value. '

c. Provide our executwe officers with cash mcentrves to further the interésts of the
Company and our stockholders

P v il - T R

Genera]ly, the compensatlon of our executive officers is. composed of-a base salary, an
annual incentive compensation award and equity awards in the form of stock options. In setting
base salaries,-the compensation committee reviews the individual contributions of the particular
executive. The annual inicentive compensation-award -for 2007 is determined by terms:set forth
i each executive officer’s eniployment agfeement. In‘addition, stock: options may be granted to
provide the opportunity for long-term compensatlon based upon the- performance of our stock
over time. - . e ..
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The following is the compensation committee’s policy for persons who do not have
employment.agreements with the Company: ... e

oy

+ - The compensation committee is- responsible for determining- the annual salary and
incentive compensation awards, stock awards and other compensation of executive officers who
do not have employment agreements as well as stock awards and other compensation of
executive officers who have employment agreements. In its deliberations regardmg
compensatlon of executlve officers, the compensanon commlttee considers the following factors

a. Company performance both separately and 1 in relatlon 10 snmllar companies;. .. .

1

+ b, "The-individual pcrformance experience and’ scope of. responS1bllmes of each executive

officer; oo ' ,

4, . i . A - G
¢. Compensation and stock award information disclosed in the proxy statements of other
companies;

-

'd. Historical compensation levels and stock awards at the Company;

e. The overall competitive environment for executives and the level of compensation
necessary to attract and retain executive talent; and . :

s

f.  The recomimendations of management.

1 W7 =y
¢ o LI

Compensanon Process

1

[ 4 e

PI‘lOI’ t0. June 13 2006, our Board approved the compensation: of our named executive
ofﬁcers,. including the terms of their employment agreements.. Going forward,. for each of our
named -executive officers, the compensation committee, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of any then effective employment dgreements, reviews.and approves all elements of
compensatlon taking into consnderatlon recommendatlons from our chief executive officer (for
compensation other than his own) as well as competltwe market guidance provided at the
request of the compensation committee.

| I [ ! ] "

The Company’s compensation program for executives consists of three elements:
: I . . e . - . Ut H B et o b .
. 1. basesalaries ¢ .

i, " performance based annua] mcentwe compensatlon awards

E LA " ot

iil. perlodlc grants of stock optlons S

Base Salaries ' S, STt o ]
The salaries for the executive officers are designed to retain .qualified and dedicated
“executive officers. The compensatlon committee reviews salary recommendatlons made by the

Company’s Chief Executive Officer (other’ than for executive officers’ covered by employment
agreements), and evaluates mdmdual responsibility levels, performance-and length of service.

Annual Incentive Compensatlon Awards

Annual incentive compensation ‘awards prov1de ‘the’ Company w1th a means of rewardmg
performance based upon the attainment of corporate profitability dunng ‘the’ year. Mr. Pagano,
pursuant to an.employment contract,-receives.annual'incentive compensation awards based: upon
a percentage of earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Salek, pursuant to an employment.
contract that expired-December'31, 2007, received.annual incentive’ compensation awards based
upon a percentage’ of earnings of.the Company’sisubsidiaries. - Mr. \Pagano and Mr. Salek
-accrued an incentive compénsation award-of $151,778+and -$14,2385, respectively, for the year:
ended December 31, 2007.-On- March 3, 2008, .Mr.: Pagano:waived his right to receive this,
incentive compensation for 2007
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Stock:Options . ~r 7L T o FORE L Lo e
' Stock ophons may be granted t provide the opportuntty fof long-term compensanon

based upon the performance of our stock over time. During 2007 no stock optlons were granted
to the Company’s employees or. the executlvelofﬁcers 4

' [ : ','.l‘i‘

Employee Beneﬁt and Health Plan " . . \

o~

. The Company has a 401(k) plan Wh]Ch covers substantlally all employees tPartlclpants in the
plan may contribute a pelicentage of compensation, but not in excess of the maximum allowed
under the Intemal Revenue Codé. The plan prov1des for matchmg contnbutlons up to a
raximum &f 3% of ¢mployees’ ‘qualified wagé:s ' - :

The Company makes available life and health insurance for full time employees B.oth'the
Company and the employees contribute ‘to “the payment of this’ plan in accordance with"a
pubhshed schedule -as described i 1n the Company s employment manual.. : '

LR " . *y 4,0

IR " .
Summagy Compensatlon Table N TR '
' The followmg tab]e SEts- forth 1nformatlon about compensatlon paid- or accrued by the
- Company during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 to Bernard Korn, William

Pagano and William Salek, the only named executive officers of the Company whose

compensatlon exceeded §160,000. 0 . e R
B . “ ‘e "—. {“.,',.' ' ! “-.” Lot - . ' Lo Tt - ‘t . I
P N L T g u Non-Equity . CAlL 1
. . it 1 4 . o [ iy , o L . \
Incentive Plan - Other

. -,‘Name and Principa] Position , -, -Year ''** Salary .. :Compensation .Compensation ~ Total

s L e B -,-”I{i . .o r " _’L L) . . ey, " * . e ' .t
P T e, T _!.,. T . ,
Bernard Kom*~ e l N 2007 lzoo 000 = 537888 . $237;888
g I 4 - LS P . v .o . '
Aot e T $200,000_ C -7 530699  $230,699
‘.'! ‘AJ . . ., ':‘. . N . B -“ . . ‘. .- - . . L) i . . r o
T L 4 U T A U Tt K
' - v DR et F RN T N c T
Wllllam Pagano—Dlrector and Ghtef L -,_2007 2 $200,000 .., - . - L% $ 200,000"
o b R T L APt T I PO SR Y Loy
Execunve Ofﬁcer of the Company and 2006  $200,000 . §260,109 .- $ 460,109

- . . » . PRI LR 1+ .
,.'.c. ',"-‘:‘ - . Lo LA

President of Unwersal _

¥

William Salek—ChiefFinant:ial Officer = 2007 - § 120,000 $ l4,2}55 . - $ 134,235
and Secretary of the Company and Vice 2006 - $ 120,000  * $ 30,958 - $ 150,958

President and Secretary of Univetsal'
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*Mr. Korn resigned as Director, Chairman of the Board, and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on April 17, 2006 and served as a non-executive employee of the Company until
h1s déath on December 12, 2007. .'1 N

Mr. Korn’s all other compensatlon for the fiscal years ended 2007 and 2006, respectrvely,
consists of $9,185 and $11,962 in automobile lease payments, $3,954 and $3,990 in automobile
related costs, $17,291 and $7,289 in prescription coverage for Mr. Korn and his wife, and $7 458
and $7,458 in Medicare re:mbursements et o :

Sy

Durlng the ﬁscal years ended 2007 2006 and 2005 no $tock awards, option awards,
bonuses or nonquahﬁed deferred compénsation eammgs were .earned by the named executive
officers.

t . - N

Narratnve Dlsclosure to Summarv Comnensatlon Table _

Mr Korn was the Chairman.of the Board D1rector and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company until his resignation as such on April 17, 2006. Mr. Pagano was the President and a
Director of the Company for 2005 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer-on Apnl 17, 2006.
Mr. Salek is the Chief Fmanaal Officer and Secretary ofthe Company

Coeb . oy ir
Bemard Ko~

Mr, Korn’s employment under an employ_ment agreement ’dated April 17, 2006 was to
end on December 31, 2010, however, Mr. Kom passed away December 12, 2007. Pursuant to
the employment agreement, Mr. Korn’s widow is entitled to the following two payments: (i) a
$5,000 lump sum death beneﬁt and (ii) $200 000 payable not less frequently than in bi-weekly
installments.

The agreement provided that until May 31-,-‘23}08, Mr. Korn would not without the prior
written consent of the Company (i) knowingly sell any of the Company’s securities to a 5%
shareholder (as defined), or to a person who as a result of such sale would become a 5%
shareholder, unless such person first enters into a. standstill agreement in favor of the Company,
(11} acquire, agree to acquire or make any proposal to acquire any voting securities or assets of
the Company or any of its affiliates, (iii) propose to enter into any merger, consolidation,
recapitalization, business combination or other similar transaction involving the Company or any
of its affiliates, (iv) make, or in any way participate in any sohcrtatlon of proxies to vote or seek
to advise or influence any person with respect to the voting of any voting securities of the
Company or any of its affiliates, (v) form, join or in‘any way pammpate in a group (as defined)
in connection with any of the foregoing or (vi) advise, assist or encourage any other persons in
connection with the foregoing.” On Novembér 2, 2007, the Company terminated said Standstill
Agreement dated June 21, 2004 between the Company and Bernard Ko,
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1 P, '

WllhamPagano © SR L P

: Mr. Pagano was appomted the Chief Executrve Officér of the Company after Mr. Kom s
resignation on April 17, 2006. : .

Universal Supply Gioup, Inc. (“Unlversal”) a wholly owned sub51d1ary*of the Company, =
and Mr. Pagano entered into an employment agreement dated as of June 25, 1999, as amended
by Amendment No. 1 dated as of October 29, 2002, as further amended by Amendmént No. 2
dated as of June 1’5, 2005, and as further amended by Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 12,
2007, pursuant to which the Company employed Mr. Pagano as President of Universal. The
amended employment agreement provides for (i) a salary of $200,000 per year, reduced by any
‘amounts payable’ to Mr. Pagano for loss of eammgs or the like under any insurance plan or
* policy, the premlums for which are paid for in their entirety by the Company; (11) fringe benefits
commensurate with Mr. Pagano’s position as President, in such group life, health, accident,
disability or hospitalization insurance plans, subject to underwriting requirements as Umversal'
or its parent, may make available to its other executive employees and (iii) additional incentive
compensation based on a percentage of earnings, as defined below, of the subsidiaries, limited to -
two times his base compensation. The amended ‘employment agreement contains confidentiality
and non- compete provisions and expires on December 31, 2010. "

. For the calendar years 2008 through 2010 Mr. Pagano will recerve, as incentive
compensation, a percentage of the Incentive Compensatron Base. Incentive Compensation Base
shall mean the Universal’s net earnings (as determined by the Company, Universal’s parent)
which are mcluded in the Company’s consolidated audited financial statements, plus the amount
of any deductlons from net earnings which are made in such statements for (i) interest paid or
accrued in connection with the acquisition of the Universal, (ii) Federal income taxes, (iii) parent
company management fees or allocation of overhead from the parent company either paid or
accrued and (iv) incentive compensation under this ‘Agreement.- Eamlngs of businesses acquired
by Universal shall be included in determining incentive compensation base. Incentive
compensation will be paid-within 30 days following receipt by Universal of the Independent
Accountant’s report for. the year involved and said report shall be binding-and conclusive on the
calculation of net earnings and incentive compensation. Incentive compensation for any year -
) begmnmg in 2005 shall in no event exceed two times Mr Pagano s base compensatron for such

year. : : :

) ) "

. Portion of Incentive | Lo Additional Compensation Lo

Compensation Base Percentages
Upto ~§ 250,000 8%
§ 251,000 to § 500,000 : 9%
$ 501,000 to $ 750,000 10%
§ 751,000 to $ 1,000,000 11%
$ 1,001,000 And over. ' 12%

29




‘ For the ﬁecal years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 the incentive conipensahon :base
was $1,473,150 and $2, 375 ,908, respectlvely, and the 1ncent1ve compensatlon was computed as

follows: .~
, ‘ 2007
; . Incentive Additional, - \
' Compensatlon' Compensation - Ingentive
) Base Percentages " Compensation
$ 250,000 .° . at8% $ 20,000 |
o .. $ 250,000 " at 9% $ 22,500 .
‘ Lo ;- .5 250,000 ' . at 10%. .. % 25000
$ 250,000 at 11% $ 27,500
: $ 473,150 S at12% $ 56,778 . .
$ 1,473,150 » $151,778
1)' . . .
L L . 2006 .
Incentive Additional )
Compensation - .Compensation Incentive
Base __Percentages Compensation
$ 250,000 " at 8% $ 20,000
©$ 250,000 at9% $ 22,500
S 250000' at 10% $ 25,000
; ' K 250,000 Catll% $ 27,500
, L $ 1,375,908 atl2%4-‘ §165,109
$ 2,375,908 $ 260,109

Total incentive compensation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. was
$151,778 and $260,109, respectively.-On March 3, 2008 Mr. Pagano walved his right to receive

thls mcentlve compensatlon for 2007.

b

In the event that Mr. Pagano no Ionger performs the dutles of the Presndent of Umversal

" or the Vice President of RAL for any reason other than death or dlsablllty, the Company will be

considered in default of its credlt agreement with Wells Fargo'Bank, National Association unless

a waiver is obtained.
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William Salek + . L T e IR

Effective Jandary 1, 2005 "Mr. Salek ‘was employed pursuant to an employment
agreement that expired on December 31, 2007 at a compensation of $120, 000 f per annuni. The

_agreement also provided for addltlonal mcentlve compensation based on a percentage of

eamings, as defined below, of the subsrdlanes

For each of the calendar years 2005 through 2007, Mr. Salek rece1ved as incentive
compensation, a percentage ‘of the Incentive Compensatlon Base.” Incéntive Compensation Base
shall mean the Universal’s net carnings (as determined by the Company, Universal’s parent)
which are included in the Company’s consolidated audited financial: statements, plus the amount
of any deductions from net earnings which are:made in such statements for (i) 1nterest pald or
accrued in connection with the acquisition of the Universal, (ii) Federal income taxes, (iii) parent
company management fees or allocation of overhiead from the paren{ company either paid or
accrued and (iv) incentive compensat1on under this Agreement. Earnings of businesses acquired
by Universal shall be included in determmmg incentive compensation base.  Incentive
compensation will be paid within 30 days following receipt by. Universal of -the Independent
Accountant’s report for the year involved and said report shall-be bmdmg and conclusrve on the
calculation of net earnings and incentive compensatlon - .- -

Additional Compensatxon

. Portion of Incentive .- .-
= Compensation Base - Percentages*
~ Upto $ 250,000 Tl 25%
©$ 251,000 to $ 500,000 Do 50%
$ 501,000 to $ 750,000 v 5%
$ 751,000 to $ 1,000,000. S 1.00%
$ 1,001,000 to  $ 1,250,000 n 1.25%
$ 1,251,000 to $ 1,500,000 C T 1.50% ¢
- $ 1,501,000 . to  $1,750,000-. - g o 1L75%
$1,751,000 to $ 2,000,000 S 2.00%
*$ 2,001,000 And-over i 2.25%

Lt ”;,l .

' :
Lot i




For the fiscal years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006, the incentive compensation
base was $1,563, 429 and $2 375,908, respectwely, and the lncentwe compensatlon was
computed as follows:” ,

Iy

oL ) . .2007- o L AT
Incentive ~ Additional : ‘ .
Compensation Compensation " Incentive,
Base : : Percentages 'Compensation
N $ 250,000 C25% T $ 625 - |
' $ - 250,000 U 50% et § 1,250
$ 250,000 - 75% > .. o . $01875 e
$ 250,000 , 1.00% » . ... . - $2500
$ 250,000 - . 125% . ..., .$ 3125
$ 250,000 . . .- 150%, . . .- 83,750
$ 63429 1.75% . 81,110
$1563429 o c $14,235
‘ o 2006
Incentive _ ‘Additional
Compensation “.~» . - Compensation ' ' - . “Incentive
Base,.” ", Percentages - -. . __Compensation
~$ 250,000 2% . - +$ 625
- $ 250,000 . 50% L : $ 1,250
~$ 250,000 75% o . $ 1,875
~$ 250,000 1.00% .. - %2500
. $ 250,000 1.25% . L. $3,125
$ 250,000 - ©1.50% $ 3,750
$ 250,000 coLT% ©$ 4,375
w08 250,000 , 2.00% T $5,000
* § 375,908 ‘ 2.25% % ' . § 8458
$ 2,375,908 , o $30,958

Total incentive compensanon for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was
$14,235 and $30,958, respectively.

Mr. Salek’s employment agreement explred on December 31, 2007. | Commencing
January 1, 2008, Mr. Salek is employed at a compensation of $130, 000 per annum, plus the
following incentive program:

Pre-Tax Profit Incentive Award
$ '800,000 5% of Salaryor $ 6,500
$ 900,000 © 10% of Salary or $13,000
$1,000,000 . . .. 15% of Salary or $19,500
' $1,100,000 . 20% of Salary or $26,000
$1,200,000 25% of Salary or $32,500
$1,300,000 ' 30% of Salary or $39,000
$1,350,000 * 35% of Salary or $45;500

Addltlonally, Mr. Salek is entitled to use of a Company owned vehicle and all expenses
- related thereto, including gas, repairs and insurance.

Mr. Salek’ compensatlon plan will give the Company and the compensation committee
the opportunity to review progress and achievements at the end of 2008 in order to come to a
de¢ision on an appropriate plan and compensation package for subsequent years.
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Outstandmg Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End . . A

On January 2, 2007 Bemard Korn obtamed 52 000 shates of common stock by exercising
52,000 outstanding stock options. There were no equity awards outstandmg for the named
executive officers as of December 31,2007, - =~ . i Ty SRR

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change In Controlr ... . =

""Assuming the employment of each of our named executwe officérs were to be termlnated
on December 31, 2007 without cause, by death or by change in control, the followmg individuals
would be entitled to payments in the amounts set forth oppos1te to theirname in the table below

' L '

Severance pay for 'Termmatlon by . Change of
. termination without cause: . S “death = .. .. i . ., control
William Pagano ~ None. L NI None © . ... ¢ . None .. .
- o L » .. S Ty
William Salek None. Cee None. L Lt ‘,,‘ . 1. None.

Mr Kormn’s employment under an employment agreement dated Apnl 17, 2006,was to
end oh December 31, 2010, however Mr. Korn passed away December 12, 2007. Pursuant to
the employment agreement, Mr. Komn’s w1dow is entitled to the followmg two payments (1) a
$5,000 lump sum death benefit and (i1) $200 000 payable not less frequently than in b1 weekly

L]

installments. . K PR :

3

Drrector s Compensation . B Pt

‘ - The followmg table sets forth compensatlon to members of the Board of Dlrectors other
than thosc employed by the Company, durmg the ﬁscal year 'ended December 31 2007

‘AllOther =«

Co -, FeesEamedorPard‘ '. N
o Name. - inCash, . , Option Awards¥ . Compensatro_n .t Toml
> ST . : -;,..'_ e ‘

Vo . P v ' . ) . . R -y ; RO LT o R .
E. Bruce Fredrikson. . $22,000, ,‘,$_10' l22 e et e o, - 832,122
Melissa Goldman-Williams . $ 12,000 o e T e 6 000
L : E S S I T A U L L S A )
Michael Goldman : . 812000, N B e Ty R , $12,000

. ' . i [ ' Wl l" “ ' H TR I o

Stiart H. Lubow. $12000 " : sl $22,121"
Ronald H. Miller . $12,000 :11".5-10,12‘1 Lo LN ©$22,121
Phillip Siegel $ 3,000 - Pl s 3,000 -

-

- -
o d *

*The dollar amount of stock option awards are recogmzed for financial . statement
reportmg purposes with, respect to the year ended December 31, 2007, in accordance with FAS
123R. - . . .

7; \F * . r

.Members of the Board of Dlrectors other than those employed by the Company, received -

......

meetmg of. the Board llmlted to $4, 000 per annum payable in advance Jin four equally quarterly
1nstallments o .o . oL e

33




Additionally, effective April 1, 2006, E: Bruce Fredrikson s annual. retainer. fee for
serving as a Director and Chairman of the Audit Commlttee mcreased from $8 000 to $18 000.
The feei is payable in $4,500 1nstallments in advance of each quarter "

Members &f the Board of Directors receive no fees.if they are: ernployed by the Company.

For calendar years begmnmg 2008, the Company will pay the premiums for Michael
Goldman's COBRA health lnsurance In January 2008 the Company pard $13 221 for this

premium for 2008 o o L -

W P e :

On December 6 2006 the Company-granted ten-year optlons,to purchase 25 000 shares

of common stock at an exercise price of $1.85 per share to each of the following Directors: E.
Bruce Fredrikson, Stuart H. Lubow, Ronald H. Miller and Phillip ‘Siegel. The option to each
Director was immediately vested for 10,000 shares and will .vest ifor 5,000 additional shares on
each-of the first three anniversaries of the Grant Date if the optionee then continues as a Director.
The options were granted in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Section
4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. On January 22, 2007, Phillip Slegel resrgned as
a Director and his 5,000 options that would have vested on each of the first three anniversariés of
the Grant Date were forfelted and he had sixty days from the date of his resrgnation to exercise
his 10,000_vested optlons "Mr. Slegel did not exercisé his '10 000 vested optlons and said options
were forfeited. Prior to his resrgnatlon as 'Director, Mr Siegel served as Chalrman of the

Compensatlon Commlttee and as a member of the Audlt and Nommatmg Commlttees

Compensatlon Committee Interlocks and Insrder Partlcmatlon

The Company did not have a Compensation Committee or any other committee of the
Board of Directors performmg equivalent functions untll June 13, 2006 Prlor to this date,

decisions regardlng compensatlon of named’ executlve Gfficers’ of the Company were made by -

the Board of Directors. Two of the company’s executive officers,” Bernard’ Korn'"and William
Pagano, were Directors-of the Corpany. Mr. Kom'was the Chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company until his resignation as Chief Executive Officer,-Director and

Chairman of the Board on April 17, 2006. Until June 13, 2006, each of these individuals
‘partlcrpated in deliberations of the Board during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
concerning named executive officer compensation, except that they abstained from déliberations
and voting regarding their own compensation. t

On June 13, 2006, the Board of Directors appomted Phillip Slegel as Chairman of the
Compensation Committee and E. Bruce Fredrikson'and Stuart H. Lubow to-serve on the
Compensation Committee. On August 8, 2006 the Board of Directors adopted a Compensanon
Committee Charter. Phrlllp Siegel re51gned as a Director on January 22, 2007 and has not served
" on the Compensation Committee since that date Lolnnd - :

Compensatlon Committee Report

a,o- : Lo

The following report of the Compensation Committee does not constitute soliciting
material and should not be deemed filed or incorporated by"reference ‘into any other’ Company
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchangé' Act. of 1934, except to the
extent the Company specifically incorporates this Report by reference therein. .

The Compensatlon Committee hds réviewed and* dlscussed the: Compensatlon Discussion
and Analysis with management and recommended’ 'to ‘the Board' *df‘ Dlrectors that ‘the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K- for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commiission.
Phillip Siegel resigned as a Director on January 22, 2007, has not served on the Compensation
Committee since that date, and did not participate in these recommendations.
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AR . Members of'the Compensation Committee - ~, .
E. Bruce Fr‘e'drikson’ ' |

Start H. Lubow . . .- ' .. S
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managemen .o

The following table sets forth, as of March 1, 2008, information with respect to beneficial
ownership by named executive officers and Dlrectors of the Company, holders of over 5% of a
class of stock and of named executlve ofﬂcers and Directors of the Company, as a group. .,

.Common Stock.., ., S M&ng
' Lo - .o L - A T I A o
. we .+ . Amountand © " . wi. " rAmountand » .
‘ Nature of Nature of .

. _ . Beneficial Percent of .. Beneficial ~ Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner . Ownershlp "1 Class ! OWn'ei"ship* . Class'
Officers and Directors***: e fo e "

. . ' T T ST e LT T .ol
E. Bruce Fredrikson e 05,600 (1) ‘ S .500 {1 Lo
L . v oe . Ve ok NEE - - . I “ ..t
Melissa Goldman-Williams "« -« » W ©5400 ¢ 2 f o owk gL L s
! . L l - . T e, * ay L ' o ~o
. ‘ ) ' - . .. . :“ . Yo W Lot , "y
Michael Goldman . o ' 1,312,255 (2) 27:41%" ) ‘ -0 . KR
- . te . A - . "
. N e s . s t Te st .o '_ . Voo L B '.'_ ' o, i
Stuart H. Lubow e ey 150000 3) ) R e, 0
TR oo T T e e e
Ronald H. Miller . I 16,054 (@)~ .- KE L Lt 0 B
. \ S . PR - - L h ' , !
William Pagano V67973 (5) 7 16.44% R ST
. - " s y o S e N U ' Lo
. (- TR . b .
William Salek : 61,667 (©) ., 132% O ;oL
' P P H 1 : - i Vet il L S =0 ' . .
b P oy I'f L . . C . , - . ” Lo e, . ]
All'Officérs and Directors as a Group: . - 2,203,949 -~ 45.15% . e 500 L Toow
. . « " » Y B - i. . ! R \
‘Holders of over 5% of a class of stock who are not Officers or Directors:- .

: . ' ’ | [ ‘ ' . ', '., ' I ) “ . . L v - '
Rita C. Folger. - - - 578719 (D). - 1239% i 0., . .. %
o . ) Tyt ey R

: N T Lo AP A L
Goldman Associates of New York, Inc. 1,129,255 . (&) . 2359%. -, ,. 0 . ',', x*

The beneficial owners listed above have all glven a business addfess of 275 Wagaraw
Road, Hawthorne, New Jersey 07506.
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* For the purposes of this table,'“Beneficial Ownership” 5 ‘defined as set forth in rule
13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Except as set forth in the
following notes, each person listed in the table has sole voting and sole investment power with
respect to the shares of Common Stock listéd-in the table.

** Represents beneficial ownershlp, of less. than - one.'percent - of the -Comptiy’s
outstanding securities. - ., -.. . . e

¢ ***%On January 22, 2007 Phllllp Slegel resigned as’a Dlrector and his 10,000 shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise ‘of hi§ options expired sixty days after his resignation.

(1) E. Bruce Fredrikson’s beneficial- ownershlp consists of 10,600 shares of Common Stock,
15,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of his options, and 500 shares of
Common Stock issuable’at any time upon conversion of 500 shares of Convertible Preferred
Stock. v l

{2) Michael Goldman is the Pre51dent and majority shareholder of Goldman Associates of New
York, Inc. (“Goldman Assoc1ates”) Goldman Associates is the owner of 979,255 shares of
Common Stock (“Goldman Shares™) and a warrant (“Warrant™) to purchase 150,000 shares of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share. The Warrant is exercisable at any time
prior to its expiration on December 31, 2008. Mr. Goldman is the owner of 183,000 shares of
Common ‘Stock” and the beneficial owner of the Warrant and the Goldman Shares. Mr,
Goldman’s beneficial ownership excludes 20,000 shares of Common Stock owned by his wife,
of which Goldman Associates and Michael Goldman disclaim beneficial ownership. Mr.
~Goldman’s wife disclaims beneficial ownership of Mr. Goldman’s shares.

(3) Stuart H. Lubow’s beneficial ownership consists of 15,000 shares of Common Stock 1ssuable.
upon exercise of his options.

(4) Ronald H. Miller’s beneficial ownership consists of 1,054 shares of Common Stock and
15,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of his options.

(5) William Pagano’s beneficial ownership consists of 734,640 shares of Common Stock and
* 33,333 shares of Common Stock issuable atany tithe-upon conversion of a $100,000 Convertible
Note at a conversion price of $3 per share. :

(6) William Salek’s beneﬁc1a1 ownershlp consists of 45 000 shares of Common Stock and
16,667 shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of a $50,000 Convertible Note at a
conversion price of $3 per share,

(7) Rita C. Folger s beneficial ownership consnsts of 545,386 shares of Common Stock and
33,333 shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of a $100,000 Convertible Note at a
convérsion price of $3 per share. Mrs. Folger is the, wife of Oscar Folger, and the mother of
Jeffrey Folger. Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted as legal counsel for the Company through April

© 20, 2005. Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted as legal consultants for the Company from April 21,

~ 2005 through December 31, 2005 ‘aid each becamé?an employee of the -Company as Vice

President-Chief Legal Counsel and Assistant Vice President-Legal, respectively, on January 1,

2006 until March 31, 2007. As of April 1; 2007, Oscar and Jeffrey Folger ceased to act as

employees of the Company, but Oscar Folger’s law firm remains as counsel to the Company.

Mr. Folger’s beneficial ownership consists of 5,000 shares of Common Stock issuable at any

time upon exercise of his options. "Mr. Folger dlsclalms beneficial ownershlp of 'his wife’s

shares, ‘and-Mrs. Folger disclaims beneﬁcml ownershlp of her husband s shares

AR
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(8) The beneficial ownership -of Goldman Associates of New York, Inc. consists of 979,255 '
shares of Common Stock-and a warrant to purchase 150;000 shares of. Common Stock at an
exercise price of $3.00 per share. See Footnote 2, above, for information relating to beneficial
ownership of these sccurittes held by Michael Goldman. -~ . . oo , -

Item 13. Certain Relatlonshlm s and Related Transactlons, and Dlrector lnd_pendence

v

Related Partv Transaction Policies and. Procedures, L PR o e

r -4

Policy

It is the policy of the Board of Directors of Colonial Commercial Corp. (the “Company”)
that all Interested Transactions with Related Parties, as those terms are defined in this policy,
shall be subjeot to approval or ratification in accordance with the procedures set forth below :

. . . 1 . L L. .
t . ' EERE AV : e

Procedures

The Board of Directors of the Company, or,.if directed by the Board of Directors, the:
Audit Committee or any other independent committee appointed by the Board ‘of Directors, shall
review the material facts of all Interested Transactions that require the: Committe€’s approval and
either approve or disapprove of the entry into the Interested Transaction,' subject to the
exceptions described below. If .advance Board or. committee approval of an Interested
Transaction is not feasible, then the Interested Transaction shall be considered and, if the Board
or committee determines it fo be appropriate, ratified at the Board’s.or committeé’s next
regularly scheduled meeting. In determmlng whether to approve or ratify an Interested
Transaction, the Board or committee will take into account among other factors it deems
appropriate, whether the Interested’ Transaction is on terrns no less favorable than terms generally
available to an‘unaffiliated thlrd-party under the same or 51mllar mrcumstances and the extent of
the Related Person’ s 1nterest n the transactlon

The Board of Directors ‘and the. Audit Commlttee have revnewed the Interested
Transactions described below in “Standing Pre-Approval for Certain Interested Transactions”,
and detérmined that each of the Intefested Transactions déscribed therein shall be'deémed to be
pre-approved or ratified (as ‘applicable) by the Board and’ the Audit Commlttee under the terms
- of this policy.

No' Director shall participate in any discussion or approval of an Interested Transaction
for which he or she is a Related Party, except that the Director shall prov1de all matenal
information concemmg the Interested Transaction to the Board or the committee. '

If an Interested TranSactlon will be ongomg, the Board may estabhsh gu1de11nes for the
Company s management to follow in its ongomg dealmgs w1th the Related Party. Thereafter, the
Board, on at least an annual basis, shall review and assess ongoing relationships with the Related
Party to see that they are in compliance with these gmdelmes and that the Interested Transactlon
remains appropriate. . . ... -, .. ! R o

Definitions ' e E B .

An “Interested Transaction™ is any transaction; arrangement or relatlonshlp or series of
similar transactions, arrangements or relationships (including any indebtedness or guarantee of
indebtedness) in which (1) the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to exceed
$120,000 in any calendar year, (2) the Company is a participant, and (3) any Related Party has or
will have a direct or indirect material interest (other than solely as a result of being a director or a

less than 10 percent beneﬁcnal owner of another éntity).
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A “Related Party” is any (a) person who-is or was-(since the beginning of the last fiscal
year for which the Company has filed a Form :10-K and proxy statement, even if they do not
presently serve in that role)-an executive officer; Director or norinee for cléction as a Director,
(b) greater than 5 percent beneficial owner of the Company’s common stock, or (c) immediate
family member of any of the foregoing. . Immedlate family, member includes a person’s-spouse,
parents, stepparénts, children, stepch1ldren s1blmgs mothers- and fathers-in- law, “Sons+ and
daughters-in-law, and brothers- and sisters-in:law’ and anyone 'residing in such person’s home
. (other than a tenant or employee). : . ‘

Standing Pre-Approval for Certain Interested Transactions

The Board: and the Audit Committee have reviewed the types of Ihtérested Transactions
described below and deiermined’ that -each- of ‘the following Interested“Transactions ‘shall: be
deemed to be pre-approved by the Comm1ttee even if the aggregate amount 1nvolved will
‘exceed $120, 000 . : 1

. L Employment of executlve officers. Any employment by the Company of an executlve
officer of the Company if: :

. a. the related compensatron is required to be' reported in’ the Company’s proxy
R + statement -under Item’ 402 of - the' Securities and Exchange Commission’s
* ¢ (“SEC’S") compensation discldsure requrrements (genera]ly apphcable to ¢ named
‘ ‘executlve officers”); or ~ N ‘ .

b. the execut1ve ofﬁcer 1s not an immediate family member of another executive
- officer or Director of the Company, the related compensation would be reported
in the Company’s proxy statement .under Item 402 of the SEC’s compensatlon
' disclosure requirements if-the executrve officer was a “named executive officer”,
and the Company’s Compensation Committee approved (or recommended that
. ' the Board approve) such compensatlon B :

2 Dlrector compensation. Any- compensat1on pald to a. Dlrector 1f the compensatlon is
required to be reported in the Company S proxy statement under Item 402 of ‘the SEC’s
compensation disclosure requirements; -

3. Certain transactions with other companies. Any transaction with another company at
‘which a Related Person’s only relationship is as, an employeé (other than an executive
officer), Drrector or beneficial owner of less than 10% of that company’s shares; .

. 4. Transactions where all shareholders receive, proportional benefits. Any transaction where

. the Related Person’s 1nterest arises solely from the ownersh1p of the Company $ common

- stock and all holders of the}Company § common stock recelvcd the same beneﬁt ona pro
rata basis (€.g. dmdends),

'

5. Transactions 1nvolv1ng competitive bids. Any transaction involving a Related'Party
where the rates of charges involved are determined by competitive bids.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions -+, .. % -, SR E R A

(a) A subsidiary of the Company leases "a warehouse and store in Wharton New Jersey

compr|51ng of 27,000 square ‘feet from a company owned by Mr: Paul Hlldebrandt urtder a

" lease that explres in June 2010. The Company paid Mr Hildebrandt’s company $234 866,

- $224,885° and’ $215,674 during the’ years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and - 2005,

: respectlve]y The Company owes Mr. Hiidebrandt" $80,000 pursuant to two notes: '(a) a

subordinated note in the'amount of $150,000, paid $30, 000 anriuaily commencing December

"31, 2004 and (b) a $50,000 convertible note due 50% on June 1,"2008 and*50% on June 1,

© 2009. William Salek, ‘the Company $ Chlef Financial Officer, is the son-in-law of Mr.

.. Hildebrandt. Mr. Hrldebrandt served as a’ Drrector of the Company from July 2004 to
January 2005. :

-1

(b) Goldman Assomates of New York Inc (“Goldman Assomates ") has agreed. that 1t and its
affiliates will not until May 31, 2008 without the prror written consent of the Board of
Directors of the Company (1) acqulre agree to acqulre or make any proposal to acquire any

" voting securltles or assets of the Company or any of i its affiliates, (ii) propose to enter into
- any merger, consolidation, recapitalization, “business combination, -or other similar
transaction involving the Company or any of its affiliates,’ (iii) make, ‘or in any way

. - participate in any “‘solicitation”. of “proxies’ (as such terms are used in the proxy rules of the
‘Securities and Exchange Commission) to vote or seek to advise.or influence any person with
.respect to the voting of any voting securities of the Company or any of its affiliates or (iv)
form, join,or in any, way.participate .in .a “group” as defined.in Section 13(d)(3) of the

.. Securities Exchange Act.of 1934, as amended, in connéction with-any of the foregoing or (v)
advise, assist or encourage any othér persons in. connection with the fotegoing., Michael

~ Goldman is the beneficial owner of the shares held by Goldman Associates.

The Company owes Goldman Associates, a -private Company 'controlied. by . Michael
Goldman, $750,000 pursuant to a secured note which is subordinaté to the borrowings under

. the credit facility. The note bears interest at the prime rate and is:due on January 1,2009.

For calendar years begmnmg 2008, ‘the Company wnll pay the premiums for ‘Michael
Goldman's COBRA health insurance. In January 2008 the Company paid $l3 221 for this
-premlum for.2008. ~ e . "

(©), ‘Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted as legal counsel for the Company through Apnl 20, 2005.
“'Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted as legal consultants for the' Company from April 21 2005
through Decembet ‘31, 2005 and each became -an employee 'of thé Company as Vice
President-Chief Legal Counsel and Assistant Vice President-Legal, respectively, on January

-1, 2006 until-March 31,.2007. As of April 1, 2007, Oscar and Jeffrey Folger ceased to act as
employees-of the Company, but Oscar Folger’s law firm remains as-counsel to.the Company.

i Mrs. Folger is-the wife of Oscar Folger and the mother.of Jeffrey Folger. Professional fees
" paid to Oscar Folger’s. law. firm for the years-ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $115,412,
$89,826 and $79,973, respectively. Jeffrey Folger is an associate of Oscar Folger’s law firm.
Additionally, in 2006, $12,000 was paid to, each Oscar and Jeffrey Folger,as part time -
employees of the Company '




(d) William Pagano is employed pursuant to an employment agreemeht that provides for a salary

... 0f $200,000 per year, reduced by any amounts payable to Mr. Pagano for loss of eamings or
the like under any insurance. plan or policy, the premiums for which are paid for in their
entlrety by the Company, (u) fringe benefits commensurate with Mr. Pagano s position as
Presrdent in such group life, health, aecrdent disability or hospitalization insurance plans,
subject, to underwriting requlrements as Universal, or its parent, may make available to its
other executive employees and (iii) additional incentive compensation based on a percentage
of eamings, as defined below, of the subsidiaries, limited to two times his base
.compensation, The amended employment agreement contams confidentiality and non-
compete -provisions. and expires on December 31, 20100 "William Pagano’s total incentive
compensation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $151,778,
$260,109 and $317,924, respectively. On March 3, 2008 Mr Pagano walved l’llS right to
receive this mcentwe compensatron for 2007

 In the event that Mr Pagano no longer performs the dutles of the President of Umversal or
the Vice President of RAL for arly reason other than death or disability, the Company will be
considered in default of its oregh_t_agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
unless a waiver is obtained. -, | Co

(e) Pioneer Realty Holdings, LLC, a New York limited’ liability company (* Ploneer”) is the

. owner of the premises located at 836.Route 9, Fishkill, New York, formerly known as 2213

- Route 9, Fishkill, New York that is leased to a subsidiary of the Company under a lease that

. was set 1o expire in September 2008, subject to renewal options, and provided for a current

aggregate annual tent of $133,500. Pioneer is the landlord under the Lease pursuant.to an
assignment and assumption agreement dated April 12, 2005.

On February 21, 2007 the Lease was further amended by a Thll’d Modification of Lease
Agreement-to prov1de among other things, for 25,947 square feet of the leased premises, a
net increase of 14,443 square'feet, and for $245,844 total annual fixed rent, an increase of
$106,740 per annum. The effectiveness of the Third Modification of Lease Agreement
commenced in August 2007 The term of the.lease expires on March 31, 2017, subject to
" two five-year renewal optlons

Additionally, on February 21, 2007 Ploneer granted the Company an -option (“Optlon”) to
purchase the Premises for (i) an exercise price equal to Pioneer’s total financial investment in
the Premlses through the date of exercise and (i1) the release of Mr, Pagano.(and any other
guarantor’s) from guaranties of mortgage loans secured by the Premlses The Option expired
on July 31, 2007., '

.. William Pagano’ has a 55% mterest in Pioneer and each of Rita Folger and Jeffrey Folger has
- an:8% interest in Pioneer Realty Partners I, LLC, which has a 40% interest in Pioneer. Oscar
‘Folger and Jeffrey Folger are counsel to the Company. The Company paid Pioneer Realty
' Holdings, LLC $176,556 and $137,239 in rent durmg the years ended December 31 2007
and 2006, respectively.

- (f) Each of Messts. Goldman, Kom Pagano, Rozzi, and Mrs Folger had agreed that until May
31, 2008 he or she will not purchase any stock of the Company without written consent from
the Company and that he or she will not sell any stock to any person if the sale would create
a new 5% sharcholder within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code Section 382 unless the
buyer first enters into a similar standstill agreement. On November 2, 2007, the Company
terminated said Standstill Agreements dated June 21, 2004 between the Company and
Messrs. Goldman, Korn, Pagano, Rozzi, and Mrs. Folger.
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(g) Mr. Pagano, Mr. Salek, Mrs. Folger and ‘the wife of Michael Goldman are holders of -
convertible unsecured notes in the amounts of: $100,000, $50,000, $100,000 and $25,000,
respectively, issued pursuant to the terms of'a private placement made on July 29, 2004..

(h) On' September 5,°2006, the Company was appointed a ron- -exclusive distributor of Speed
Queen home laundry equipment in the New York metropolltan area, and in portions of
Connecticut, Delaware and Eastern’ Pennsylvama ‘Thé Company succeeded Goldman
* Associates of New York, Inc. in this dlstrlbutorshlp and, on August 31, 2006, purchased
Goldman Associates’ Speed Queen accounts receivable, inventory and relatéd assets at fair
value for $149,625. Goldman Associatesis a private Company controlled by Michael
.Goldman who is the Chairman of Colonial. The Company also.established a “Goldman
Universal” division to distribute the Speed Queen home laundry system line and other
appliances. C e T

The positions with the Company:and -the relevant stock ownerships of the pefsons and
entities referenced in this Item are set forth in Items 10 and 12..

t

Director Independence

The Board of Directors is comprised of six members, of which three are classified as
mdependent” as defined in the NASDAQ Stock. Marketplace Rule 4200. The three independent
Directors are E. Bruce Fredrikson, Stuart H Lubow and Ronald H. Mlller

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servnces
Audit Fees ) ) : Lo D e

Audit fees for 2007 and 2006 were $233,100 and $270,723, respectlvely All services
provided by independent accountants were approved by the audit committee. Audit Fees consist
of fees billed for -professional services rendered for the audit of the. Company’s' annual
statements, for review of interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports
and services that were normally provided by Eisner’ LLP in 2007 and Weiser LLP in 2006 in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements .

Audlt Related Fees l . . ; N .

The Company did not incur audit related fees fromEisner LLP in 2007 or Weiser LLP in

2006. Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related ‘services that are
reasonably’ related to the perfonnance of the audit or review of the Company s consohdated
financial statements and are not reported under “Audlt Fees |

Tax Fees

The Company did not incur tax fees from Eisner LLP in 2007 or Weiser LLP in 2006.
Tax Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for tax comphance These
services include assistancé regarding federal state and local tax compllance o

All Other Fees

All other fees for professmnal services rendered to the Company by Eisner LLP dunng
the fiscal year 2007 were $37,000. There were no other fees for professional services rendered
to the Company by Weiser LLP during the ﬁscal year 2006 other than the services reported
above, :

+
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. The Audit Comrnittee meets with the inidependent’auditor prior to the audit and discusses
the planning and staffing of the ‘audit,.approves in'advance the engagement of the independent
. auditor for all audit services and non-audit services and approves the fees and other terms of any
such engagement, and obtains periodically from the independent auditor a communication of the
matters required to be dlscussed by Statements of Auditing Standards. No. 61 and SEC Rule
10(a). In addition, the Company obtains a letter describing all relationships between the auditor
and the Company and discusses with the auditor any disclosed relatlonshlps or services that may
impact auditor objectivity'and independence.

- PART1V

Itém‘lS Exhlblts and Fmanc:al Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits and Financial Statemcnts

.- (1) Financial Statements. See Item 8.; Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
(2) Financial Statement Schiedules. Seé F-1 through F-33; attached
(3) Exhibits

o ' " INDEX TO EXHIBITS
B _ ; Incorporated By
. Filed Date Filed Reference
Exhibit Exhibit Name . Herewith ~ Form . With SEC' . From Exhibit
3.01 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of 10-K 03-30-06 3.01
Registrant dated fanuary 6, 1983 .
(@) 'Certificate of Amendment of the Certlﬁcate ’ " 10-K 03-30-06 3.01(a)
+ of Incorporation dated October 31,1986 */ o o
(b) ~ Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate ¥y 10-K  * 03-30-06 3.01(b)
. of Incorporation dated June 24, 1988, , . - S o
{c) Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate ' 10-K 03-30-06 3.01(c)
’ of Incorporation, dated January 13,1998 . . L
(d) Centificate of Amendment of the Certificate’ T 10-K° 03-30-06 3.01(d)
of Incorporation dated January 13, 1998 '
() Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate 10-Q 11-13-06 13.01
of lncorporatlon dated September 29,2006 T . :
302 By—Laws of Regtstrant . 10-K 03-30-06 . 302
(a) Amended and Restated By-Laws of o 8-K 06-19-06 3.01
‘Registrant, ratified and adopted June 13, . "~ ' .. ‘
2006 '
401 - - Specimen of Common StockiCertificate - v 10-K. 03-30-06 4.01
4.02 Specimen of Convertible Preferred Stock - ) . 10-K 03-30-06 . 4.02
Certificate ) o C ’ :
10.01 - Employment Agreement dated as of January 10-KSB  03-31-98 10(a)
: - 1, 1998'between Reglstrant and Bemard ' T
. " Ko ' ‘ S )
(@) Amendment Number 1 dated Apnl 1 1999 " ... 10-K.  04-11-01 10(a)(i)

to Employment Agreement dated as of
January 1, 1998 between Registrant and
Bemard Komn \
- (b)  Amendment Number 2 dated April 1, 2000 : 10-K 04-11-01 10(a)(ii)
to Employment Agreement dated as of
January 1, 1998 between Reglstrant and
Bernard Korn
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(c)

(d)

()

10.02

(a)

(b}

©

10.03

(a).-

10.04

10.05
(@)

10.06
(a)
()

(c)

®

Amendmeit Number 3 dated October 29,
2002 to Employment Agreement dated as of
January i, 1998 between Registrant and
Bernard Ko

Amendment.Number 4 dated October 29,
2002 to Employmént Agreement dated as of
January 1, 1998 between Registrant and
Bernard Korn

Amendment Number 5 dated May 17, 2004
to Employment Agreement dated. as of
January |1, 1998 between Registrant and

. -Bernard K()ITI S B

Employment Agreement datcd April 17,
2006 between Reglstrant and Bemard Kom .

Employment Agreement dated as of June
25, 1999 between Universal Supply Group,
Inc. and William Pagano

Amendment Number 1 dated October 29,

2002 to Employment Agreement dated as of |

June 25, 1999 between Universal Supply
Group, Inc. and William Pagano

- Amendment Number 2 dated.as of June 15,

2005 to Employment Agreement dated as of
June 25, 1999 between Universal Supply
Group, Inc. and William Pagano
Amendment Number 3 dated as of March
+12, 2007 to Employment Agreement dated
as of June 25, 1999 between Universal
‘Supply Group; Inc:*and William Pagano '

Employment Agreement dated June 25,

1999 between Universal Supply Group, Inc. - -

and William Salek

Amended and Restated Eniployment
Agreement dated as of January 20, 2005 to
Employment Agreement dated as of June
25, 1999 between Usiversal Supply Group,
Inc. and William Salek

1996 Stock Option Plan

2006 Stock Plan
Form of stock option grant letter

Purchase Agreement dated March 25, 1999
for business and assets subject to certain
liabilities of Universal Supply Group, Inc.
Amendment Number | dated June 25, 1999
to Purchase Agreement dated March 25,
1999

Loan and Security Agreement dated June

. 24, 1999 between LaSalle Bank National -

Association and Universal Supply Group,
Inc.

Demand Note dated June 24, 1999 between -
LaSalle Bank National Association and
Colonial Commercial Sub Corp.,
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(d}  Guaranty of All Liabilities and Security ¢ 8K 07-09-99 - - 10(a)(vi)
Agreement of Colonial Commercial Sub : ! -
Corp. by Colonial Commercial Corp. to . “ S
LaSalle Bank National Association dated ,
June 24, 1999 et - :
{e) Waiver and Tenth Amendment dated " 10-K 111803 - 10(e)vi)
November 21, 2002 to the Loan and _ . - : . ‘
Security Agreement dated June 24, 1999 .
¢ bétween LaSalle Bank National Association T :
and Universal Supply Group, Inc. o

(f)y  Securities Pledge Agreement dated 10-K 11-18-03 (10)(e){vii)
November 21, 2002 made by the Registrant . : B
‘in favor of LaSalle Bank National Lo
Association, re: Universal Supply Group,
Inc. . o

10.07 Certain documents related to refinance with

Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. of asset

based loan and term loan dated July 28, .

2004, previously with LaSalle Bank e

National Association: oo - ’ .

Credit Security. Agreement dated July 28, : - 10-Q 08-16-04 10.1
2004 between American/Universal Supply, :

(&

_ Inc., The RAL Supply Group, Inc. and i .
e Universal Supply Group, Inc. to Wells o '
Fargo Business Ciédit, Inc: Co oo :
(b}  First Amendment to the Credit Security 1 8-K 06-27-06 .. 10.02
Agreement dated May 11, 2006 . - . :
(¢) Second Amendment to the Credit Security ' < 8K 09-14-07 10.08
Agreement dated September 10, 2007

10.08 Certain documents related to Well-Bilt Steel .. .
Products, Inc.: . ' i
(a)  Reaffirmation Agreement, General Release - 8-k  02-16-01 -10(a)(i)
Consent and Acknowledgement of ‘. St .
Commercial Reasonableness of Private Sale o coe .
dated February 1, 2001between Atlantic : :
Hardware & Supply Corporation, Universal
* Supply Group, Inc., Colonial Commercial _
. Corp., and the Secured Lender : . N
(b) Reaffirmation Agreement, General Release . 8-K 02-16-01 10¢a)(ii)
© - Consent and Ackiiowledgement of .o 1
Commercial Reasonableness of Private Sale '
dated February 1, 2001 between Weli-Bilt
_ Steel Products, Inc. and the Secured Lender o , :
(c) Foreclosure Agreement dated February 1, - 8-K .- 02-16-01 H0(a)(iii)
2001 between Independent Steel Products, . o _ .
LLC, the Secured Lender, Atlantic o S
Hardware & Supply Corporation, Universal = .- | ‘ .
Supply group, Inc. and Well-Bilt Steel
- Products, Inc. . . . -
(d) Bill of Sale and Assignment dated February . . . 8-K °  02-16-01 .  10(a)iv)
1, 2001 made by the Secured Lender in : .
favor of Independent Steel Products, LLC

Pl 0 . CL
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10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Inventory Control Agreement re: Universal
Supply Group, Inc. taking in inventory on a
consignment basis dated August 9, 2001
between Douglas-Guardian Services
Corporation, Universal Supply Group, Inc.
and GMC Sales corp.

Agreement of Purchase of Sale of Assets
dated July 1, 2002 between Goldman
Associates of New York, Inc. and Universal
Supply Group, Inc.

-Private Placement Purchase Agreement

dated June 30, 2003 by and among Colonial
Commercial Corp. and the persons who are
counterparts to the Agreement as
“Investors”

Private Placement Purchase Agreement
dated February 12, 2004 by and among
Colonial Commercial Corp. and the persons
who are counterparts to the Agreement as
“Investors”

Private Placement Purchase Agreement
dated July 29, 2004 by and among Colonial

" . Commercial Corp, and the persons who are

(2)
(b)
(<)

@

10.14

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

10.15

counterparts to the Agreement as
“Investors” including:

Private Placement Purchase Agreement
Convertible Note Payable

Amendment No. 1 dated March 27, 2008 to
the Convertible Note Payable dated as of
July 29, 2004 by and among Colonial
Commercial Corp. and Rita Folger
Amendment No. 1 dated March 27, 2008 to
the Convertible Note Payable dated as of

~July 29, 2004 by and among Colonial

Commercial Corp. and William Pagano

Private Placement Purchase Agreement
dated July 29, 2004 by and among Michael

. Goldman and Goldman Associates of New

York, Inc. including:

Private Placement Agreement

Secured Note

Warrant

Amendment No. | dated March 27, 2008 to
the Secured Note Payable dated as of July
29, 2004 by and among Colonial
Commercial Corp. and Goldman Associates
of New York, Inc. : :

Asset Purchase Agreement dated Septenber
5, 2003 for the purchase of certain assets,
subject to certain liabilities of The RAL
Supply Group, Inc., by RAL Purchasing’
Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Colonial Commercial Corp.
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10.16 . RAL Closing Statement dated September ' Y 8-K - 10.—.15-03 10¢a)(it) - -
30, 2003 . . e . . .

10.17-.  Asset Purchase Agreement dated September . 8K - 09-14-07 10.01
: 10,2007 for the purchase of certain assets, N ' .
subject to certain liabilities of S&A Supply, X
Inc. by S&A Purchasing Corp., a wholly-
. bwned subsidiary.of Colonial Commercial ) o .
Corp. - ' e
(a) Form of Amendment Number 1 dated " Yes e
’ March 26, 2008 to Asset Purchase
Agreement dated September 10, 2007 for
. the purchase of cértain assets, subject to L o e,
certain liabilities of 8& A Supply, Inc. by T - CT
S&A Purchasing Corp., a wholly-owned - : : Do
subsidiary of Colonial Commercial Corp. : ¢

10.18 Lease Agreement by and between Zanzi 8-K 11-02-05 10.04
Realty, Inc. and The RAL Supply Group, : T -
Inc., dated September 1, 1998 . : N -

(a) First Modification of Lease Agreement . . 8K 11-02-05 . 10.05

dated September 30, 2003 to Lease . C e
Agreement by and between Zanzi Realty,
Inc. and The RAL Supply Group, Inc., .
dated September 1, 1998 S !

(b)  Second Modification of Lease Agreement ' 8-K . 11-02-05 10.06
dated April 12, 2005 to Lease Agreement
by and between Zanzi Realty, Inc. and The
RAL Supply Group, Inc., dated September '

1, 1998 Coe . . ,
{¢)  Third Modification of Lease Agreement . 8-K - .02-23-07 - 10.04

dated February 21, 2007 to Lease . s oy
Agreement by and between Zanzi Realty, o “
Inc. and The RAL Supply Group, Inc., :

dated September i, 1998

(d)  Option Agreement by and between Pioneer ’ 8-K 02-23-07; ©10.05
Realty Holdings, LLC and Colonial . ‘ o
Commercial Corp., dated as of February 21, oo " o
2007.

10.19 Offer to Purchase Odd Lot Shares and . ' 8-K- 08-18-05 . 10.01

Letter of Transmitt%’ll dated August 16, 2005 .

11.01 Statement re computation of per share . .
‘ earnings (loss)—Not filed since ‘
* computations are readily apparent from the
Consolidated Financial Statements : v

14,01 Code of Ethics 10-K 04-15-05 . 14
21.01 Subsidiaries of Registrant _ Yes -
23:01 Consent of Registered Independent Public “Yes : L .

Accounting Firm—Eisner LLP

23.02 Consent of Registered Independent Public - Yes
Accounting Firm—Weiser LLP : wo
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders ‘

Colonial Commercial Corp. . VR T I SR
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balancé sheet of Colonial” Commercnal Corp.
and- subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2007 and the relatéd consolidated
_statements of operatlonS' ‘stockholders' equity ‘and’ cash ﬂows fot the yedr then ended. These
financial statements are the responSIblllty of the- Companys mandgemént. Our responsnblllty 1s
to express an opmlon on these ﬁnanelal statements baded on our audlt

o, ‘- . . ' A o

We conducted our audit in accordance with the s_tandards:oﬁthe,P-ublic Company -Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those.standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain rcasonable assurance. about whether the financial .statements are free .of ,matenial
misstatement. We were not.engaged to;perform an audit,of the Company's-internal control over
financial reporting. Our-audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of,the Company’s internal.control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. .An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements assessmg the accounting pr1nc1ples uséd and sngmﬁcant est:mates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentanon We belleve that our
aud:t prov1des a reasonable basis for our opmlon " ! D )

In our opinion, the financial statements enumerated above present fairly, in all material respects,

the consolidated financial position of Colonial Commercial Corp. and subsidiaries as of

December 31,2007, and the consolidated results of their,operations and their: consolidated cash
flows for.the-year then ended in ¢onformity with aecountmg prmc1ples generally accepted in the
United States of America. : S S

We have also audited the ﬁnancnal statement Schedule IT (Valuatlon and Quahfymg Accounts)
for 'the ° year ended December 31, 2007. In bur opmlon this schedule presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information required to be set forth theréin.

/s/Eisner LLP
New York, New York : , _
March 31,2008 . . . . s L r '




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Colonial Commercial Corp. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consalidated balance sheet of Colonial Commercial
Corp and Subsidiaries, (the "Company") as of December 310, 2006 and the related consolidated
statements of operatlons stockholders equity, and cash ﬂows for the years. ‘ended December 31,
2006 and .2005. - These financial statements,, .and ﬁnanc1al statement schedule are, the
responsnblhty of the Company's management Our responSIblhty is.to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in-accordance with the standards of the Public ‘Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). ‘Those standards requiire that we -plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whettier the financial: statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining; on a'test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts- and disclosures in the financial statements. - An -audit also includes assessing the’
accounting principles used and significant estimatés.made- by.- management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. - We- believe that' our audlts prov1de a reasonable

b vhg

basis for our opinion. . e 4

In our oplmon the financial stateménts referred to above present falrly, in all material
respects the consclidated financial position of Colomal Commercnal Corp and SubSldlaI‘leS as of
December 31, 2006 and the consolldated results of thelr operatlons and their cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, in conforrmty with U.S. generally accepted

accounting pr1ncxples

: e I T
As: drscussed in Note ](_]) to- the consohdated financial statements, 1n 2006, the
Company 'changed its method of* accounting:.for .stock-based compensation. .~ Also, the
accompanying 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements have been restated to correct the
accountmg for vendor rebates and the computation of diluted earnings per share. - . .

We have also audited the financial statement Schedule [I (Valuatlon and Quallfymg
Accounts) for the years ended December 31, 2006 and’ 2005 Th our opmnon this schedule
presents fairly, in all materlal respects the mformatlon requlred to be set forth therem .

/s/Weiser LLP
New York, NY

March 22, 2007, except for the effects of the restatements, dated August 13, 2007, dlscussed in
the second preceding paragraph. .
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PART L. FINANCIAL INFORMAT]ON

Item 1. Financial Statements

v COLONIAL 'COMMERCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets; _
Cash - :
Accounts réceivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
. of $478,857 in 2007 and $212,043 in 2006
Inventory '

. - . Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Deferred tax asset - current portion
Total current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwil}
Other intangibles
Other assets - noncurrent’
Deferred tax asset - noncurrent

Liabilities and Stockho_lders' Equity
Current liabilities: -
Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Incomie taxes payable
Borrowings under credit-facility - revolving-credit
Convertible notes payable, mcludes related party notes of $62, 500 in
2007 and $0 in 2006
Notes payable - current portion; 1ncludes related party notes of
$30,000 in 2007 and $30,000 in 2006
Total current liabilities
Convertible notes payable, includes related party notes of $262,500 in
2007 and $325,000 in 2006
Notes payable, excluding current portion; includes related party notes of
$750,000 in 2007 and $683,125 in 2006
_Total liabilities

- Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $.05 par value, 2,500,000 shares
authorized, 467,500 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 and 2006,
liquidation preference of $2,337,500 in 2007 and 2006

Common stock, $.05 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, _
4,637,530 and 4,593,680 shares issued and outstanding in 2007

" and 2006, respectively ‘
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit ]

Total stockholders' equity

T

December 31,

December 31,

2007 2006
S 622,723 S 482251
11,364,038 9,069,301
17,282,661 12,854,317
1,107,623 1,057,099

532,500" 420,000 " °
30,009,545 7 . 23,882,968
1,799,689 1,512,666
1,628,133 1,628,133

366,376 3,500 -

227,478 202,177
1,176,000 ° 1,288,500
$36,107.221 $ 28,517,944
$ 7,774,988 $ 4,719,160
1,970,396 - 1,975,175
2,576 1,630
18,027,055 13,615,696
137,500 -
158,827 136,539
28,071,342 720,448,200
337,500 525,000
929,814 792,394
29.338.656 21,765,594
23,375 23375
231,876 229 684
10,773,451 10,707,791
(4,260,137) (4,208,500)
6,768,565 6.752.350
$36.107.221 $ 28,517,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP..AND,SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Stateménts of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31,

- oL 2007 B 2006 2005

Sales . _ ' $ 82,425865. § 71494652 § 66,690,945
Cost of sales ) A 58,870,973 50,057,446 46,560,548

Gross profit ' - . 23,554,892 21,437,206 20,130,397
Selling, general and administrative expenses, net 22,295,941 19,420,124 17,782,752

Operating income 1,258,951 ~ 2,017,082 2,347,645
Other income ‘ 297,218 - 277,866 ’ 272,597
Interest expense, net; includes related party interest of : ,

$101,770 in 2007, $104,485 in 2006 and $93,154 in 2005 (1,502,319) . (1,354,785) (1,044,454)

Income from operations before income tax expense (benefit) 33,850 940,163 1,575,788

Income tax _cxl')ense (benefit) ' - ' 105,487 © 124,391 (487,064)

Net (loss) income , 3 (51,637) § 815,772 % 2,062,852
(Loss) income per common share: .. .

Basic . to. . $ (0.01) 8 0.18 § 0.48

Diluted ‘ A R e (‘X010 N I 016 § 0.40
Weighted average shares outstanding: .

Basic . 4,645,186 4,579,129 C 4,295,697

Diluted | | ~ . 4,645,186 5125646 5293114

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Balance at December 3i, 2004 -

Net income

Stock-based compensation
Conversion of shares of
preferred stock to commén stock
Retirement of preft':rred stock
Options exetcised '

Tax effect of options exercised
Balance at Decémber 31, 2005

Net income .
Conversion of shares of
preferred stock to common stock
Options exercised -
Cptions issued e
Tax effect of options exercised

' Ba'lance at December31, 2006

‘
Net loss

Options exercised

Stock-based compensation
Ref:urchase of common stock
Tax effect of options exercised

Balance at December 31, 2007

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

For the Years Ended Dece

i\]umber of shares, .. -

mber 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

R

e Ly I Vo

Redeemable Redeemable o .

Convertible * Convertible 7 Additional - Total
Preferred Common Preferred Common Paid-In Accumylated Stockholders'
Stock Stock Stock Stock Capital Deficit Equity

790,439 4,158.',441 ’ 39522 % 207922 “$ 10,746,836 $(7,087,l24j ¥ 3,907,156
,. : . ' -
. 2,062,852 2,062,852
(74,450 (74,450)
(298,018) © 298,018 (14,901) 14,901 ’ .
- (7,700 © 77 (385) ' (15,015) - (15,400)
4.0 88,000 4,400 17,600' how 22,000
. o 7 (48,112) (48,112)
484,721 ' 4,544,459 24,236 - 227,223 - 10,626,859 (5,024,272) 5,854,046
! . . : 815,772 815,772
foom a2y el (861) - 861 : -
. 32,000 ' 1,600 " 6,400 8,000
. . 53,412 53,412
: RS 21,120 21,120
© 467,500 ¢ " 4,593,680 23,375, 229,684 10,707,791 ' (4,208,500) 6,752,350
N L '_f -_’: . "~ . |‘ [ *
o . (51,637) (51,637
52,000 2,600 " 10,400 Lo 13,000
T . - 30,364 c ‘ 30,364
' (8,150) Lo (d08) {9424y LY e {9,832)
£y < 34,320 ‘ 34,320
C467,500 ¢ 4,637,530 $ 23375 § 231.876° 5 10773451 - $(4,260,137) < $ 6,768,565

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.”
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COLGNIAL COMMERCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -, -

N

e L S o For The Year Ended

, " . o e T 2007 - 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities: LT ' '
Net (loss) income =~ $ 51,637y % 815,772 § 2,062,852
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash
. provided by (used in) operating activities:
Deferred tax benefit - {641,500) .
Stock-based compensation 30,364 53,412 (74,450)
Provision for doubtful accounts - . 652,468 191,357 101,724
Depreciation T e ] 554,076 - 457,322 387,719, .
Amortization ofmtanglbles - 11,954 7,834 16,166
Accretion of debt discount ' 39,183 37,500 37,500
Tax effect of options exercised o T . 34,320 21,120 (48,112) .
Changes in operating assets and liabilities : '
Accounts receivable - . (1,426,013) (701,615) (816,853)
Inventory (821,110) (867,398) (1,159,168) .
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . - (34,833) - (2,321) (200,926)
Other assets - noncurrent {25,301) (66,343) 47,351
Trade payables - _ 2,108,151 (1,272,786) 1,270,156
Accrued liabilities . L . (23,663) (71,984) 303,153 .
: Income taxés payable . oo . 946 o (11,142) (23,544 .
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,048,905 (1,409,274) . 1,262,068
- Cash flows from investing activities: . _—
Acquisition of S&A Supply Inc. (4,703,375) - Cun -
* Acquisition of Speed Queen assets from Goldman . ’ .
. Associates of NY, Inc, [ . , Lo (149,625) : N
, Additions to property and equlpmem L S ‘ (451,095) (300,504) (401,054)
Net cash used in mvestmg activities |, . . ~(5,154,470) . . + (450,129) - {401,054)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock and exercise of stock options 13,000 8,000 22,000
Retirement of preferred stock - {15,400)
.Repurchase of common stock " (9,832) - -
Repayments of notes payable: includes related party '
repayments of $30,000 in 2007, $60,389 in 2006 and
$48,091 in 2005 (215,242) (162,586) (141,292)
Issuance of notes payable 46,752 13,073 155,699
Repayments under credit facility — term loan/overadvance (562,977) {1,103,690)
Borrowings under credit facility - revolving credit, net 4,411,359 2,432,688 524,466
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,246,037 1,728,198 (558,217)
Increase {decrease) in cash o 140,472 {131,205) 302,797
Cash - beginning of period : 482,251 613,456 310,659
Cash - end of period . 8 622,723 % 482,251 $ = 613,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-7




COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP AND SUBSID[ARIES
Notés to Consolidated Ftnancnal Statements =
December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005 '

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices

(a) Descnptlon of Business Lo L

" Colonial Commer01al Corp (“Colomal”) through its operatmg Sub31dlar1es Universal
Supply Group, Inc. (“Universal”),” RAL Supply Group;rinc: (“RALT), American/Universal
Supply Inc. (“American™).and S&A -Supply, Inc. (“S&A™) (together,. the “Company™), is'a
distributor of heating, ventilation and air’conditioning - (HVAC),.'climate . control products,
plumbmg and’ electrical fixtures and supplies and appliances to building contractors-and’ other
users; which the Company -considers its only .operating seégment. The Company’s: products are
marketed primarily ‘to HVAC, plunibing and electrical -¢ontractors; who;-in tuin, -sell- such
products- to residential and commércial/industrial customers. The Company’s customers ‘are
located in the United States, primarily New Jersey, New York, Massachusetts and’poitions of
‘castern Pennsylvania, Connecticut and Vermont. The Company has no long term. agreement
with any customer. The Company deals with its customers on a purchase order by purchase
order basis. The Company has no material long term agreernents wnth any suppher The
Company enters into agreements with vendors which involve volure” rebates, pricing and
advertising, all “within- the standard practices’ of the industry. Additionally, certain: supplier
agreements limit the sale of competitive. products in de51gnated markets that: the ‘Company
serves. ~ All purchases are made- with: domestlc vendors;, -some 'of which, however may
manufacture products in foreign locations, ’ K

4 B U‘.

(b) Prmcmles ofConsolldatlon - a " Pl e

The consohdated ﬁnanc1al statements 1nclude the accounts of Colonlal and 1ts wholly-
owned Subsidiaries. All 51gn1ﬁcant intercompany balances and transactions hdave been
ehmmated in consolidation. O P T DY
PR 4 Tas o . L

(c) Revenue Recogmtlon MR "

L~

. Revenue-.ls recogmzed when the earnmgs process is complete Wthh'lS generally upon
shlpment .or delivery of products in accordance.with agreed-upon;shipping terms and when title
and risk of loss transfers to the customer.- "The, Company has-no further gbligations subsequent to
shipment or delivery. Customers have the right to return defective products which are
substantially covered under the manufacturer’s warranty. The custonier receives a credit from
the -Company for defective products returned and the Company receives a corresponding credit
provided by the manufacturer The only warranty provided on products ‘sold is prov1ded by the
manufacturer.

(d) Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investment instruments _'W-ith an “original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. "‘

7 .o ' [N LD
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COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolldated Flnanclal Statements, Continued

. . v . . o ' .
N PV S AR N ' oWt ’
. ‘- .

(e) Accounts Receivable BRI - “- -

Accounts receivable consist of trade receivables recorded at original invoice amount, less
an estimated allowance for uncoliectible accounts. Trade credit is generally extended on a short-
-term basis; thus trade receivables generally do not bear. interest. However, a service-charge may
~be applied to receivables that are'past due. These charges,'when collected, are included as other
income.” Trade receivables are periodically evaluated for collectibility based on past credit
history with customers and their current financial condition. Changes in the estimated
collectibility of trade receivables are recorded in the results of operations for the period in which
the estimate is revised. Trade receivables that are deemed uncollectible are offset against the
-allowance for uncollectible, accounts. The Company generally does not require collateral for
trade recetvables. . :

|
(f) nventog . .t - . L T
|
|
|

r . *

e Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and consrsts so]ely of ﬁmshed goods
Cost is determined usmg the first-in, first- out method

Distribution costs of incoming frelght purchasmg, receiving, inspection, warehousing .
.and handling costs are included in selling; general and administrative expenses. Such costs were
$545,985, $431,780 and $421,248 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, .

respectlvely . L S

The Company’s reserve for slow-moving and obsolete inventory ¢ at December 31, 2007
. amounted to $432,000, a decrease of $9 137 durmg the year ended December 31 2007

(g) Vendor Rebates

The Company has arrangements with several vendors that provide rebates to be payable
to the Company when the Company achieves any of a number of measures, generally related to
the volume level of purchases. The Company accounts for such rebates. as a reduction of
inventory until the sale of the product” Rebates'under arrangements-with-vendors that require a
specified cumulative lével-of purchases are recognlzed by the ‘Company based ‘on progress
toward achieving such levels, provrded the rebates are probable and esttmable -

PR

B A
...'..rcl H - .

(h) Property and Equmment ’

Property and equ:pment are stated at, cost Deprecmtlon is calculated on the stralght-hne .
-method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: ~ -~ . ., -+ -

.Computer hardware and software - 3-5 years
Furniture .and‘ fixtures . . _ e .5 years
Automobiles . ' | S : 3'_:5hyearls |
Showroom ﬁntures and displays- . 3 years

Leasehold 1mprovements are amortlzed over the shorter of the lease term or the estlmated
useful life of the asset.




COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Finanéial Statements, Continued

(1) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets "o

Statement-‘of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142;"Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets," requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at-least annually to determine
if the carrying .value of the recorded goodwill is impaired.” Goodwill is recorded when the
purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the estimated faif value of the net identified
tangible and intangible assets acquired. The impairment review process compares the fair value
of the reporting unit in which, goodwill resides to its carrying value. If the fair value of the
reporting unit is less that its carrying value, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the
implied fair value of goodwill, as defined under SFAS No: 142, within the reporting unit is less
than its carrying value, Intanglble assets determined to have finite lives are amortized over thelr_
remammg useful hves The Company has determmed Umversal RAL and S&A are reportmg‘
units.

G tockOptions'-' R S P
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company used the intrinsic-value method of accounting for’
stock-based awards granted to employees. In accordance with SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock Based Co_mpensatlon_—‘ Transition a_nd Dlsc_l_osure the follpwing table presents, the effect
on net income and net income per share, had compensation cost for the Company’s, stock plans,
been determmed consistent with SFAS No 123, “Accountmg for Stock Based Compensatlon”

- On January 1, 2006, the Company, adopted the modlﬁed prospectlve appllcatlon method.
of SFAS No., 123(R) “Share- Based Payment”, which- establlshes standards for.transactions in
which an entlty exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This standard requires. an
entity to measure the cost of employee servnces received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on, the grant date fair value of the award. This eliminates the exception to
account for such awards using the intrinsic method prev;ously allowable under APB Opinion No.
25 SFAS No 123 (R) was effectlve for the f'lrst penod after December 31 2005, . '

The followmg table lllustrates the effect on net mcome 1f the falr-value based method had‘

been applied to all outstanding and unvested _q\_vards fog 2005. . o
¢ ' ‘ - 1: M . Y . v . o . . » - i
200
vt ' " . N D
t Net income, as reportéd . T - $2,062,852
[l -~ . ‘. Lty &
Add: Stock-based compensation related 10 option repricing (74.450)
Pro forma £1,988,402
Basic net income per common share’ - -
L3 3 ’ N R o P
. Asreported . . $048
! " Pro forma $046°
Diluted net income per common share N
As reported $0.40
Pro forma $0.38

There were no common ‘stock equivalents excluded from the above diluted net income
per share calculations.
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(k) Net (Loss) Income Per Common Share

e

. Basic 'income -per share -excludes any dilution. It is based upon the welghted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Dilutive earnings per share reflect the
potentlal d11ut10n that-would occur if securities or other, contracts to issue common stock were
gxercised or converted into common stock.

3

(1) ‘Income Taxes - -

‘ Income taxes are, accounted for under the asset and hablhty method Deferred tax assets
“and liabilities are recogmzed for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between,
'the ﬁnancral statement carrying amounts of exrstmg assets and habllltles and their. respective tax
bases, and operatmg loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets- and liabilitjes are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a' change in tax rates is recogmzed in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.>

+ " '-The Company records a valuation allowance against an‘Y"porﬁon' of the' deferred income
tax asset ‘when it believes, based on the weight of available evidence, 1t is more hkely than not
that’ some portlon of the deferred tax asset w1ll not be reahzed - = -

In June 2006, the FASB lssued FASB Interpretatlon No. 48 Accountmg for Uncertamty
in' Income Taxes-an interpretation- FASB No. 109 '(“FIN 48”), whlch prescribes accounting for
and disclosure of uncertainty in tax positions. This intéipretation defines the criteria that must be
met for the'benéfits of a tax position to be recogmzed in ‘the ﬁnancral statements and the
measmement of tax- benefits' recogmzed ' ‘ ST

. The Company adopted the prov151ons of FIN 48 on January 1 2007 Under FIN 48 tax
positions must meet a “more- hkely-than -not’”, recognltlon threshold ‘at the effective date to be
recogmzed upon the adoptlon of FIN 48 and in subsequent periods. The adoptlon of FIN 48 had
no‘impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and did not result in unrecognized -
tax benefits being recorded. Accordmgly, no. correspondinginterest-and pénalties-have been
accrued. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various
states. There are cun'ently no federal or state income tax examinations underway for these
jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by the '
Internal Revenue Service and state and local tax authorities for tax years before 2003. The
Company does, however, have prior year net operanng losses datmg back to 1993, which remain
open for examination. :

(m) Impairment of Long- leed Assets and Lon,c_r, Lived Assets to Be Dlsoosed of

v}
Long-lived assets, such as intangible . assets furniture, equlpment and leasehold

- improvements, are evaluated for impairment when evénts or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through estimated undiscounted
future cash flows from the use of thesc assets. When any such impairment exists, the related
assets will be written down to fair value. ~ cee : Voo
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4+

(n) Use of Estimates. -~ AV i U PR T URRERL 2
l!

The preparatlon of the ﬁnancral statements in""Hccordance. with accountmg pr1nc1ples
generally accepted in the’ Umted States of Amerlca requ1res management to. make estnmates and
assumptlons that affect the reported amourits of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contmgent
assets and llabthfles at the date of the ﬁnancral statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses durlng the reportlng perlod Slgnlﬁcant estimates include valuatlon reserves for
accounts’ recelvable mventory and i 1ncome taxes and valuatton of g goodwdl Actual results could

d1ffer from those estlmates ,' R . ‘ o
2 ¢ o Srr oy T T - .

(o) Recent Issued Accountmg Pronouncements oot

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”) This Standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measurmg "fair’ value in generally accepted accounting pr1nc1ples and ‘expands
disclosures about fair' value measurements 'SFAS"1’57 is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and 1nter1m periods within those fiscal years
The adoption of SFAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s ﬁnancra]
position, results of operations or cash flows.

"K"

~In Februaryc 2007, the FASB issued, Statement of Financial, Accountmg Standards No_
159, The Fair Value Optzon for F manaal Assets and Fmancml Ltabllztles (“FASB 159”) This

standard permits an entlty to choose 1o’ measure many’ ﬁnanclal mstruments and certam othér.

items at fair value! The o"bjectrve 1s to 1mprove financial reportmg by provrdmg entities with the

opportumty to mmgate volatlllty in reported eamlngs caused by measunng related assets and.

liabilities, dlfferently wrth  having ; to apply complex accountlng prov1s1ons The adoption, of
- SFAS 159 is not expected to have a materlal impact on the Company’s financial posmon

" In December 2007, the Securltles .and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accountmg

Bulletin No. i lO Use of a Srmphf ted Method in Developmg Expected Term of Share Optrons,

(“SAB 110™). SAB 110" expresses the current view of the staff that it will accept a company S

election to use the simplified method d1scussed in Staff Accountmg Bulletin 107, Share Based

Payment, (“SAB 107”_), for “€stimating the expected term of “plain -vaniila” share options
- régardless of whéther the company has. sufficient iftformation to make more: refined estimates.

1

SAB110 became effective: for the Company. on January 1; 2008. The adoptron of SAB 110 1s

not expected to have'a matetial impact on the Company’s ﬁnan01al posmon e

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Finarcial Accountmg Standards No.’

141(revised 2007), Busihess Combinations, (“FASB.141R”). This standard: requires that entities
recognize the, assets tacquired, liabilities assumed, ‘contractual contingencies and coritingent
consideration measured- at-their*fair-Value at the acquisitiondate’ ‘for. any business combination
consummated after the effective:date.- 1t further requires -that-acquisitionrélated costs afe to be
recognized -separately from the’acquisition and expensed as incurred. FASB 141R'is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December'15,2008. The adoption of FASB 141Ris not expected
to have a material impact on the Company s financial position. -

F-12
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Sratements-—an amendment of ARB No. 51, SFAS No. 160 requires that
the ownership interests in subs1d1ar1es held by partles other than the parent be clearly identified,
labeled and presented in the consohdated statement of financial posntlon within equity, in the
amount ‘of consolldated net mcome attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest on
the face of the consolidated statement of i income, and that entities provide sufficient disclosures
that clearly 1dent1fy and dlstmgmsh between the mterests of the parent and the’ interests of the
noncontrollmg owners. SFAS No. ‘160 is effective for fiscal years, beginning on or after
December ‘15, 2008 and cannot be applied earlier. The adoption of SFAS No. 160 is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial' position.

(p) Reclassnt‘canon T ; ; ; - .

Certam pnor year amounts have been recla351fied to conform with the currept year
presentation ‘of ﬁnancral statements T'h1s reclass1ﬁcat1on has no 1mpact on the Company S
ﬁnanc1al statements

N
) v

2. Busmess Acqulsmons P T
S&A Acquisition

“ On September 10, 2007 the Company, through a wholly owned sub51d1ary, purchased
from S&A Supply, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation, (“S&A Supply”) ‘and affiliates of S&A
Supply, all of their tang1ble and’ mtanglble assets, including acéounts receivable, inventory, fixed
assets, but excludmg certam accounts feceivable and other specifically excluded assets, and
assumed certain habllttles 1ncludmg trade- accounts payable and motor vehicle loans. S&A
Supply IS a dlstrlbutor of heatmg, electr1cal and plumbmg supplles in the western Massachusetts_
area. A _

This acqu:smon is being’ operated as a wholly owned sub51d1ary of the Company and
under the name of S&A Supp]y, Inc The Aacquisition expands our geographtc tradmg area and

 adds electrtcal equlpment and supplles to our product offerings.

In connection with the’ acqu1s1t|on the Company entered into three 5-year lease
agreements for two locations in Great Barrington, Massachusetts and one location in Pittsfield,
Massachusetts for aggregate.annual rentals of $180,000, plus real estate taxes and, maintenance.
The Company also assumed a $1,425. month-to-month tenancy. with a.non-related party for a
locatton in North Adams Massachusetts

[
K N

. The Company also entered into employment agreements with Brian Mead and Adam
Mead, minority, shareholders of S&A Supply and its affiliates, and a consulting agreement with
Nancy Mead, the-majority shareholder of S&A Supply and its affiliates for an annual aggregate

‘commitment of approximately $170,000 for salary, automotive.expenses and other benefits, plus

additional incentives if certain levels, of proﬁtabthty are achieved.. Said. agreements expire on

December 31, 2010."
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~The acquisition was accounted for using-the,purchase method of accounting ‘and was
financed out of. the Conipany'’s credit facility. The Company’s financials statements for the year
ended December 31, 2007 include the actmty of S&A Supply from September 10, 2007 through
December 31, 2007. The purchase price is equal to, the book value of the assets on the date of
acquisition, plus $315,000, less the book.value of thé assumed liabilities on the date of
acquisition. The Asset Purchase Agreement provides for adjustments to be made on or about
January 18, 2008 related to differen¢es between the book value of accounts receivable and
inventory on the date of acquisition and amounts ultimately realized. On March 26, 2008, the
Asset Purchase Agreement was amended to extend the date for makmg adjustmg payments to
April 30, 2008 (“Amendment Number- 1), :

Based on a third paity valuation, the purchase price, including acq\nsmon costs, resulted
in the recognition of $373,000 of other 1ntang1ble assets. :

o ’
The fair values of the assets acqulred and liabilities assumed 'for the acquisition are as
follows: P . b

Inventory _ . . ) £ 3,610,000
Accounts receivable C o _ 1,520,000
Other current assets - A 3‘6_,00'9 .t
Preperty and equipment; net -+ - .- - K ey ©or 390,000 Ly,
‘ C_ustomer List' - ‘.’. . - 290,000
) Trade Nar_n'e, e - I l33’,!00‘0 . ‘ J
Covenant ol to.compete . e """.10.,6(‘)0 X
Total tarigible and intalilgible assets acquired ‘ 5,929,000
PR Less liabilities assﬁ__m_ed: T Y
Curtent liabilities K ' " 1,100,000
Long-term llabilmes o : " ' 'j.'“l;ZSF,IO(F)O -‘\ .
| Total hablhtles . -..(_‘I.-“"'_W o . ,.t: ‘ : -l,225,06b Ca e
( - Net Assets Acquired o o $  ;1,7;05,000 S
; ot . oo ’ )
. ¢ . ' R . -
- ne S, .
PR 1 SR i
T
; . 3 ot

F-14'
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.., +-Presented below are-the unaudited; pro forma ‘financial results prepared under the
assumpnon that the S&A Supply acqu1s1t10n had been.completed at the- begmnmg of the penod

presented e Lty 3 .-‘,.,"’" L
- S Lokt e 1) R
P T Pro‘Forma Condensed ConsolldatedO erating Dat : '
et e (Unaudlted) b ! L e
S T N . |_1| TN I Forthe YearEnded . ‘ " "';NE P
" R O »« December 31 S _—
L . . : - R T o 007t L . 2006' L . Dl .
AR LS | SR T B LIS DO T — : ' [

Net Sales
Vo . ! -Operating income's  © "

Net (loss) income:

. - . "
- . . P o1

(Loss) income per common share:
«+ "Basic: ’
Lo Diluted: -

3. Property and'vl'f'quipment

$91.753.435

" 1970451 o

$86461466

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31:

o
Computer hardware and software
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Showroom fixtures and displays
Automobiles + - - .

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

r

N

: 4 Other Intanglble Assets

12285082 &
Drad oLt B R BT RN
$_(559.972) $ 793,002
-
3 (012) $017 ¢
5012 - $ 0.15
2007 -, . .. 2006
$1,259,181 . $ 1,040,441
177,077 - 91,558
. 1,552,898 1,410,425
T 29 958 79,606
. 950,814 ~ © __ 550,829
3,969,928 - 3,172,859
{2,170,239) - (1,660,193)
3 1,792,‘§§2 L3 _1,512,666

"‘3\ B IL

The Company has certain’ identifiable mtanglble assets that are subject to amortization.
Intangible assets are included in “Other mtanglbles” in the consolidated balance sheets. The

.components of mtanglble assets are as follows:
December 31, 2007

P
i

December 31, 2006

: Estimated
Gross o Net Gross : Net Useful
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying Life .
- Amount Amortization Amount Amount  Amortization Amount (Years)
Covenants Not to Compete  $251,667 $(241,000) $ 10,667 $241,667 $(238,167)  $3,500 35
Customer List © $291,864 . § (8,209) §$283,655 - - - 10
Trade Name $ 72,966 $  (912) § 72,054 - Co- - - 20
" Total $616,497 $(250,121) " $366,376 $241,667 = $(238,167)  $3,500

Amortization expense amounted to $11,954, $7 834 and $16 166 for the years ‘ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectlvely

-

E-15¢
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‘ “Estlmated Amortization Expense: .’ - o ah
For the Years Endéd December 31,

2008 ... %3450 -
2009 - T 33,000 - L
2010 - .t 733,000 '
v 2011 S o 33,000 . :
- 2012 33,000 '
Thereafter . _199.876
r o _L_gggggzg o

]

5. Fmancmg Arrangements

In connection with the acqursmon “of S&A Supply, Inc., the Company amended its
secured credit facility (“Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, Nat1onal Association (“Wells”) to
increase the Company’s facility from $15 million to $25 million and extended the maturity of the
facility from August 1, 2010 to August 1,2012. The $25 million facility includes a $1 million
structural sublimit, as deﬁned in the Agreement; payable in.24 equal monthly instaliments,-and
up. to $500,000 of seasonal over-advances. The initial interest rate on the term loan is prime
minus 0.25%, but the interest rate on up to 75% of the loan’s outstandmg balance can be
' convened by the Company to 2}2% over LIBOR.* o Pt

" The revolving credit line bears interest at 25% be]ow prrme At December 3l 2007 the
Company had a standby letter of credit, which expires on,July 31, 2008. The standby letter of
credit reduces the availability .of the. credit- facility by $300,000 and additional ‘reserves
determinéd by the bank further reduce the availability of the credit facility. by $100,000.
Borrowings under the credit facility are secured by the available assets of the Company, as
defined in the Agreement. Availability under the revolving creditline was $718,583 as of
December 31, 2007 and is determined by a percentage of available assets’ as defined in the
Agreement, less letters of credit and reserves. The balance outstandmg under the revolving line
of credit was $18,027,055 as of December 31 2007. The interest rate on the revolvmg credrt
facility as.of December 31, 2007 was 7.0%. '

The Company believes that'the credit faclhty is sufﬁcrent to finance its current operating
needs. However, the business of the Company would be materially and adversely affected if the
bahk ‘demands payment of the loan and the Company is unable to refinarice the loan: In the
event that Mr. Pagano no longer performs the duties of the President of Universal or the Vice
President of RAL for any reason other than death or disability, the Company will be consrdered
in default of its credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank National Association unless a waiver is
obtained. The facility contains covenants that are determined annually and relate 10 the
Company’s monthly and quarterly net income, quarterly cash flows, quarterly tangible pet worth,
and annual capital expenditures. The facility also restricts the payment of dividends,
subordinated debt and purchase of-securities. . The continuation of the credit facility is
conditioned upon the Company and Wells reaching agreement on.the covenants. - While the
Company and Wells have reached mutually agreeable covenants in‘the past, there is no assurance
that they will be able to do so in the future. As of Deceifiber 31,2007, the Compaiiy' was ‘in
default of its monthly and quarterly net income and quarterly cash flow covenants; however,
Wells has waived this event of default and reset the financial covenants for 2008 for a fe¢ of
$35,000." This waiver applies to the quarter ended December 31, 2007 and does not extend
- beyond this period. - A T S Lo . TR
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In addition to this fee, Wells stated that they may require the Company to’ delay the
repayment of a $750,000 note to Goldman’ Assomates of New " York, Inc,

(“Goldman

Associates™) which was due on June 30, 2008. Goldman Associates has extended the term of

payment of this note to January 1, 2009. Michael Gpldman, Chairman of the Board of the
Company, is the beneficial owner of Goldman Associates. For additional information regarding

Mr. Goldman and Goldman Associates, see Note 17. Related Party Transactions, below.

.6. Notes Payable

*

Notes payable consist of the following at December 31: k
: 2007

Various term notes payable, (collateralized by the book value of |
'equlpment the purchase of which'such notes financed) with aggregate
monthly ‘principal and interest instaliments of $13,043 and $6,378 for

2007 and 2006 respectwely, bearmg interest between 9% t0 5.9% '$+ 336,333

1

Subordinated tefm note payable to.a private 1nd1v1dual $30 000 annual * ‘
.principal payment, interest at 9% payabie monthly.* - 30,000

. ; [ e . . M

Subordinated term note payable to an investment company, $30,000

annual principal payments, interest at 9% payable monthly. " 30,000
Term notes payable to private investors, subordinated unsecured

convertible notes payable, bearing interest at 11% per annum, interest’. =~ ... ¢
payable quarterly, with 50% of the principal payable on June 1, 2008 e

and the. balance on June 1, 2009. ‘The notes are convertible into 91,666

shares in 2007 and 108,333 shares in 2006 of'common stock.at $3.00

per share during the term of the notes. **

Term notes payable to prlvate 1nvestors subordmated unsecured
convertible notes payable, bearing’ interest at 11% per annum, interest. ..
payable quarterly, with 50% of the principal payable on January 1, -
2009 and the balance .on June 1, 2009. ‘ The notes are convertibleinto - -
.66,667 shares in.2007 and 66 667 shares in 2006 of common stock at

T

$3.00 per share dunng the term ofthe notes.*** .. ..; - 2000000 |

Term note payable of $750 000 to a corporauon subordmated secured’
‘note payable, beanng interest at the prime rate and payable quarterly,
principal payable on January l 2009 and warrants to purchase 150,000
shares of ¢ommon stock at $3 00 per share expiring December 31, '~
2008. The wartrant was'initially recorded at a fair valile of $187 500 o
and-recorded as a discount from the face value of the note and an
increase to additional paid in capital. The discount is being accreted -
over the term of the note as additional interest expense. The Company-
-recorded $39,183 and $37,500 in interest expense dunng 2007 and ..

o .. 275000

.+ 325,000,

[
=
>
N

|

60,000

60,000

4

'S 155,808

1
'

653,125

,2006, respectively, related to the warrant. **** . p . 692,308
o L e e 6364
- Less current in_stallments . R L (296,327)

1,453,933 .

(136,539)

$1,267,3.14

$1,317,394 -

*The term note payable bearing interest at 9% is to Paul Hildebrandt, who is a related party.
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**Included in the above term note payable bearing interest at-11%, are three notes considered to
be related party transactions; $50,000.term 'note payable to William Salek, Chief.Financial
Officer and Secretary of the Company, $25,000 term note payable to Eileen Goldman, the wife
of Michael Goldman and $50, OOO term-note payable to Paul Hildebrandt., '

“**#*Included in the above term note payable bearing interest at 11%, are two notes consndered to

be related party transactions; $100,000"term note payable to William Pagano, President of
Universal and Director of the Company, and $100,000- term note’ payable to tha Folger
beneficial owner, of greater than 5% of the Company. '~ & + . S . .

****The term note’ payable beanng interest at primé rate is to Goldman Assoc1ates of New York
Inc., in which Michael Goldman is President, is also considered a related party. Pursuant to the
Private Placement Agreement, Goldman Associa}es agreed that it and its affiliates will not_until
May 31, 2008 without the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of the Company (i)

acquire, agree t0 acquire or make -any proposal to acquire any voting secmmes or, assets of the

Company or any of its afﬁhates (ii), propose to enter dnto any merger, consolidation,
recap1tal|zat1on busmess comblnatlon or other 51mllar transactlon involving. the Company or
any of 1ts afﬁllates (iii) make, or in any way part101pate in any “solicitation” of “proxies” (as
such terms are used in the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn) to .vote or
seek to advise or influence.any person with respect to the voting of any voting securmes of the
Company or any of its affiliates or'(iv) forni, join or in any way participate in a “group” as
defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of'1934, as amended, in connection

~.with any of the foregoing or (v) advise, a351st or encourage any other persons in connectlon w1tl1

“the foregoing. - . .o : R
" Matirities of notes payable are as folloyys: S L
2008 e o $296,327: . .o
2009 . . .« ... P LI83356 . . - . ¢
3010 (.. - 53953
2011 oo 21,878 .
. _ 2012 S . 8137 . _
7. Capital Stock . e T SR S e .

Each share of the Company’s convertible preferred stock s (fonyeﬁible info one share of
the-Company’s common stock. Convertible preferred stockholders will be entitled to 4 dividend,
based upon a formula, when and if any dividends are declared on the Company’s common stock.
The convertible preferred stock is redeemable; at the option 'of the Company, at $7.50 per share.
The shares contain a liquidation preference. pr0v1s1on ent1t1mg the holder to receive payments
equalmg$5 00 pershare. . .. . ¢ . L ... o '

The voting fights of 'thé'eo‘mmon'stock'holder's' and preferred stockholders ‘are based upon

the number of shares of convertible preferred stock outstanding. There are currently less than

600,000 shares of convertible preferred stock outstanding. The Company's Restated Certificate
of Incorporation proyides that the Board of Directors is to consist of.one class of Directors if
there are less than 600,000 shares'Convertible Preferred Stock outstandmg As of December 31,
2007,. ‘thé rumber of preferred shares outstandmg was 467,500, aecordmgly, the Board of
Directors to be elected at the 2008 annual shareholders’ meeting ‘will .consist of one class of
Directors elected by the holders of common stock and convertible preferred stock voting together
as one class on a share for share basis.

pag. - -
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At December 31, 2007, there were 872,833 shares of common stock reserved: for

. conversion of preferred stock and for the exercise of vested stock options, convertible notes and
 warrants. : ER R B T - ST

Messrs, Goldman, Korn, Pagano, Rozzi, and: Mrs."Folger each sign‘ed a stock‘ purchase
and sale standstill agreement in which they agreed until May 31, 2008 not.to purchase any stock
without written consent from the Company and they,will not sell any stock to anyone when such

a sale would create a new 5% shareholdér unless such. person first énfers into a similar standstill.

agreement. On November 2, 2007, the Company terminated said Standstill Agreements dated-
June 21, 2004 between the Company and Messrs. Goldman, Kom Pagano, Rozzi, and Mrs.
Folger. : . '

. : ) L T S L r
8. Equity Transactions *  + . . . N R T S T T

LI}

During the year ended December 31, 3007, the Company 1ssued 52,000 shares of
common stock pursuant to the exercise of stock opllons On January 2, 2007, Bernard Korn
obtained 52,000 ghares of common stock by exerc1smg 52, 000 outstandmg stock options. 'M.
Korn was Chairman and Ch1ef Executlve Officer of the Company until his resrgnanon on Aprrl

.17, 2006 and served as a non: executlve employee of the Company unt11 his death on December

12, 2007. .

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the uGo_m'pa'ny‘r issued 32,000 sha,res_,of,.
common stock pursuant to the exercise of stock options: On April 3, 2006, Ronald H. Miller .
obtained 12,000 shares of common stock, by exercising 12,000 outstanding stock options. Mr..
Milier is a Director of the Company. On April 17, 2006, Jack Rose obtained 12,000 shares of -
common stock, by exercising 12,000 outstanding stock options. . Mr. Rose was a Director of the
Company at the time of the transaction. On May 16,2006, a noh-cxecutive employee of the

+ Company obtained 4,000 shares of common stock by exercising 4,000 outstanding stock options.

On May 31, 2006, a non-executive employee of the Company obtained 4 000 shares of common
stock by exercising 4,000 outstanding stock optlons »

Durmg the year ended December 31, 200? no shares of redeemable preferred stock were

converted into common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2006, holders of a total of

17,221 shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock converted these shares into 17,221
shares of Common Stock. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the number_ of convertible -

preferred shares outstanding was 467,500. - o e el

On November 21, 2007, the Board of D1rectors authorrzed thé Company to repurchase up -
to $250,000 of its common and/or preferred stock' in open. market or privately negotiated
purchases., There is no expiration date assoctated with this program. As of December 31,2007,
the Company purchased 8,150 .shares of common. stock: on'the open market for an aggregate:
purchase price of $9,832 and approximately $240,168 remains available for repurchase under the
program. The Company accounted for these transactlons utxl1zmg the constructlve retirement
method.

i el e e . . iy

9. Stock Option Plans L R T T IR L E S L P TR VT LI

In June 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Optlon Plan (the “1996 Plan”) and

- the ability to grant opt1ons under this plan explred on Deteniber 31, 2005 At December 31,

2007 a'total of 22 090 optlons were outstandmg under the 1996 Plan Wthh explre m June 2009

.
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'On Septeimber 29, ' 2006, the ‘Company adopted the Colonial- Commercial Corp. 2006
Stock Plan, (the “2006 Pla"”) The 2006 Plan’ enables the Company-to grant equity and equ1ty-
linked awards to our Directors, officers, employees and other persons who provide services to
the Company. The 2006 Plan is intended to allow us .to provide incentives that will (1)
strengthen the desire of hlghly competent persons to prowde services to us and (2) further
stimulate their efforts on our behalf.

- The followmg is a'summary of certain prowsnons of the 2006 Plan

. Shares Avallable The maximum number of shares of common ‘stock that may be
delivered under the 2006 Plan is 1,000,000, subject to adjustment for certain specified changes to
the Company’s capital structure. 'As of December 31 2007, 925, 000 optlons were available to be
issued.-

l1g1b1hg All directors, officers and other employees and other persons who prov1de
services to the Company are eligible to parttc:pate in the 2006 Plan.

* - Administration.” The ‘adniinistrator- of ‘the’ 2006 Plan will be "the board “or any other
committee which the board designates to serve as the administrator &f the 2006 Plan.’

Types of Awards. The'types of awards that' may be made under the 2006 Plan aré stock
options, stock appreciation’ rights; réstricted stock"awards, and’ stock units. The board or the
committée that administers the 2006 Plan will fix the terms of each award, ‘including, to the
exient relevant, the following: (1) exercise price for options, base price for stock appreciation
rights, and purchase price, if any, for restricted stock awards, (2) vesting requirements and other
conditions to exercise, (3)term and termination, (4) effect, if any, of a change of control and (5)
method of exercise and of any requlred payment by the reCIplent ' :

H

Term of Plan. No award may be granted under the 2006 -Plan after the close of business
on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary ofthe adoption of the 2006 Plan.
However, all awards made prior to such time will remain in effect.in accordance with their terms.

On December 6, 2006, 100,000 10-year options were granted to independent directors at

- the closing market price of that day, or $1.85, 40,000 options vested immediately and 20,000

options vest and become exercisable on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date. If

- an independent director resigns, their unvested options are immediately forfeited and they have
60 days to exercise their vested options: S

On January 22, 2007 Phillip Siegel! resrgned as a D1rector and his 15, 000 optlons that
would have vested on each of the first three anniversaries of the Grant Date were forfeited and he
had sixty days from the date of his resignation to exercise his 10,000 vested options. Mr. Siegel
did not exercise his 10,000 vested options and said options were forfeited.

No optlons were granted during the year ended December 31, 2007.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation method to estimate the fair value of stock
options at the grant date. The Black-Scholes valuation model uses the option exercise price and
the number of options expected to be exercised as well as assumptions related to the expected
price volatility of the Company’s stock, the rate of. return on risk-free investments, the period
during which the options will be outstanding, and the expected dividend yield for the Company’s
stock to estimate the fair value of the stock option on the grant date. The fair value of the stock
options, which are subject to grading vestmg, is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
life of the stock optlons
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The fair value of each optlon granted on December 6, 2006 under the 2006 Stock Plan of
$1.78 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pncmg method using the following -
assumptions: ) .- _ , o

k _2006 .
Historical stock prlce volatlllty - ' 160‘.50%
Risk- free mterest rate - ' ‘_ “ - 4.44%
Expected life {in years) ' 634 |
Dividend yield ' ' 0.00

The valuation assumptions'wer'e determined as follows:

Historical stock price volatility: The Company used the daily closing stock prices to
calculate historical annualized volatlllty o - o .

Risk-free interest rate; The Company bases the risk-free interest rate on the interest rate

payable on U.S. Treasury . securities in effect at the time of.the grant for a.period that is
commensurate with the assumed expected option life. .

Expected life: The expected life of the options represents the pénod of time options are

- expected to be outstanding.” The Company uses’ hlstoncal data of prewously 1ssued optlons to

estimate expected option life. : "

~ Dividend yield: The estimate for: dividend 'yie]'d is O.'OO, because the Company has not
historically paid, and does not intend for the foreseeable future to pay, a dividend. .

N
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Changes in options outstanding are‘as follows: = * /" - ...
) B . Weighted - Aggregate
" 'Shares Subjectto ~ Average © | Intrinsic
Option ' Exercise Price Value
Balance at December 31, 2004 ' 1'94,000 o - 025
Options Exercised' *+ ' L (88.000) S 028 )
Balance at December 31, 2005 v 106,000 11025
[ , )
Options Exercised Lo e et 4 (32,000), - ., . 0.25
Options Granted .. - _100,000 - ., 185
Balance at December 31, 2006 ‘ “174000 1.17 $330,600
i ST e e Gl e
Options Exercised - .+ . . ..+ (52, 000) Bos o 025
't v, T ,,‘.I. [N L T TR . bt R ' | TR T
Options Forfeited ) v, h (25,00!!1 o T B -
Balance at December 31,2007+ ~ 97000 149 s 24200
ExerCtsable at December 31, 2006 114,000 081 ' $216,600
Exerc1sable at December 31, 2007 67,000 1.32 $ 24,200

Pnor to January i, 2006 the Company used the intrinsic ‘method- prevrously allowed
under APB Opinion No. 25 to value options. The number of options outstanding under the
variable pricing method as of December 31, 2005 was 43,000, which caused the Company to
incur additional stock-based compensation income of $74,450 for the year ended December 31,
2005. As of January 1, 2006 all options outstanding were fully vested therefore the Company
was not required to make a stock compensation expense entry under the rules of SFAS No.
123(R). : - . " o o

-In 2006,.the Company incurred stock-based compensatlon expense of- $53 412 and as of
December 31, 2006, had unrecognized compensation of $80,118 which was expected to be
recognized over a period of three years under the modified prospective appl1cat1on method of
SFAS No. 123(R) for options granted on December 6, 2006, In 2007, the Company incurred
$30,364 in stock-based compensation expense and as of December 31, 2007 had unrecogmzed-

compensation of $49,754, .

On January 22, 2007, a Director resigned and his 10,000 shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of his options expired sixty days after his resignation. In addition, his
-~ 15,000 options that vest over three years were forfeited on his date of resignation. On January 2,

2007 an employee exercised 52,000 options.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options at December 31, 2007:

f:'Optiens Outstanding and Exercisable

' o, 'W'eighted'Average .
Range of ,‘ o ) | Remaining . Weighted Average |
Exercise Prices Shares ‘Corrtractual Life Exercise Price
$ .25 22000 147 . $ .25
$1.85 45,000 . 8.94 $1.85
"Options Outstanding and Non-exercisable " e
$1.85 30000 . 7895 $1.85

The'éompany expects all 30,000 outstandjng and unvested optioas to vest.

10. Net (Loss) Income Per Common Share

Basic net income ‘per share is computed by dividing income available:to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings
per share reflect, in periods in which they have a dilutive effect, the impact of common shares
issuable upon exercise of stock options.

A reconciliation between the numerators and denommators of the bastc and dlluted
mcome per common sharg is as follows:

e ' . poo T ' . T

) 2007 2006 2005

[ - ~ o Fa ) T . 1
" Neét (loss) income (numerator for basic income per share) ' $(51 637) - $815,772  $2,062,852
Interest expense on convertible notes (net of tax), . : ) - 51,513

g
Adjusted net (1oss) income (numerator for d:iuted income per share} . §!§ !,Q} Z[ § 815,772  $2,114.365

bl i L - -
" Ve . s .

Weighted average common shares =~

(denbn*finator—for basic incomie per share) . .« v -7 Lonr .- 4,645,186 '4,579,129 . 54:,295,697'
' . ) e e, ...“ L . -,‘ P .o e < ‘ ) -
Effectofdllutlve securmes T SRRL A R C o,
Convertible preferred ‘stock ' . - 472,451 683,695
Convertible notes . i - - 175,000
Employee stock options.. ' ; - . e T ==, .. 14066 138,722
Welghted average common and potenual common shares g e '.' . o ’ _‘ L T
outstandlng (denommator for dlluted income per share) ©o TP 45645186 C 5,125,646 5,293,114
Basic net (loss) income per.share. ) ', w48 0.0y $0.18 v $04§
Diluted net (loss) income per share § (001 - $0.16 - $0:40
Ae Ltk e ’ - ; N M ' '
' m s ! . ! o !

. - F:23;
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. Employee stock options totaling 97,000 for the year ended December-31, 2007 were not -
mcluded in the net loss per share calcu]atlon because their éffect would have been anti-dilutive,
Convertible preferred stock, convertible into 467 500 shares of common stock for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was not included in the net loss per share because its effect would have been
anti-dilutive. Convertible notes, in the principal amount of $475,000 and $525,000, convertible
into 158,333 and 175,000 shares of common stock, respectively, were not included- in the net loss
per share-calculation for. the years ended December 31, 2007-and 2006, respectively; because
their effect would have been anti-dilutive. There were no common stock equnvalents excluded

from the above diluted net income per share calculations for 2005.

11. Income Taxes

-
- .

The prov1s1on for i meome taxes consists of the followmg -

oy ’

2007 2006 . e - 2005
; State ‘State o "', State
L And And ‘ And
Federal Local * . Total Federal Local Total Federal Local Total
L L . L. LDt e L
Current ' 522,751 $382,736 $105,487' $17,698 $106,693 . .$124.391 -$(16,239) $170,675 3 154,436
Deferred - " - - - - (641! 500) i - (641,500

Total tax expense

(benefit) - M S 82736, M M@é 3106603 - . §124.391 .. M $170.675 $(487,064)
The components of deferred income tax beneﬁ t are as follows: ‘L! "' )
. (70 SRR VI !
: . : oo L2007 . 2006 - 2005
Deferred tax expense (beneﬁt), excluswe of the effects of the other v ) )
components listed below  Te ¢ R U 0 g -0 8 1]
oo e . : : (A S S L AR R PR B JOTIeS BT
Decrease in beginning-of- the-year balance of the valuatlon allowance for A by, T R
deferred tax assets : U -0 (641,500}
e e S " e g‘i . :' ’ . o ! + R LI
Gengration of. continuing operations net operating loss carryforward * -, g Qo M 0. . 0
LTI ’ Lo Y L B . \ l"-. 'R r “ NI
: ‘ 50 s 0 M

Tk

T

A reconciliation of the provision. for i mcome taxes computed at the Federal statutory rate to the

reported provision for income taxes follows

2006

- 2007 2005
ot
Tax provision at Federal’ statutory rate 34.00 % 34.00% 34.00% )
Utilization of net operating loss  + 0.00 % (34.00)% (34.00)%
Alternative minimum tax ) " 42.25%
. State income taxes, net of federal bénefit © -~ > 100009% J- .7.08% “:7.15% .
. .Change in valuation allowance for.deferred tax assets (10.06)% . C000%., 40.I0% 5L .

Permanent differences - S et o 26012% 0 (167 % 159 % | ek
Other 3.49% . 448 % 1.05%
Total - S, T 195.89% o 13.23%  (30.90%.

_.;‘IE B PIY REPT
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"The tax effects of - temporary differences that give rise 'to srgmﬁcant portions of the
deferred tax assets and habllltles at December 31, 2007 and 2006 dare presented ‘below.

. e g e 2007 . 2006
. Current-Deferred Tax Assets:  ~ K . BRI Coee DT o !
" Federal net operating loss carryforwards  +, T 3 532,500 $ - 420,000,

Current Deferred Tax Assets, ., —, .

Non-current Deferred Tax Assets:” ' )
Federal net operating loss carryforwards $ 7481331 § 9937591,

State net operating loss carryforwards 136,501 -~ 75121
Allowance for doubtful accounts » * - v "253,514: © 107,647
Additional costs inventoried for tax purposes 702,761 553,991
, “Alternative Minimum Tax Credit Carryforward - - 49436 - 47,467
Compensation - 125,625 206,031
Rent . L 67484, 64,557
Non-current Deferred Tax Assets 8816652 10,992 405
Non-current Deferred Tax Liabilities: ' ' R . T '
. Goodwill - (874,415) (755,542)
Depreciation . I (13251) (47.483)
' Non-current Deferred Tax Liabilities - " - .- - _(8B7.666) (803,025}
Non-current Deferred Tax Assetss .. | . I U 928,986 - 10,189,330
Less Valuation Allowance o 16,752,986) {8.900,880)
- Net Non-Current Deferred Tax Assets - § _1l ZQ,QQQ $ M

.1
As of December 31, 2006 and 2007 management reassessed the net deferred tax asset
and determined. that the net deferred tax asset should remain unchanged and that the valuation
allowance should be reduced by approximately:$970,000°anid $2,147,894, respectively.

‘As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards for federal
income tax purposes were approximately $23,644,000.' ‘Various-amounts of net operating loss
“carryforwards will expire from 2008 through 2022, Approx1mately $4.7 million net operating
loss explred durmg the fiscal year ended 2007.

N Exp_lranon Year " Net Oge'rating’ Losses =
2008 $ - 415,000 =
. 2020 . , 5,960,000
2021. . 2,737,000
2022 0 " 14:532.0000 - '

The utilization of the net ‘enerating loss carryforwards is. subject to certain annual
. limitations.tIf certain substantial changes in ownership occur, there would be a further annual
limitation on the amount of tax carryforwards that can be utilized in the future.

IS LI

"Several of the ‘Company’s subsidiaries-are under examination for sales tax. in various
states. At this time, the Company has concluded that there will be an 1mmater1al assessment and .
has not prov1ded for an adjustment to income.

F-ZS?
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12, Fair Value of Financial Instruments _ ‘ L o

- Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” defines-the fair value of a financial instrument as the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The carrying
value of all financial instruments classified as current assets or liabilities 1s deemed to
approximate fair value because of the short term.nature of these instruments.

"The Com]iany has détermined that it is not practical to assess the fair value ofits fixed
rate notes payable without ‘incurring excessrve costs consrdermg the matenallty of’ the

instruments to the Company. ™
-

13. Sugglemental Cash Flow Informhtion o -, .- .
The following is supplemental information relating to the consolidated statements of cash
flows: , ' ‘ '
' ' : + P : ! . .
Cash paid-during the years for: N 2007 . 2006 2005
Interest o L $1,443,514 $1,290,724 $971,629 -
_ Income taxes Lo S $ 87,773 $ 104,932 $308.585

L]

Non-cash transactions:

Durmg 2007, 2006 and 2005, there ‘were 0, 17, 221 and 298, 018 shares, respectlvely, of
convertible preferred stock that were converted to a similar number of common shares

14. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan, which covers substantially all employees. Participants in
the plan may contribute a percentage of compensation, but not in excess of the maximum
allowed under the Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides for matching contributions up to a
maximum of 3% of employees’ qualified wages. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, $185,186, $180,712
and $183,269, respectively, of matching contributions were madé to the plan.

15. Business and Credit Concentrations

The Company purchases products from a large number of suppliers. The same two
suppliers -accounted for 30%, 34% and 37% of the Company s purchases for the years 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectlvely As of’ December 31, 2007, the Company’s outstanding balance
payable to these two, supphers was $1,558, 510. The loss of one or both of these suppliers could
have a material adverse effect upon its ‘business for short term period.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Compensation

~ The Company has'employment agreements with the Chlef Executivé Officer (se¢ Note
17, below) and various employees. The employment agreement with "the Chief Executive
Officer was amended on March 12, 2007. In addition,-in connection with the acqulsmon of
S&A, the Company entered into certain'employmént agreements with the former shareholders of
S&A (see Note 2, above). 'Including the effect of these, new, and amended agreements, the
remammg terms of the employment agreements | as of December 31, 2007 range from one-to
three years, and amounts due under these contracts are $495 000, $495,000, and $350,000 in the

. years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectlvely These commitments do not

include amounts that may be eamed as an annual incentive compensation award.’
(b) Leases- - = ¢ - T ' v

The Company recorded lease payments via the straight line method and, for leases w1th
step rent prowsmns ‘whereby the rental payments increase over the life of the lease, the Company
recognizes the total minimum- lease payments on @ straight-line basis over the lease term. The
Company is obligated under operating leases for warchouse, office facilities and certain office
equipment which amounted to $3,277,520, $3,098,491 and $2,997,887 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2007, future minimum lease
payments in the aggregate and for each of the five succeeding years, including the effect of the

. new leases entered into’in’ congiection with theacquisition of S&A (see Note 2, above), are as

follows: R
2008 ) $ 3840161
. 2009 , 3,558,770
~Zot0 b 3127399‘
o S0, : 2,818,665
20127 © 2,206,818
""" Thereafter T 4,669,921|
' Total $ 20,221,734

(c) Litigation’ , . - -

. Universal Supply Group, Inc a wholly owned sub51d1ary of the Company, is a New
York corporation (“Universal”). On June 25, 1999 Unlversal acqulred substantlally all of the
assets of Universal Supply Group, Inc., a New Jersey corporanon including’its name, pursuant
to the terms of a purchase agreement. The Company filed a copy of, the purchase agreement with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 1999 as Exhibit 10(g) on Form 10KSB,
and the Company filed a copy of an amendment to the purchase agreement on July 9, 1999 as
Exhibit 10(a)(i1) on Form 8-K. Subsequent to the sale, Universal Supply Group, Inc. (the selling

“ corporation) formerly known as Universal Engineering Co., Inc., changed its name to Hilco, Inc.
'Hilco, Inc. acquired the assets of Amber Supply Co., Inc., fonnerly known as Amber Oil Burner

Supply Co., Inc., in 1998, prior to Hilco’s sale of assets to Universal. Hilco, Inc. is hereinafter
referred to as the “Predecessor.” The majority shareholders of Hilco, Inc. were John A.
Hildebrandt and Paul Hildebrandt.

The Company understands that Predecessor and many other companies have been sued in
the Superior Court of New Jersey (Middlesex County) by plaintiffs filing lawsuits alleging injury
due to asbestos. Currently, there exist 86 plaintiffs in these lawsuits relating to alleged sales of
asbestos products, or products containing asbestos, by the Predecessor. The Company never sold
any asbestos related products.
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. -Of the -existing plaintiffs.as .of December. 31, 2007,. 15 filed actions in 2007, 7.filed
actions in 2006, ‘14 filed actions in 2005, 33. filed actions in 2004,:15 filed actions in 2003, and 2
filed actions in 2002. There.are 126 other.plaintiffs that have had their. actions dismissed and 12
other plaintiffs that have- settled.as of December 31, 2007 for a total of $3,357,500. There has
been rio judgment against 'the Prédecessor. . Subsequent- to December 31, 2007 one of the
existing cases was dismissed by- summary ]udgment

- Our Universal subsidiary was named by 36 plaintiffs; ot‘these, 11 filed actions in 2007', 6
filed actions.in 2006, 11. filed -actions.in*2005,.5 filed actions in 2001, 1 filed an action in 2000,
and 2 filed actions:in' 1999. Six plaintiffs naming Universal have had their ‘actions dismissed
and, -of the ‘total .$3,357,500,0f settled actions,.2 plaintiffs.naming Universal have' settled for
$26,500. No money was paid by Universal in' connection with any settlement. Following these
- dismissed and settled actions, there currently exist 28 plamnffs that name Universal.

- e -As set forth in more detall Jbelow, the Company has been mdemmﬁed against asbestos-
based clatms, and msurance eompames ‘are defendmg the 1nterests of the Predecessor and the
Company in these cases.

Based on advrce of counsel the Company beheves that. none of the lltrgatlon that was
brought against the Company’s Universal subsidiary;through December 31,:2007 is material, and,
that the only material l|t1gatton that was brought against, Predecessor through that date was
Rhodes v..A.O. Smlth Corporatton filed on A ril 26, 12004 in the Superror Court of New Jersey,
Law D1v1510n Mrddlesex County, Dotcket umber MlD L-2979- 04AS. The Company was
“ddvised that the Rhodes case was settled for $3, 250 000 (“Settlement”) ‘under an agreement
reached in connection with a $10,000,000 jury Verdlct that was rendered on August 5, 2005. The

Company ‘wasnot a.defendant'in the Rhodes case.” . v

On Apnl 29, 2005 prror to 'the Rhodes case trtal the Predecessor filed a third party
complamt agamst Sld Harvey lndustrles (“Thlrd Party Complamt”) in an action demandmg
contrrbutor payment in eonnectron w1th the _ Settlement. Sid Harvey | Industries - moved
suceessfully for summary Judgment The Predecessor filed an appeal as to the dismissal of
Predecessor s Thlrd Party Complarnt In‘a decrs1on dated Decemiber 29,.2006, the Superlor
- Court of New Jersey, Appellate Division, reversed the dlsmlssal of Predecessor’s Third Party
Complaint and rerhanded the matter for further proceedmgs as to Predecessor’s claim for
contribution; .~ <~ oo o : . : - :

) ' The Company belleves ‘thiat Rhodes dlﬁ'ered from the other lawsaits ‘in that plamtlff
established ‘that he contracted mesothelioma as a resuit of his occupattonal exposure to asbestos
dust -and fibers and-that a: predecessor-'of the Company was a major suppher of the asbestos
containing products that allegedly caused his disease. - .
Indemrnﬁcatlon ) R
« John A. Hildebrandt, Paul Hildebrandt and the: Predecessor have jointly and severally
agreed to.indemnify our Universal subsidiary fromi and against any and all ddmages, liabilities
and ‘claims due:to-exposure to asbestos at any time prior to the June 25,°1999 closing of thé.
purchase'-agreement -referred to earlier. These agreéments are set forth in the purchase
agreement. Paul. Hildebrandt; one of the indemnitors,. was-a- Drrector of the ‘Company" from
September 29, 2004 to January 28, 2005 ' ‘ S
. . o . v . - T

roer . . P 1
P . C
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_ The indemnitors- may use their own counsel to defend.these claims. The indemnitors are
not liable for any settlement effécted without their consent: The indemnitors may settle and pay
money claims without the consent of the Company. There is no indemnification unless claims
- aggregate $50,000; once this.trigger point is reached, indemnification is required for all claims,
including the first $50,000, but excluding claims of less than $10,000. The indemnification
reqmrement survives at least untll 30 days after the running of any relevant statutes of limitation.

' . The obligation of the mdemmtors is joint and 'several, so that the Company can have
. recourse against any one'or. more of these indemnitors, whether or not any other indemnitor has
previously defaulted on its obligation.to us. There are no other limitations to our rights to
indemnification. «+The Company cannot be certain .that the indemnitors have the financial
wherewithal ‘to meet their obllgatlons to mdemmfy the Company.- - - C

Insurance o %
) The assets, that the Predecessor sold to 'us mcluded 1ts insurance policies and other
agreemerits and’ confracts. Thé polrc1es prov1de coverage for liability accrumg during the penods
for which premiums were paid. The Predecessor was formed in 1940. C0p1es of policies hre
available for each year beginning in' 1970 and ending with the closing /under the purchase
agreement in 1999. Coples of policies for the perlod from 1940 to 1969 are not available.’

Insurance compames acknowledge coverage for potentlal asbestos claims under certain of
- these pollc1es Insrance companies under additional policies have reserved their right to deny
coverage but have Continyed to defend and mdemmfy the Predecessor and the Company under .

. the contested polrcres ,
l ) *

There are periods durmg the years from 1940 to 1999 in wh1ch our Predecessor did not
* have coverage for potential asbestos claims. Subject to litigation, insurance companies may
maintain that the existence of these penods results, in covetage for only a pOrthIl ‘of a partlcular
injury that varies with the perrod dunng whrch there was asbestos coverage relating to the injury,
and that the balance of any settlement or Judgment is to be pdid by the insured. As of December
31, 2007, no insurance company has claimed any contribution for a gap in coverage except fora
claim for $160 made by one insurance company to the Predecessor in 1995. The Predecessor .
asserted that it had no obligation to pay this amount and did not make any payment.

Insurance companies have as of December 31, 2007, defended us and the Predecessor
and have paid all settlement amounts and defense costs. Except for $160 referred to above, the
msurance compames have not requested any payments from us or from the Predecessor ‘

- Our Universal subsadtary has not engaged in the saIe of asbestos products since its
formation in 1997, Its product liability policies for all years since 1998 exclude asbestos claims. .

General -

-+ Regardless of mdemnlﬁeanon and insurance coverage, we do not in any event.consider
our Company to be liable for the asbestos-based lawsuits that name us or for any other.claim that
arises as a result of actions or. omissions by Predecessor companies. We expresély disclaimed the
assumption of any liabilities when we purchased the assets of the Predecessor, It is our opinion
that the existing asbestos litigation will not have a' material adverse effect on:the Company.
Nevertheless, we could be materially and adversely affected if we are held liable for substantial
asbestos claims or 1f the Company incurs substantial legal or settlement costs. This material and
adverse effect would occur if indemnitors fail to honor their indemnification agreements and
insurance is not available either because policy limits are exceeded, or because insurance
companies successfully clalm limitations on their liabilities by reason of gaps in coverage or
otherwise.
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Since we regard as remote the potential payment of any .asbestos-based -claim, we. have
not accrued any balance for any period-relating to-asbestos claims;and we have not recorded any
amount for asbestos clalms for any. period in.any of our financial statements.

T .‘ . _r.‘-f B S I ‘.-'._ . '1_‘ .,"

Otherthlgatnon ' L . S .

. The Company is per1odlcally mvolved in other htlgatlon in the ordinary course of
business. The Company vigorously defends all matters in which the Company or its subsidiaries

- are named defendants-and, ‘for insurable losses, maintains significant levels of insurance to

protect against ‘adverse judgments, claims or.assessments. Although the adequacy of existing

insurance coverage ‘or the outcome of any legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty,

the Company does. not believe the ultimate_ liability. associated with any claims or litigation will

have a material impact to its:financjal condition or results of operations. :
Vg

" The Company has a standby letter of cred1t in the amount of $300 000 Wthh expires on
July'31;2008. '~ . R .

PR T - P 2t ae
[ T e . . : v

1 . .
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(a) A subsndrary of the' ‘Company" leases a warehouse ‘and -store ‘in Wharton New Jersey
comprising of 27,000 square-feét from-a company owned by Mr. Paul Hildebrandt under a
" : lease that explres in June 2010. The Company'paid Mr. Hildebrandt’s company $234,866,
$224,885 and $215,674 durmg the' years- ended December 31, 2007, 2006-and 2005,
“respéctively. The Company ‘6wes Mr. Hildebrandt '$80,000 pursuanf 'to two notes: '(a) a
subordiriated note in the amouint of $150,000, paid $30,000 annually commencing Deceinber
31, 2004 and (b) a $50,000 convertible note due*50%-on June-1, 2008 and 50% on June I,
2009 William SaleK, the Company’s Chief” Financiil Ofﬁcer is the son:in-law' of Mr.
Hildebrandt. Mr. Hildebrandt served as a Dlrector of*thé Company from July 2004 to

_ . -January 2005.. S I P ISI . :

(b) Goldman’ Assocmtes of New Y-ork, Inc. (“Goldman Assomates’?) ‘has agreed that it and its
: affiliates will not until May 31,2008 without the’ prior ‘written consent of the Board of
Directors -of the Company (i) acquire, agree to acquire or make any proposal to'acquire any

. voting securities or.assets of the Company or.any of its affiliates, (ii) propose to enter into
any ‘merger, conSOhdanon, recapltahzauon, business combmanon ,or other. similar
transactjon mvolvmg the Company,. or.any of its. afﬁhates (m) make or -in any way
participate in any * sol1c1tat1on” of “proxies” (as, such terms are used-in the proxy rules of the
Securities and Exchange 'Cq_mmissi‘on) to vote or,seek to advise or influence any person with
respect to the voting of.any voting securities of the Company, or any of its affiliates or (iv)
form, join or in any way part1c:pate in a “group” -as defined in Section l3(d)(3) of the”

‘ Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended in connection with any of the foregomg or (v)
advise, assrst or encourage any- other’ persons” in, connection with the foregomg Mlchael

" Goldman is tHe beneﬁclal owner of the shares held by Goldman Assocrates

3

The Company owes .Goldman Assomates, a prwate Company controlled by Mlchael
Goldman, $750,000 pursuant to a secured note which is subordinate to borrowmgs under the
credlt fac1l1ty The note bears interest at the prime rate and is due on January 1, 2009

For calendar. years begmmng 2008 ‘the Company wrll pay - the 'p'remlums for Mlchael‘
Goldmans COBRA health insurance: In January 2008, the Company paid $13,221 for_thls
_ premlumfor2008 T R T :

R 4t
. 4-"‘ -
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COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; Continued

e

(c) Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted as legal counsel for the Company through April 20, 2005.
‘Oscar and Jeffrey Folger acted-as legal consultants for.the Company from April 21,.2005
through December .31, 2005 and' each became an employee of the Company as Vice
President-Chief Legal Counsel and Assistant Vice President-Legal, respectively, on Jantxary
1, 2006 until March 31, 2007. As of April 1, 2007, Oscar and Jeffrey Folger ceased to act as

. employees of the Compary, but Oscar Folger s law firm remains as counsel to the Company.
- Mrs. Folger is the wife of Oscar Folger and the-mother of Jeffrey Folger. Professional fees
paid -to Oscar Folger’s law firm for the years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $115,412, -

. $89,826 and $79,973, respectively. Jeffrey Folger is an associate of'Oscar Folger’s law firni’
"Additionally, in 2006, $12,000 was paid to €ach Oscar and Jeffrey Folger as part time’

~ employees of the Company. As of December 31; 2007; there+is’ $1,000 in outstanding
liabilities to Oscar Folger. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, there was $3,975 and $2 715,
respectively, in outstanding llablhtles to Oscar Folger. .

(d) William Pagano is employed pursuant to an employment agreement that provrdes for a salary
of $200,000 per year, reduced by any amounts payable to Mr. Pagano for loss of eammgs or
the like under any insurance plan or policy, the premiums for which are paid for in their
entirety by the Company; (ii} fringe benefits commensurate -with Mr.. Pagano’s.position -as ,
President, in ,such group life, health, accident, disability or hospitalization insurance plans,
subject to underwriting requirements as Universal, or.its parent,. may make available to its
.other executive employees and (iii) additional incentive compensation based on a percentage

..of earnings, as defined below, of the subsidiaries, limited to-‘two times his base
compensation. The amended employment agreement .contains ,confidentiality -and non-

. compete provisions and expires on December 31, .2010. William Pagano’s total incentive

compensation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $151,778,
$260,109 and $317,924, respectively. On March 3, 2008, Mr. Pagano waived his right to
receive this incentive compensation for 2007.. | .

In the event that Mr. Pagano no longer performs the duties of the President of Universal or,
. the; Vice President of RAL for any reason other than death or disability, the Company will be,
) con51dered in default of its .credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Assocranon :
| unless a waiver is obtained. . . » .

(e) Pioneer Realty Holdings, LLC, a New York limited llablllty company (“Proneer”), 1s the
owner of the premises located at 836 Route 9, Fishkill, New York, formerly known as 2213 .
- Route 9, Fishkill, New York that is leased to a subsidiary of the Company under a lease that
" was set'td expire in September 2008, subjéct to refiewal options, and provided fot ‘a current
' aggregate annual rent of $133,500. Pioneer is the landlord under the Lease pursuant to an
assrgnment and assumptron agreement dated Aprrl 12,2005, o - -

‘ On February 21, 2007, the Lease was further amended by a Th1rd Modlﬁcatlon of Lease
, Agreement to provrde among other things, for 25 ,947 square feet of the leased premrses a
net increase of 14, 443 square feet, and for $245, 844 total annual ﬁxed rent, an increase of
$106,740 per annum. The effectiveness of the Third Modification of Lease Agreement
 commenced in August 2007. ' The term of the 1ease explres on ‘March 3l 2017, subject to
~two five-year rencwal dptions.- '

Additionally, on February 21, 2007 Pioneer granted the Company an optlon (“Opt1on”) to
‘purchase the Premises for (i) an exercise price equal to Pioneet’s total financial invéstmerit in
the Premises through 'the date -of exercise and (ii) the rélease of Mr: Pagano (and any other
guarantors) from guaranties of mortgage loans secured by the Premises. The Option expired
on July 31, 2007.
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COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

Wllllam Pagano has a 55% interest in Pioneer and each of Rita Folger and Jeffrey Folger has
"an ‘8% interest in Pioneer Realty Partners I, LLC, which has a 40% interest in Pioneer. Oscar
Folger and Jeffrey Folger are counsel to the Company. The Company paid Pioneer Realty
Holdings, LLC $176,556 and $137,239 in rent during the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

(f) Each of Messrs. Goldman, Ko, Pagano, R0221 and Mrs, Folger had agreed that until May
31, 2008 he or she will not purchase any stock of the Company without written consent from

) the Company and that he or she will not sell any stock' to any person if the sale would create

" a'new 5% sharcholder within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code Section 382 unless the
buyer first enters into a similar standstill agreement On November 2, 2007 the Company
terminated said Standstill Agreements dated June 21, 2004, b_etween ,the_ .ACompany and . .

.. Messrs. Goldman, Korn, Pagano, Rozzi, and Mrs. Folger. . v,

(g) Mr. Pagano, Mr. Salek, Mrs. Folger and the wife of Michael Goldman are holders of
convertible, unsecured notes in the amounts of $100,000, $50,000, $100 000 and $25, 000 ’
" respectively, issued pursuant o the termis of a private placement madé on July 29, 2004. o

(h) On- September 5, 2006, the Company was appointed a non-exclusive dlstnbutor of Speed

** Queen home laundry equipnient in the New York metropolitan area,” and in portions -of
-Connecticut,. Delaware and Eastern Pennsylvania. “The Company succeeded . Goldman
Associates of New York, Inc. in this distributorship and, on August 31, 2006, purchased
Goldman Associates’ Speed Queen accounts receivable, inventory and related assets at fair,
value for $149,625. ‘Goldman Assocnates is a private Company controlled by Michael
Goldman who is the Chairman of Colonial. The Company also established a “Goldman
Universal” division to distribute the Speed Queen home laundry system line and other
appliances.

18. Ouarterly Results (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth selected unaudited quarterly financial data of the Company
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

QUARTER ENDED
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
2007 '
Net sales : $16,042 $22,129 $20,522 . $23,733
Gross profit ) 4,872 6,103 5,981 6,599
Net (loss) income (390) 407 134 (203)
(Loss) income per common share: - : ’ : ’
Basic:
Net (loss) income - . ' (0.08) 0.09 0.03 (0.04)
Diluted: . ' : _
Net (loss) income . 0.08) 0.08 0.03 (0.0
2006
Net sales . : $14884  SI18,156 519,218 519,237
Gross profit © 4,685 5,438 5,659 * 5,655
Net (loss) income (325) 338 476 327
(Loss) income per common share: '
Basic: :
Net (loss) income - . 007 0.07 010 0.07
Diluted: .

Net (loss) income ' (0.07) 0.06 009 . 006
' F-32
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' ' [ . }
' Schedule I1
Colonial Commercial Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
' S 6 K . ‘. Add:tlons 1
.Balance at Charged to, - Charged to
., Beginning  Costs and Othe( . . . Balanceat
Descrlpno . ofYear Exnenses © Accounts Deductions End of Year
For the year ended December 31, 2007 Lo A ’ _
Allowance for doubtful accounts £212,043 $652,468 § 65,937(a) $(451,591)(b) $ 478,857
For tﬁé yeai’ ended Dedember,jl, 200§, , b o " ' ‘. ' - . _ ) '
Allowance for doubtful accounts * ~ $'185,971 ~$191,357 * § 90,405 (a)  $(255,690) (b) = §$212,043
For the year ended Décember3l, 2005, . . . Coesr T .. . (
Allowance for doubtful accounts .+ $290,448 ". $ 101,724 - § 69, 144' (a) $(275345)(b) .3$185971

i

a. Comprlsed primarily of accounts that were‘prewously charged agamst the allowance and have

. since been collected. oo o
b Comprised primarily of uncollected accoums char'ged aga‘i'nst i:l_lé allowance.

i

-
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the under51gned thereunto
duly authonzed.

COLONIAL COMMERCIAL CORP. . - . IR
(Registrant) o o

By: /s/ William Pagano - i LA Ca iyt

William Pagano,

Chief Executive Officer and Director
By: /s/ William Salek

- William Salek,

Chief Financial Officer & Principal Accountmg Officer
Dated: March 31, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange.Act of 1934, this Report has’ B'een"c.luly‘
signed-below on March 31, 2008 by the following persons on behalf of the Reglstrant and in the
capacities indicated: L .

By: /s/ E. Bruce Fredrikson

[
I

E. Bruce Fredrikson, Director
By: /s/ Melissa Goldman-Williams _

Melissa Goldman-Williams, Director
By: /s/ Michael Goldman’
Michael Goldman, Chairman of the Board
By: /s/ Stuart H. Lubow
Stuart H. Lubow, Director
By: /s/ Ronald H. Miller '
Ronald H. Miller, Director ..
By: /s/ William Pagano -

William Pagano,

Chief Executive Officer and Director




AR EXHIBIT 10.13(c)

» . - . n . . N 4 i
' ' A T A . . : 1 .

Amendment No. | {6 that certain Contvertible Noté dated as &f July 29, 2004 (“Note”).

For good and valuable consideration, the parties to the Note'agree.and confirm.to amend the
Note to extend the First Maturity Date from June 1, 2008 to January 1, 2009. .

[y

Except as set forth above, the Note is hereby ratified and confirmed m all respects.. " - '

' . . . (-
Dated: March 27, 2008 - _ o st
Colonial Commercial Corp. T i
By: /s/William Pagano R N R A ST U » ERC
Name: William Pagano ‘ '
Title: Chief Executive Officer '
Confirmed: . - . L - : .
. - * - - PR ] ; LI NN 4 [ i o - t
. e " . . [} § t i li\ ‘ i =y / "“' “\‘\ ' !
By: /s/Rita Folger o
Name: Rita Folger
IO X
- r " Sk ] L
. A N ‘-‘Q !
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T TR A A ' S EXHIBIT 10.13(d)

Amendment No. 1 to that certain Convertible Note dated as of July 29, 2004 (“Note™). = ., .

For good and valuable consideration, the parties to the Note agree and confirm to amend the.
Note to extend the First Maturity Date from June 1, 2008 to January 1, 2009. o '

Except as set forth above, the Note is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects.

Dated: March 27, 2008

Colonial Commercial Corp. \ A

By:  /s/William Salek
Name: William Salek
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Confirmed: P

By: /s/William Pagano : o o
Name: William Pagano .




EXHIBIT 10.14(d)

Amendment No. 1 to that certain Secured Note dated as of July 24, 2004 (“Note”).

For good and valuable consideration,’ the parties to the Note agree and confirm to amend the
Note to extend the Maturity Date from June 30, 2008 to January 1, 2009. :

Except as set forth above, the Note is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects.

Dated: March 27, 2008

Colonial Commercial Corp.

By: /s/William Pagano
Name; William Pagano
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Subsidiaries that are “Grantors of a Security Intereét” under this Note:
Universal Supply Group, Inc.
By: /s/William Pagano

Name: William Pagano
Title: President

The RAL Supply Group, Inc.

By: /s/William Pagano
Name: William Pagano
Title: Vice President

Confirmed:
Goldman Associates of New York, Inc.
By: /s/Michael Goldman

Name: Michael Goldman
Title: President




EXHIBIT 10.17(a)

TN &

4

Amendment No. 1 to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated September 10, 2007 (“APA”).
For good and valuable consideration, the parties to the APA agree and confirm that the date on
which they are to meet and determine amounts due among the parties under Section 3(a) of the
APA has been extended from 130 days subsequent to the Closing to April 30, 2008.

Except as set forth above, the APA is hereby ratified and conﬂrmed in all respects

4o . { RN A
Dated: March 26, 2008
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S&A Purchasing Corp.

o

o '
oy ) [ TN

By: ..
Nameé: - '~

Title: -

SELLERS:
S&A Supply, Inc.

By:

F -

Name:

Title:

SHAREHOLDERS:

Nancy Mead

Sarah Mead

TR

S&A Realty, Inc.

By:
Name: '
Title:

S&A Management, Inc.

By:

Name:

Title:

The Discretionary Trust under

The Rodney P. Mead
Revocable Trust, dated

© January 12,1999

Adam Mead

‘By: '

Nancy A. Mead, Trustee

By:

Thomas H. Mead, Trustee

Brian Mead

Escrow Agent
Martinelli Discenza P.C.

By:

Gary E. Martinelli




Taa STl EXHIBIT 21.01

PR ELEN: e RO N BRI AV e
S SUBSIDIARIES OF REGTSTRANT .
N .“COLONIAL COMMERCIAL,GORP..AND. SUBSIDIARIES i wrotun )
LoLuD tneegg e PIE (R DPSVIVE N 5T < T L EYE, oD e U TRALED T e e
,W' 1T 0 T © FED T 03718510 ¢ je L el
Lo SO TG ottt 3y Ja‘v 12 2ain0 nolsh.0anon L to j;uu; T30 30 S0 LD e
ALY LU BANT bie 06000109 butstsr o T o APO0 L E 1 tsosld o es zun .rbie"ur Citg
e et agyes Aan ey SN Daodmono Bahe s ey ,n" 101 470 ard LR s Bngy e e oo

Narme of Subsidiary _ State of Incorporatlon 1D. Numbey T
Universal Supply Group,' Inc. | | : New York 1 1-3391045

RAL Supply Group; Inc. E : | Ne\; York - 20- 0207 1}8 : A4
American/Univers.';l Supply Inc. , ., .~ New York ’21'16 1661494”, vt

_ _ R X RN S L T
S&A Supply, Inc. 7. New York " 26-0778121 i




EXHIBIT 31.01

'CERTIFICATION
I, William Pagano Chlef Executive Ofﬁcer of Colonial Commerc1al Corp certlfy that:

. i i I. i s . .
1. T have rewewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of Colonial Commercial Corp (the
“Registrant™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of & mdterial
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not mlsleadmg with’ respect ‘to the penod

+»t covered by this,Apnual Repart;s v ., - "t 3 1w e i, e et L

oy

3: Based'on my knowledge ‘thé ﬁnanmal Staterfients, and- other firiicial information! ificlidéd i this
' 7 1Annual Report, fairly present in alt‘materiaf reSpects.the financial condition; tésults’of operandns
o .+ “7and cash flows:of the'Registrant .as.of, and:for; the periods prese'nted.in'this Annual'Report' g

+

f
i

4. Thé'Reglstrant s other cemfylng officer and I are respon51ble for establlshmg and mamtammg
arn ”dlscldsure controls’and’ procedures (as deﬁned in’ Exchange Act ‘Rules l3a-15(e) ‘@nd"T5d- 15(e))
! o i and infernidl ‘control'over findncial repdrting (as deﬁned' ‘in Exchange 'Act Rulés 138-15(f) and

15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:  ++ Y. r.on v hivg ol 0 e o100

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Annial Report is
being prepared;

RIS PRIt

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this Annual Report our conclustons about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report based
on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this Annual Report any change in the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008
/s/ William Pagano

William Pagano
Chief Executive Officer
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RN ' EXHIBIT 23.01

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC _ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to'the.incorporation by referenceé in.the Registration: Statement on Form S-8
. (Registration No. 333-37025) of Colonial.Commercial Corp and subsidiaries of our report dated
March 31, 2008 on our audit of the tonsolidated ‘balahce ‘sheet of Colonial Commercial Corp.
and subsndlanes as of December 31, 2007, and the rélated consolidated statements of operatlons
stockholders’ equ1ty and cash ﬂows for the year ended December 31, 2007, Wthh appears in this
FormlOK SRR I

C e .
PN e T

/s/Eisner' LLP = ' - - At : PR
New York, New_ York v
-March 31 2008

Jon T8 : IR A e . Ao,




EXHIBIT 23.02

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors Lo

Colonial Commercial Corp.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the reglstratlon statement (No. 333 :37025) on
Form S-8 of Colonial Commercial Corp. of our report dated March 22, 2007, -except for the
effects of the. restatements, .dated August.13, 2007, discussed.in the fourth paragraph of our
report, which contains an emphasis of armatter, paragraph. for-the adoption of SFAS 123(R), with
respect to the consolidated balance sheet of Colonial Commercial Corp. as of December 31,
2006, and,the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2006; .which rTeport appears in the December 31 2007 annual

report on Fonn 10-K of Colomal Commercial Corp. . T
P | ) . . i . { -

' . [ ‘" ) ]
/s/Weiser LLP .- -~ % e L T, ,
Weiser LLP TS
Mirch 31,2008 - T




EXHIBIT 31.01

CERTIFICATION
I, William Pagano Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer of Colonial Commercral Corp certify that

1.

»

5.

. covered by this, Annual Report;-

I have reviewéd this Annual Report on Form 10- K of ‘Colonial Commermal Corp (the
“Registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the perlod

. [ ' [
Pl 3 L i

Based on my knowledge the finiancial statements, and other fingficial information included iri this
Annual Report, fairly present in alt'material respects the financial condition; résults of operations

“and cash flows of the' Reglstrant as.of, andifor, the perlods presented-in‘this Annual Report

The- Reg1strants other certlfymg officer and I'are responsrble for establlshmg and mamtalnmg
“disclésure controls and procedures'(as defined in 'Exchangt™Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and infernal control“over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Ruleés 13a-15(t) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have: - s T e o

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is

~ being prepared;

T

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal controt
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
-assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; .

¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report based
on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this_Annual Report any change in the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Reglstrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

The Registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008

/s/ William Pagano

William Pagano
Chief Executive Officer




CLoLnn - EXHIBIT 31.02

F

CERTIFICATION |
I, William Salek, Chief Financial Officer of Colonial Commercial Corpy, certify that:

1. I have reviewed, I;his._Annua.l +Report QII'l1F:9rmilO-K1 of Colonial, Commercial Corp. (the
“Reglstrant”)

n|‘,-

. - ’
2. iBased on my knowledge chlS Annua] Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
“fact or omiit to State a matenal fact necessary to make the statements made in hght of the
'Clrcumstances under whlch such stateménts were made not mrsleadmg Wlth respect to the penod

" covered by this® ‘Annal Report; *' i 2 -r o
e ) -\ ', l \ .
3.. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other ﬁnanc1al lnformanon mcluded in this
«» . ‘Annual Report, fairly pfesent in dil:material respects the financial condition, results of operations

and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report;

o

+ 4. .The Registrant's other certifying officer, and I are'responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls.and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in' Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused-such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material, information
relating 1o the Registrant, including its consclidated subSIdranes is ‘miade known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in‘Which this Annual Report is
being prepared; '

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c. . Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report based
on such evaluation; and :

. d. Disclosed-in this Annual Report any change in the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's -fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal

“control over financial reporting; and '

5. The Registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and ~

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
- have a significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008
{s/ William Salek
William Salek ‘
Chief Financial Officer




Date: March 31, 2008

: oo EXHIBIT 32.01

- CERTIFICATION-PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Colonial Commercnal Corp. (the
“Company”) for “the ﬁscal year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and

'Exchange Commission on’ the date hereof (the “Report”) I, William Pagano, Chief Executwe

Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to section 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to
sectlon 906 of the Sarbanes -Oxley Act of 2002, that: '

. The Report fully complles with the requlrements of sectlon 13(a) or: 15(d) of the
~Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and o

'2.. The information contained in the Report fairly presents; in all material respects,
“the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

By:. /s/ William Pf;gano sae

Name Wllllam Pagano o .
o1 Chief Executlve Ofﬁcer St S '

1]




EXHIBIT 32.02

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Colonial Commercial Corp. (the
“Company”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, William Salek, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to section 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopted pursuant to

~ section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

By:  /s/ William Salek
Name: William Salek

Chief Financial Officer
Date: March 31,-20_08
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1. AUDIT COMMITTEE
2. COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
3. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

CORPORATE OFFICE

Colonial Commercial Corp.
275 Wagaraw Road
Hawthorne, N] 07506
973-427-8224

Fax: 973-427-6981
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AUDITORS
Eisner LLP
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STOCK LISTINGS -

OTC BULLETIN BOARD

Convertible Preferred Stock
Symbol = CCOMP

Commeon Stock
Symbol = CCOM

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
New York, New York

10-K ILABLE

The Annual Report or Form 10-K, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
is available to stockholders on www sec.gov or
without charge, upon written request to:

Secretary

Colonial Commercial Corp.
275 Wagaraw Road
Hawthorne, NJ 07506

INTERNET SITE
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offers information about the Company,
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